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AARERE > I B SR EEERE I
i VRAR o MEAS B R — R T N A 2 JE 4R
PR ZFE > miRaE R 2 —FE-EEI
i A L35 B R E H B R 2 15 S E A
7 328,700,000 7C > DA B JHE Ui — 5 B 4 28 7
A R R 2 I B 156,200,000 70 © R
FENE=ZA=Z+—HILFEE > REMEKH
PRGN 2 TS B H AR 2 2 i
411,700,000 7T 3% 11 46% % 47 # ¥ 600,800,000
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Y Ees e - ik > RNEFBREARERE
B B A 4 9 %5 76,900,000 7C > B % 4 kR
43,500,000 CHR LG - HEIE R o

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the current year, revenue includes net gain on disposal of investments
held-for-trading and excludes interest on unsecured loan due from an
associate whereas revenue for 2007 as previously reported included gross
proceeds from disposal of investments held-for-trading of HK$328.7 million
and interest on unsecured loan due from an associate of HK$56.2 million.
The Group’s gross proceeds from continuing operations for the year ended
31st March, 2008 was approximately HK$600.8 million, representing an
increase of 46% as compared with last year of HK$411.7 million, primarily
attributable to increase in securities investment transactions and sale of
properties during the year. As a result, the Group achieved a gross profit for
the year of approximately HK$76.9 million, showing an improvement from
HK$43.5 million last year.

A B R R WO £ i 1631,800,0000C K 4F
Bl 2 #:21,000,000 7T  HAR YA (BLEE Y BR
A 2 Wi R SR PR/ ) ([ 3E4E ] > 2
Ivi) LA e 2 I T 2R EEAE [ ) B Rk 2 1Rk
A HE51,600,00070) £ ¥ ¥573,200,0007C > 1
FAE 105,600,000 018 D > EEFFIRT
RETT A A4 BE SR AT FLE A I D -

Income from loan financing amounted to HK$31.8 million for the year as
compared to HK$21 million last year. Other income, including interest of
HK$51.6 million charged on shareholder’s loan to Orient Town Limited
(“Orient Town”, together with its subsidiaries the “Orient Town Group”), an
associate of the Group, amounted to HK$73.2 million, showing a decrease
as compared with HK$105.6 million last year mainly because there was less
bank interest income in current year due to the lower interest rate.

H A B A T (2 26 5L 30) AR SR A FR
B WEGEEAAEEELSER > kB
JER B R Z EAT 2 BAS > FRZIEDE
N JREAG 8 /] 2E 4800 525,000,000 70 2 5 1H
q:: o

Since Concordia Land (as defined below) was still in the development stage,
the Orient Town Group incurred a loss during the year as a result of the
effective interest charged on shareholders’ loans which was included in share
of results of associates of a loss of HK$25 million.

A A [ A A AE BE Bk A5 7 5 144,400,000 7T 2 i
o KRR A3 H74,100,000C 2 B 0 EE
A A AE B R A 2R TG B AT 2 1 2 IR AR
HE Ars

The Group recorded a loss for the year of HK$144.4 million, as compared
to the profit of HK$74.1 million last year, mainly due to the following non-
recurring items from the corporate exercises during the year:

g — W A A 2k

1. a loss on disposal of an associate of HK$39.5 million as a result of 1.

the disposal of the Group’s effective 20% interest in Grand Waldo
Hotel, details of which are included in “Property Development and
Investment” paragraph below;

an impairment loss of HK$45 million was recognised in view of an
estimated loss on disposal of the Group’s entire interest in the Lotus
Hill Golf Resort due to the change in regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), details of which are included in
“Golf and Leisure” paragraph below. Together with the further
recognition of a loss on disposal of HK$19.1 million of the Lotus Hill
Golf Resort and the related businesses, the aggregate loss incurred in
this respect amounted to HK$64.1 million; and

a loss on disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Tung Fong Hung
Investment Limited (“TFH”") of HK$18.6 million.

39,500,0007C > J4 [FI 4= 48 [ S B i 2
5 B B2209% 4 45 T 20 - #EIBESI T
s R s | — B

2. il 52 9 5 15 5 % 45,000,000 7T > T
Rlep e N R ILAER ([P ) 2 8 5
B B AR B R E AL L R R
BRIE WA 2 2Rt L R
FEE R N I = f R ER X —
B o Gh R H B A 1L A R E B AT
KA BR S 2 — A ks 1R R W
19,100,0007C > A B 5 T = £ 2 #EiE
EEWEH564,100,0007C 5 K

3. A 4L H & Tung Fong Hung Investment
Limited ([ 575 4L 1) 2 2 FBHE 2 T 8% 15
s 1R 118,600,000 7T ©
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Property Development and Investment LYE S0y E <
Macau: MY

In April 2007, the Group acquired 44 residential units in Zhu Kuan A “FZ-L4EM H > A4 B — FE #8UT )

Mansion, a residential/office/commercial complex nearby the Sands casino- P4 VM JE 2 A% WA /W R 456 KM

hotel. These properties have been upgraded with major renovation and  ERVL K& H 2 44{f{E T BN - %S WD

improvements which are currently held for the purpose of resale at an 17 K% FH4% Bl 07 M 2448 - B AT IEF5A DA

opportune time. The total gross floor area of the units is approximately R H I o« ZEE 2 MBEETEL S

57,432 sq. ft. with an average cost of approximately HK$2,070/sq. ft. 57,432°F- 07 W > P X AR B 47 WA
2,0707C °

In July 2007, the Group further acquired another 18 residential units and 18 A “FZ-L4E-L A > AL B — £ A 7»
car parking spaces in Pearl on the Lough, a luxury residential building on &A1 1 2 5% 55 B 5275 WA 38 B 1R 22 1811 2
the waterfront of Taipa, which are also currently held for resale purpose. B {7 fz 18 1@ {5 3L i > H 8ij I8 IE £ A 5 iz 4
The total gross floor area of the units is approximately 44,046 sq. ft. with an o 3% %5 B 2 A4 S8 W 28 40 /5 44,0467 7
average cost of approximately HK$2,690/sq. ft. In March 2008, 2 residential IR > P44 A /5 457 5 IR 4 3 152,690 7T ©
units and 2 car parking spaces were sold. In May 2008, another residential - FEZ/NE=H > B8 H2EE A K2R

unit and car parking space were sold at close to HK$4,000/sq. ft. {EEN o REENERH > H—AEEE
A B A B0 I A2 30 451 O WO 04,000 7T 65
&

The Group has an effective 35.5% interest in Empresa De Fomento A< [ it B A= 55 B L A BRA R (B4R 1) 2
Industrial E Comercial Concérdia, S.A. (“Concordia”). In October 2007, B [FEHERS £35.5% o R FEE-L4E+H » WM
the Government of Macau has granted to Concordia the new concession of i ] B A= 4% H a7 i IR P 4 BE i B8 i 2 +- U
14 parcels of leased land situated in Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Macau for a  WEFLE L2 54 > B T E-LE#M 25
25-year plus 25-year time from 2007 (“Concordia Land”), which absolutely 4 &% 5 254 ([ WL -4 ]) > fEYI S EASE
confirmed the value of the Group’s investment in Concordia. The planned [ A AE 2 FOEAEH - B A= 2 wF 81 44 3 2 1
total gross floor area of Concordia is approximately 8,000,000 sq. ft. with & %) % 8,000,000°F /7 ¥R > - i A 4 5 &-°F
an average cost of approximately HK$430/sq. ft. as based on the Group’s 77 Rk 543070 - B TI MR 48 A 42 J ik I A 2 1%
investment in Concordia of HK$1,213 million. Development plans are being & #:#51,213,000,0007C7H & © 2@ #|3H L2
submitted to the Government of Macau for approval and other preparatory 3¢ ## [ B ¥ DA R 2 4it » Hofth 55 B 45 T2 %
works for the development and marketing are being actively taken out. T 354 B IR AE AN K AN ZE HaEAT o

In September 2007, the Group disposed of its effective 20% interest in & " FE T -LAEJLH > A% @ H & H R M
Grand Waldo Hotel in Macau for an aggregate consideration of HK$350 4 #F il 2 20% B BstE 45 > U & 3L B ki
million, of which HK$150 million was paid in cash, HK$100 million was 350,000,000 7C > H: # # % 150,000,000 7 24 B
settled by 126,262,626 shares in Get Nice Holdings Limited (“Get Nice”) at 4 SAF -~ #E100,000,000 G PL 126,262,626 1%
HKS$0.792 each (“Get Nice Consideration Shares”) and remaining HK$100 45 i 1 (H % 5 0.792 70 2 45 I 5 B A PR 2 7
million was settled by convertible bonds issued by Get Nice. Upon the ([ &5 |) ey (T &5 iU E A0 ) AT > 88 F
completion of the disposal, the market price of the Get Nice Consideration 2 #& ¥ 100,000,000 7 J7 375 38 &5 I 38 47 2 ] ¥
Shares was considerably below HK$0.792 and as a result, a loss on disposal ~ B¢ EFME A o HEFERE - G CERGZ
of an associate of HK$39.5 million was recorded mainly attributable to the — & & KA #E¥0.7927C » I > JrBkfs i
shortfall in the fair value of the Get Nice Consideration Shares as partial — — [H] B 5/ 7] 5 18 #5 %5 39,500,0007C > EEH
consideration. This loss was substantially compensated by the net gain on i &% I A5 B A0 1 & SR A ACE 2 A FE A 2
financial instruments since all the Get Nice Consideration Shares were &  MLEGE RN E b B4 % LB 2 F ik
subsequently disposed of at market prices above HK$0.792 each and HK$43  Jir#fif& > J3 R i A &5 i AE Ry A& B 1% &
million of the convertible bonds issued by Get Nice was also disposed of ata Bt #E%50.792 0 A L2 Hi{EE H > DL K& b5
price above its face value. Taking into account the share of profit from Grand 172 #&¥43,000,0007C RJ #2 % {5 5 U5 4 0 ik 1
Waldo Hotel of approximately HK$92.1 million recognised in last year, there T {EH 2 fE M H o FF K 5 4EHEGRIEAL 4 H0im
is a reasonably good return from this investment. Ji 2 368 F % #5592,100,000 7T - A B & R R
AR o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Property Development and Investment (Cont’d)

PRC:

The Group has entered into an agreement to acquire in Hengqin, Zhuhai
a plot of land in the area of approximately 26,000 m? located right on the
waterfront across from Cotai, Macau, at the consideration of approximately
RMBS51 million which permitted uses under town planning guidelines are
commercial, residential, hotel and retail. The plot ratio is 1.6. Consideration
had substantially been paid up and title transfer is pending upon lifting of
moratorium for land transfer within the Hengqin area imposed by local
government.

Hong Kong:

In January 2008, the Group has acquired 2 adjacent blocks of building
located at the junction of Nathan Road and Fife Street for approximately
HK$229 million which aggregate re-developable gross floor area is
approximately 29,000 sq. ft. It is currently intended that the properties will
be held for re-development into a retail and office complex for investment

purpose.

During the current year, some units at Talon Tower on Connaught Road
West were sold at a profit. As at 31st March, 2008, 7 residential units and 1
commercial unit remained unsold.

050 (4

YEBRRIE (4

Hifag

A% 48 [ B 5T 7 W A 17 A VR 1) B g TR B
TE M EE IR b > RS 4 £ 26,000°F 7
K s AE A N R H51,000,0007C > 7% 1 15 i
HRPEIH T L B4 5| AR 2 ~ 2~ W5 K&
FERE - IR L1.6 - [UE KT
5> SEAE R e A1) ZE 2 1 7 BUR LR BE & A +
AR T 2 e S BUE B T AR E -

Bl
WZEENAE—H 5 A 5L [ A i 8 3
KPR B R AR AT MR AT
229,000,0007C » A HE £ H#EE R A 3£ 429,000
TR o BRI EY SR A ERER SR
BEERIAZEHEY > ERERE -

TAAAEE > 5 T R 4% R R B
R - BE-FZF/NE=ZA=+—H > 7ffE
YA B AR v R A AT SRR B o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d) 0wl (4)
Outlined below is a summary of the Group’s interest in significant properties ~ # % ~EFENE=ZH=+—H » REHFH
held for development/sale as at 31st March, 2008: VEBE R 15t 7 FEY SRS G
Attributable Gross
Floor Area
Group’s (excluding car
interest parking spaces)
Location Usage AL Pt A e S i R
ok & iR (A FEEEAhE)
(%) (sq. jt.)
(FIrR)
14 parcels of land situated in Residential, Commercial and Hotel 35.5 2,250,000
Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Macau F5 - BEMEE
R £ PSS B% 2+ DU 1
44 residential units at Edificio Comercial Residential 100 57,432
Zhu Kuan Mansion, Avenida Xian Xing Hai FE
nos. 81-121, Rua de Londres nos. 148-254,
Avenida do Governador Jaime Silvério Marques
nos. 80—120 and Rua de Madrid nos. 147-225,
Macau
RLIA TR G i RIS B8 1-1219% »
Bt 148-25455% -
FG IR AR KRS B 80- 12098 %
FHTERE 147-2555%
BRVL K 2 441R13: 2 B A
16 residential units and 16 car parking spaces at Residential 100 39,936
Pearl on the Lough, Ilha da Taipa, £
junto a Estrada Nordeste da Taipa Aterro
da Baia de Pac On, Macau
PR P ek A7 b 22 5%
POS 3t BEify W e
Z 16fE T BAL
B 1645 AL
Section B of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1263 Retailing/Office 100 29,000
and the Remaining Portion of Inland T PN E

Lot No. 1263, being Nos. 703 and 705,

Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
JURE R HLBE 126358 BEB A S JUHE A LB 12635%

BREE > RIS JURERE A T 08 703 X 705595

Golf and Leisure BRI NHE

The sales revenue from the golf and leisure business during the year was ARAEF R AE W RER L HE B ET Z 8 E Ik
HK$62.6 million (2007: HK$52.4 million) with a segmental loss of HK$16.3 5 /& # %% 62,600,000 70 ( —FZE L4 : W
million (2007: segmental profit of HK$3.4 million). The construction of 52,400,000 7C) > 43 &K &5 8 # % 16,300,000 7C
additional 9 holes in Sun Valley Golf Resort has been completed and opened (BB 43k A ¥3,400,0000C) °
to golfers in November 2007. The enlarged hotel development plan has been AT UIB 25 /=5 1 5 BR B (BU{EL 84351 0 B O8] A 2 e 2R

approved by the local government. THRELZL, WER _FEXLE+—HH
BT %5 A o AR i B 3 5l
TrBUGHLHE o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d) S0 oI (45)
Golf and Leisure (Cont’d) T RIRL WM ()

In November 2007, the National Commission of Development and Reform ATEELET—H o HF FBE RN ik A
and the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC have jointly announced that % B €& KB AE BB & A > BRIER %
foreign investors are prohibited to take part in golf business in the PRC unless ~E-t4+ - H — HE 2 #ER & > & Q14+
consent has been obtained prior to 1st December, 2007. The joint venture for & & RNIG7E P B 22 Bl & 7 R ERZEHS o R
the Sun Valley Golf Resort in Sanya will expire in 2049 and therefore shall = =5 ATk %5 /5 7 R BRI (IR 4638 2 B &2
not be affected by this new regulation in the foreseeable future. However,  4EH§ i — DU JLAE & > SO0 AT s A
this new regulation had significant impact on the joint venture for the Lotus & 32 IET Bl E B2 28 o SRT - Fh R & M EEAE L
Hill Golf Resort in Guangzhou since its contract period expired in September =1 #f REREBA G EMEZ GHAWE R -F
2007 which had been temporarily extended by further 6 months in order to ~ ZF-L4E LA JEMW - LR EH HAERERE
facilitate the negotiation with the PRC joint venture partner for a practical re-  £& », WZ S AW E G RKZEIIMER6M A > LI
arrangement of the joint venture. In November 2007, the Group entered into ~ f# #t & & /A R A W[ 7 HAL P B P A & 4
agreements to dispose of its entire interest in the Lotus Hill Golf Resort to an " J fF#EATRERT - R _FFLFE+—H > &
associate of the PRC joint venture partner. Simultaneously, the Group: FEECF LB A ENERE S
) B A SHEAE L AT SR R BT 2 A ER A
gt o [F]IRF > ASHE L -

a) remains as a lessee of the golf resort to maintain revenue from guests  a) M 18 R T T R BRI R A 2 AR
for using facilities in the golf resort; DLRBRAC B F 8 o 5% Bk B (R
B P&

b) remains as a partner to the development of villas of saleable area of  b) A 48 R 2 5 T O BR BT A T B
about 23,000 m? within the golf resort; and 18] 75 %9 23,000 J7 Kk 2 7l B2 4% J 2 %
s R

c) has the first right to participate in any new business opportunities  c) A 1= T8 <R BEARRT P A AT 500 o (2
within the golf resort, including property developments. G R) 2 BB -

Details of this transaction have been included in the circular of the Company ~ LF#i A2 G #EE E WM AN T H A —FF N
dated 17th January, 2008. F—A+TLHZERHNA -

Securities Investment [ieiiasy

As part of its treasury management to obtain better return from the surplus  E 5 BB & M 2 — 4 > LI R K B 4 B
cash, the Group has increased its activities in securities investment. During 5 {3 [ #; > AS4E B B W hn BR800 ) -
the year, gross proceeds and segmental profit from securities investment — AS4E B 2 &) > 353 & 4030 2 i f5 s H AL AR
were HK$424.6 million (2007: HK$329.2 million) and HK$59.1 million 433 A 43 Al 4 5 #424,600,00000 ( —F %
(2007: HK$26.8 million) respectively. As at 31st March, 2008, the Group ~ -E 4 : #%329,200,0007C ) M # #59,100,000
had available-for-sale investments and financial assets at fair value through  JC( - FFE-E4E : #%26,800,0007C) © A %
profit or loss in an aggregate sum of HK$106.5 million, mainly comprised of ~ ZF N =H =+—H » A4EEZ a4t H &%

shares listed in Hong Kong and Singapore. G RN TEAERFABRZ CREES
75 Bk 19106,500,000 7T - I B AL S AE
Kownsg b iz ey o

Manufacturing and Trading of Medicine and Health Products B N B B R R

Following the disposal of entire interest in TFH in July 2007, the Group A T -L4E-L A HE R T 4L 2 &FHE R
has discontinued the operation of manufacturing and trading of medicine & > AR EH O & 488 H R N E 5 B L
and health products. The segmental turnover for the year up to the date of — fE#FRE MK - AEEFEHELE M ILZ
disposal was HK$115.7 million (2007: HK$400.6 million) with a pre-tax % ZE%8 £ #E %115,700,0007C ( —EE-L4F -

profit contribution of HK$1.8 million (2007: HK$3.2 million). % 400,600,000 7T ) B BL AT 6 B B R 25 s
¥ 1,800,000 7C ( — & F L 4F - ¥ # 3,200,000
JC) o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d) ()
Financing il

During the year, the Group had interest income from unsecured loans — 4F K] - A 42 [ 2K B M Ui B 45 28 7] 2 SEJE 4
due from associates, convertible bonds, related companies and other loan 8 3 ~ A # B & 5 - A1 B &) K H Ath B
receivables of HK$86.4 million of which HK$31.8 million was included as £ 3k 22 F| B it A % # #86,400,000 7 > H
revenue while the remaining HK$54.6 million was included in other income.  #% ¥ 31,800,000 7T %1 A Wi 25 > i H fifs #& ¢
As at 31st March, 2008, unsecured loans and interest due from associates, 54,600,000 7C Hl 1] A HAth it A o A = FFE )\
debt portion of convertible bonds, unsecured loan and interest due from 4E=H =+—H > AEE IS A 72 #
related companies and other loan receivables of the Group amounted to XM E R LA B ~ Al &5 2 A&
HK$1,077.7 million, HK$51.1 million, HK$58.3 million and HK$243.1 g [ 38 2% 7] 2 S 41K #8068 30 % R B DA K
million respectively. b 8 Wi B K43 Bl 4 s 5 1,077,700,000 7T~ #6
# 51,100,000 7C - ¥ ¥ 58,300,000 7T K #E W
243,100,0007C °

FINANCIAL REVIEW Yo 5 o

During the year, convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of 4 [ » A% 4 #8048 ik 1 247,500,000 7C 2 A] #2 JIX

HK$247.5 million were converted into approximately 483.2 million shares of ~ ZZ 4 J) 58,3 /4 41 483,200,000 & A< 23 & 47y

the Company and the outstanding principal amount of the convertible notes Tt “EFENE=ZH=+—H MK izl

as at 31st March, 2008 was approximately HK$1,394.5 million. B 2 A4 B BRI 4 £ 75 %5 1,394,500,000
o

To further strengthen the Group’s resources, the Company had entered intoa A3 — £ @A L HEH > KA T E 7T K
placing and subscription agreement for the issue of 300,000,000 new shares  # K& 32 # 1 5% > LA %5 47 300,000,000 % 8 %
at HK$0.56 each (“Top-Up Placing”) which was completed in June 2007. i » {E{E& B #0567 ([ M ELE ) > AR
The net proceeds of approximately HK$163 million were retained as general ~ - FE-E /N H 52, o Fr 15 2 T8 5 58 40 i
working capital. 163,000,0007G L A B VE— 8 g 4 o

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with regard to A< 42 [ it H: 45 B S50 B 40 86 1R A 6 R B 5 I
its overall business operations. In addition to the above convertible note 3 o B& I %t A #6 % 22 E A B A > AREE
payables, a variety of credit facilities is maintained so as to meet its working ~ #EFF Z HE B E > DIEST HEEE &0

capital requirements. o

During the year, the Group has obtained additional bank loans of 4 & > AS4E [ £ BUA5 48 1 R AT B8 3k 4 s
approximately HK$144 million to partially finance the acquisition of 144,000,000 7 - 1 % Uit i ¥R 19 4 2 2 34
properties in Macau. As at 31st March, 2008, total borrowings from financial Rl & - R " ZFZNE=ZA=+—H > &
institutions amounted to HK$153.6 million, of which HK$39.6 million was & ## ft & 4848 4 ¥ #153,600,0007C > & ik
repayable after one year. The net gearing ratio of the Group, calculated with 39,600,000 7 /1§ A — B (H® o N - FFE
reference to the bank and other borrowings of HK$153.6 million and the fair /\4E=H =+—H » A4EBZ FEEAMEL
value of the liability component of convertible note payables of HK$1,243.8 R 506> W - FELE=H=1+—H 5
million, offsetting with the pledged bank deposits and the bank and cash  0.747 iV - W B 51 M SR AT B HoAth £ &
balances of HK$294.9 million, and the Group’s shareholders’ funds of % ¥ 153,600,000 7C J 7] #2 JI ZZ 4% & £+ 3k 6
HK$1,843 million, was 0.6 as at 31st March, 2008, showing some decreases £ & % 73 2 23 V-1 #& % 1,243,800,000 7T > f7
from 0.74 as at 31st March, 2007. HE B T S SR 47 77 3K B SR AT I B 4 45 B
#5294,900,000 7G Lk B A 42 ] i R 4 v T
1,843,000,0007T ©



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
i

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d) S5 o (A7)

About HK$120.4 million of the borrowings from financial institutions were % ¥ ¥ 120,400,000 7C 2 4 il 4 R A1 68 )% 42 17
interest-bearing with variable rates while interest of the remaining balance — B A ZFHE > W T A9 K H 4 45 ik #4252 A
was calculated on fixed rate. The management anticipates that interest rate R FFE o & M JB TH R E A T35 2 B 0 4k 45
remains stable in the capital market and therefore no hedge is to be made  $Z & - W # 28 Wi AT 4] & 1 A 2R 5 Bh 75
against any unfavourable fluctuation in interest rate. Most of the assets and ' o AL FE K F/EE L ABEH UK - A
liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi [ ¥ M I P ¥ 51(H > R 5 > AL R
and Macau Pataca, and hence the Directors considered that the Group was not 4 [ 3 {T-{n] 55 A [fE < Ja [z

subject to any material adverse exchange rate exposure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND  {g B A% ~ 55 W 808 B 0 BB 513

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31st March, 2008, the number of employees of the Group was 1,003 R "FFENE=H=+—H > KEBZEE
(2007: 1,726). Employees are remunerated according to their qualifications — A#41,003 A ( FFE-E4E 1,726 \) o AR5
and experience, job nature and performance, under the pay scales aligned [ B T2 & & K &85 - TAEMEE M ERE L
with market conditions. Other benefits to employees include medical, 11735 & B 1% I 7% 2 BN 58 - HMh g B 48
insurance cover and retirement schemes. On 15th August, 2006 and 27th  FIJ £ 5 B8 ~ (R b FOBAKFHE] o i &N
July, 2007, the Company had granted share options with an exercise priceof HF/N\HTAH K _“FEFELHFLH _-+LtH-
HKS$0.50 per share and HK$0.67 per share respectively, to certain directors, ~ AR\ R MRER ~FF —4E /N A N HEHK
senior management and employees of the Group pursuant to the terms and 2 W BORE =131 2 63k Rl > 1A T 5
conditions of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 26th =&k & B A B MR B 7 Bl 3% H 45 I A7 1 18
August, 2002. H0.500 K s 50,670 2 I IR -

OUTLOOK R

In September 2007, the name of the Company has been changed from Macau A “FEZ-L4ENA » AN F LM H WP HER
Prime Properties Holdings Limited to ITC Properties Group Limited so as i & & [ 5 FR 2\ 7] oi 2 i of b 5 42 [ A PR 2
to reflect that in addition to Macau being a major geographical market, the &) > D5z B A< 42 [ 2 =5 %5 4th daf, 17 355 AN PR 7 1R
Group has considerable investments in the PRC and the interests of ITC [ > JRE A P EIME H Al E > DL LR
Corporation Limited in the Group. SR EA R RA AL 2 HEAR o

Further to the real growth in the GDP of 16.6% recorded in full year 2006, [ 2 A & UEAE — T T NELERB16.6%
the GDPs of Macau for the full year 2007 further accelerated with a strong R FEWM EE » T LEEEMFHIGE
real growth of 27.3%. Unemployment rate remains low at around 3.1% with ~ —2bHU527.3% @ G R o RERENRK3.1%
enviable increases in household income which drives the local demand for ~ Z AK/KF > FEEW AR TE - 2T 75
better living condition. Most of the properties recently put on the market ~ ABMERATEEREE 2 TR o WK HA T
are well received with wide attraction to the international investors. As a 35 DB 2 ¥ E WS BB EE 2 ERE -
result, the Macau property market has been strong in all sectors, including ~ FIt - &Y ETIHHEF RS > 4
residential, shops, office and hotels. The opening of Venetian Macao Resort  #E{EE ~ W&l ~ WA ML o WP e i
Hotel, the Crown Macau, the MGM Grand Macau, the convention and A JFERATHEE - 2wE)E - MM EEHE
exhibition facilities as well as scheduled opening of more exciting leisure B - &k MR E R MERZ > HEt#IREL
and entertainment facilities stage the area in Cotai Strip, Macau as an  EL4% (0 2 T8 M S 44586 - 2 W 1% ok 40k
international focal spot. The Group’s investment in the luxury and large- K78 B & 2 ER A2 B o A4 4% & it I k406
scale residential development over the Concordia Land, superiorly located at K 5 g i 458 i 3 Bt B A= 1= 3h 22 KR S 2 %%
the south end of Cotai Strip, enjoys a magnificent view of Venetian Macao  JEH > A 44 I [ B8 it A BB 5 e =
Resort Hotel and other surrounding deluxe entertainment developments. The — fth JH 72 St 2R 4L 28 BIE H 2 B R - A%
Group believes that once this development is marketed for pre-sale, it willbe ~ EIA{E > — HZ e BIEH I tHEE > 0
one of the most popular luxury residential projects in Macau. BMMBEZENZEETHAZ — -
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OUTLOOK (Cont’d) WeR ()

After the termination and cancellation of the acquisition of an effective & [ FHH Wl A L 15 K B8 AL 44355 2 25%
25% in the Shanghai Tianma Country Club, the Group will focus on the B FXHELS £ - AL B4 Fp BREE( Y = ER AL
development of leisure facilities including hotels within Sun Valley Golf % /= i < BR B (B AEL 44358 2 14 P81 o pta (0455 ¥
Resort in Sanya, where is one of the most preferred spot for vacation within i) » =55 /% o Bl Bl (R AR AR b 2 — o

the PRC.

The Group has been closely studying the property market in Vietnam to ~ AREH — HH VB YETE > BoRTE

explore lucrative investment opportunities in light of the current market — HiH Hi A5 &M 35 R4 Al o] B 22 # &

slump. The Group has targeted and touched base with certain party in relation [ # - AEHE 8 E —WEA R HEHATH 5

to a developable site of about 1 sq. kilometre in Greater Ho Chi Minh City to ~ — -7/~ B 2 n] it 8§ @ 1+ #th » 3F B35 F A0

be developed into residential houses and units with amenity facilities. AN T8 L R AETRE R KN
D) J% R 45 -

In June 2008, the Company proposes to raise HK$650.1 million before A “&FE/N4ERNH » AN A ERIREGHE —
expenses by way of the rights issue of 9,286,554,078 rights shares (with A = B AL B By (LA K e i+ A%
warrants) at a subscription price of HK$0.07 per rights share on the basis  {H 5% I% {73 Uk 26 VO 173 58 B Al ) =2 B (LA ([ {3
of three rights shares (with warrants in the proportion of four warrants for % |) - @ BB B 50,07 0 2 5B
every fifteen rights shares subscribed) for every share held (the “Rights 18 LA {3t B J7 288 479,286,554,078 A% {4t A B 173
Issue”). The net proceeds from the Rights Issue and the exercise of the (% [F] 58 B HE#5 ) 2241 49 1k 5 650,100,000 75 2
warrants are intended to be used (i) as a general working capital of the Group &4 (FUBRBH S HT) o HERE AT E R BEHE RS 22
for its existing business; and (ii) for possible repurchase of the convertible  Fff§FIEF B AEO AR LB A EBEZ —
notes (other than those held by the respective subsidiaries and/or associate — fRAE & 4 5 (i) o] BE M [ A\ R 8847 2 v]
of ITC Corporation Limited, Hanny Holdings Limited and a director of the — #2 /it Z29E R EL4E i et L4 B A IR A A

Company) issued by the Company; and (iii) future acquisitions. The details B HAH RA 7] AN R EF K HZ B
of the Rights Issue have been disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24th /A &) M/ SiBF & AR T EA &) 5 M) R 3K
June, 2008. W I o I R DR AR R —FE

JNAEZS H AT H 238 K R % o

In the recent years, the Group has proactively enlarged its portfolio of — #T4F » AREEH — H B BIERM L EFEZ Y
property investments by acquiring property interests in Macau and Hong 2 g5 (AL A AL T oth 2 = ERE 25 ) F i 58
Kong including the aspiring substantial interest in Concordia Land. In B HMEL GG - IAb - AEE— HHiE
addition, the Group has on one hand extended its business to the PRC market  Bf %% H: = #F e BR BB 1R 22 B8 7 TR 4 26 %
by developing quality leisure properties within its golf resorts while on the ~HZEFEAEFE T > 5 — H I EHRE
other hand, streamlined its operations by disposing the non-core businesses ‘& B& 2 K {8 22 5 40 5B 2 FFAZ 0 2L 05 LUK 6
including the medicine and health products segment. The management of the — #5#E o ARLEEHFHEAE O E R EEE 0]
Group is confident that these investments will contribute substantial rewards % 1 3€ /£ A< 45 [ 47 2& 8k 0] iz o AS 45 [ 6
to the Group in the coming years. Continuing with the same strategy, the  ZEAEAH[R] SR MG > AR ~ R - F s AT
Group will be looking for new opportunities in Macau, the PRC, Hong Kong i [ S 5K Bt & > Bk g R HBEY £ &%
and the surrounding area with a view to expanding its investments in quality =~ & °

properties.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS B

As at 31st March, 2008, general credit facilities granted to the Group by A “EZ/NE=ZHA=+—H > 17 LB

banks and financial institutions were secured by pledges of the Group’s & [n] 7 £ B #7 i 22 — A5 S48 T LA AS 42 H]

property held for sale in an aggregate value of approximately HK$231.8 44 (H #) ik % 231,800,000 0 2 &4 2 -

million, bank balances of HK$41.3 million, and financial assets at fair value  41,300,0007C 2 $R4T 44 I 415 11,800,000 70

through profit or loss of approximately HK$1.8 million. A TESIR K F AR 45 2 & R E E R
j?ﬁfl o
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ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED £ 1 7 45 4 45 FiL 4\ #]

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year, the Company had issued a total of 483,203,485 shares
upon conversion of convertible notes including 348,917,775 shares at
the conversion price of HK$0.44 per share and 134,285,710 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.70 per share. In addition, the Company had issued
300,000,000 new shares at the price of HK$0.56 per share by way of Top-Up
Placing on 1st June, 2007.

As at 31st March, 2008, there were 3,095,518,026 shares in issue and a total
of outstanding share options of 90,500,000 shares including 26,800,000
shares at an exercise price of HK$0.50 per share and 63,700,000 shares at an
exercise price of HK$0.67 per share. Save as disclosed above, there was no
movement in the issued share capital during the year.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the
shareholders for their support, to the management and staff for their
dedicated efforts and to our client, consultants and partners for all their
valuable assistance offered during this past year.

Cheung Hon Kit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 4th July, 2008
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
HHENRAEA B EE

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

DIRECTORS Wy

Executive Directors BITHES

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 54, joined the Company as Chairman in April SR ® B4 > 545% - R FFTHEMA
2005 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated A A AN £ KA N AL X ME AR 2
from the University of London with a bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Cheung ~ #E 5 o i H E RN mBOKE > 57 L2 2+
has over 30 years of experience in real estate development, property  Z:{ o 5RIEA AL E BFE - WERE LA
investment and corporate finance, and has worked in key executive positions 2 il & J5 T & i = + 4 48 B o B % A F ik
in various leading property development companies in Hong Kong. He is the £ [ B4 E {7 (W £ B B A FEL £ E
managing director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (01189.HK), an 417 BUREES o 1 4 K % ik e (%) B RA 7
executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (00372.HK), an independent  (01189.HK) 2 & 45 JA 4G Ffl ~ flipt D2 @A
non-executive director of International Entertainment Corporation FR 28 W (00372.HK) 2 BLATH 2 ~ BRI 44
(08118.HK) and Future Bright Holdings Limited (formerly known as  FR/A & (08118.HK) M ££ 5 45 H A PR A &) (i A
Innovo Leisure Recreation Holdings Limited) (00703.HK). Mr. Cheung 2357 i 44 ¥ B A FRZA 7]) (00703.HK) 2 %8 57 IF
previously held directorships as an executive director of PYI Corporation S fTE# I - 5RIpA % A AL HE £ EA BR A 7 (7]
Limited (formerly known as Paul Y. — ITC Construction Holdings Limited)  F5{f 3 fH 46 3 58 45 B 45 R 7)) (00498.HK) 2
(00498 .HK) (retired on 8th September, 2005) and a non-executive director of ~ FITE H (FA T T HAEJLA /\ HIBAT) K ds
Hanny Holdings Limited (00275.HK) (retired on 1st September, 2005) and B4 [H 4 FR /2 7(00275.HK) 2 JE .47 3 5+ (7
an independent non-executive director of Towngas China Company Limited ~ —ZTEH4ESLH — HIBT) M EREE R A
(formerly known as Panva Gas Holdings Limited) (01083.HK) (resigned on &) ( Bij # A VLA 5 3% B A FR A7) (01083.HK)
23rd May, 2007). ZESLFHATER (R _EELELA =

HEHE) o

Mr. Chan Fut Yan, aged 54, joined the Company as Managing Director in BB B4 > 545% » R FFZHLEN A MA
April 2005 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is also /5 7 /\ ) # 25 40 68 ] ] AR N 6] 22 % B 2 )
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has Z #ZF - il AR N A FHFMEE G M E -

over 35 years of experience in the local construction field specialising in site B /5 A A A h s S 2 ff i — | L AF 48 8% > &
supervision, planning of works and progress monitoring. He is an executive V£ i BB ~ TRE SR & Mo Ty B
director of ITC Corporation Limited (00372.HK). Mr. Chan previously held ~ 1F o 5 /% i £ 4 3 4 [H A BR 2 7] (00372.HK)
directorship as an executive director of PYI Corporation Limited (formerly 2 $f7# 3 - BRI AN AR ELFH AR
known as Paul Y. — ITC Construction Holdings Limited) (00498 HK) (retired /A 7] (A MR E ML E R EFHHAR A A)
on 8th September, 2005). (00498 HK) Z BT #E & (R —FFELFILAN

HABAT) -

Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley, aged 50, joined the Company in 2006 ¥ & B &4 > 505% - N “FEANEMARL
and is now the Deputy Managing Director and an Executive Director of the &) » Bl A AN\ & Bl # ALK B MAT H F -
Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for overseeing the property development — #504E B HE M ARLEEH Z VL3R R E -
and investment of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries IR A AN T L FZME AT 2 #EH o &It
of the Company. Mr. Wong holds an Honours Degree in civil engineering #5455 B 2 fif 5 K& - K TR 4L 2B |
awarded by the University of Manchester, U.K. and a Master of Science 7 ¥k H SC K £ A 15 PR ELAE - B4 47 o 1% 5 s
degree in finance awarded by the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He — LiEZffi€2 €& 8 - H ik ah M52 TREA - W
is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered — Y455 3 TREM - B4 LR TRE R &4
Professional Engineer in Hong Kong, a Chartered Professional Engineer 1 LEEA Nk HFH M ETHEGEEGH - &
of Australia, a UK. Chartered Civil and Structural Engineer and a Fellow 5% IR 2 MR 98 7 vk 1 401048 1 23 B e SR W b 191 48
Member of the Hong Kong Institution of Real Estate Administration. Mr. 34 i 22 &5 s TAZ R M 5@ v] A (LARRH) o
Wong is also a Registered Structural Engineer and Authorised Person  {§ A EEERKF - BESE - HHEH - %
(Engineer) registered under section 3 of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter — %§ /B K & P J5 T #E A 3 — /S 4856 o w4k
123 of the Laws of Hong Kong). He has over 26 years of experience in the A= % 4% T i 1 4 3 4 [H A BR 2 7] (00372.HK)
field of design, construction, project management, property development and 2 B r FERATE R () “TENHE LA +=H
management. Mr. Wong previously held directorship as an independent non-  #R4T) o

executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (00372.HK) (retired on 13th

September, 2006).
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ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 4 #2545 45 FR A 7]

DIRECTORS (Cont'd) e (4)
Executive Directors (Cont’d) MiTESE)

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, aged 42, joined the Company in 2005 and is now  JREBEEL > 425 » R -FEZLEMAARL
an Executive Director and the Qualified Accountant of the Company. Mr. @ > Bl AN A MATEE RS ER G -
Cheung is responsible for the finance and accounting functions of the 3R/ & BEALE B 2 WA Es L &5t LAE o MR
Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. A A XTI LZEMB AR 2 EF - RILATEH
Cheung has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial ¥ ~ €&t & BB & By W kS8 — 4855 -
management. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting. Mr. Cheung is a 1% {8 & 5HE L 247 o 3R & F ik & s
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The /A ~ 75 FrAh 0 & K L B A r Rl 22
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered fTHLABAGZ &5 -

Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David, aged 54, joined the Company in 2006 and is B R &4 > 545% > R FENEMAARL
now an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is also a director of @] > Bl AR N R HAITESE o BIRAETFHEARLN
various subsidiaries of the Company and he is responsible for the leisure and 7 Z KM B AR ZEFE > W& FEAREBEEF
golf operations in the People’s Republic of China. He graduated from the % A R I ATER 2 74 T Ko 2 T R BRZE TS MR
University of Birmingham with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.  ZEMMAHB KE » HH T AR TRE () -
Lai has over 29 years of experience in the construction field and has worked 18 4 A 78 @ 28 2678 — + JLAE 8 BR > I w0
for several international construction companies at a senior managerial 1T 22 [ ERIBR R\ R 2 B 4 B BRI AL o
position.

Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl, aged 37, joined the Company as an Executive B MIE4 > 375 > R -FZE-LELAMA
Director in May 2007 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. AN\ &) A#MATEHEE » IRAARNE L FHE LA
He is responsible for its real estate acquisitions and property development & Z &34 o f{ & & #E AR ILAE ([ HE )
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. Ma holds a bachelor’s = Hb & U i W 2E 55 8 - BB e E A Lo e
degree in Business Administration and a Master’s degree in Finance. He is &2 B [ BABSAE 824 - (AR G
also a holder of AIMR Certified Financial Analyst. Mr. Ma has over 15 years  BEHF 5% o & 2 45 5 WA B 0 A b o 08 oA i 4R
of experience in banking industry and property development in the PRC. 47 R B ¥ 5 R + H4FE & - A
Since 1998, he has been involved in SOE restructuring and acquisitions, — — JLJL/\4E > 157 o B 3= BT 2 B A 1>
projects financing and real estate investments in major cities of the PRC.  ZEE A Uil - HHRBLE K S ERE - 1
He has successfully invested and managed several property deals for private I A AR EERE R EM LMY EE
investors including a villa project in Beijing, a vineyard property in Jiangsu BRI Z AIEEIEE ~ L& Z E 4 EY
Province and office developments in Guangdong Province. Mr. Ma is very DI M E R E 2 B EMTEE - ARt
active in the property sector in Beijing and is currently a standing member of 3% 2 1 7 5 IF H 1% B2 K 7 25 b 5T T 7 ek [

Beijing Xicheng District China’s People Consultative Committee. hHEBEE -
Independent Non-executive Directors B BT E S

Mr. Qiao Xiaodong, aged 50, joined the Company as Vice Chairman and an ~ §/PR 4 > 505% - N T /NE_HMA
Independence Non-executive Director in February 2008. He is also a member 7/ &) /& Bl 22 i 2 s FEMATE S o 1R B
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor’s degree ~ AN\ R ZE B &2 W 8 - HioEHEHB
in Science and also a bachelor’s degree in Business and Administration 2 K7 %% JIf Jg¥, i £2 b i L P 45 B B2 B0y o
from Norwegian School of Management. He graduated from the Beijing 43R AL B T K& o« — JUILEEEH)
University of Science and Technology. In the early 1990s, Mr. Qiao joined ] » HioAZERPERBERE HRERA &
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade as a Patent Attorney, — HATEFCELA > K% H AT b B 4% 1l s (&
and the managing director of China Technology Trade (H.K.) Ltd. He has  #) AR AR 2 EHMLH - A— L L bHE
been engaged in real estate business in the People’s Republic of China since % > it #E A RILAE K F = E 473 -
1997. Mr. Qiao was the chairman and the director in several real estate &5 EH LT BFE EE M A FNES
development companies. 1 RE#EFIT -
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DIRECTORS (Cont’d) W (4)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont’d) B EPTE R ()

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 45, joined the Company as an  E&MELE > 455 » R-FEZ=FHLAMA
Independent Non-executive Director in May 2003. He is also the chairman 77\ &) & W37 JE BHATH S o IR B AL 7l 5F
of both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the MZEBEGNHFMEE G T - TRAEE
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of — #& st A S ER & H ~ LB ARG
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Fi/A & & HE & 8 MBS e iliA &
Accountants and an associate member of The Chartered Institute of & 8 o {¥EREE - FELNENFT T E
Management Accountants. He has over 21 years of experience in accounting B —F et R EEMHEE - Tk
and corporate finance gained in property development, construction and A= /% b5 4 B A FR 2\ ] (00701.HK) Z $1.17
manufacturing companies. Mr. Wong is an executive director of CNT Group &

Limited (00701.HK).

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 60, joined the Company as an Independent 3353564 > 60 » R -FE—FE+HAMA
Non-executive Director in October 2001. He is also a member of both the A\ &) A ML IE AT HE o 1O A AN\ ) 28
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. ¥ Z B & KHFMES &2 M B - LA E T
Kwok has been a marketing manager in an international company engaging T — R R EXF W ETHRALAZBEBE LA Z
in the design of business administration system. He has over 25 years of T 355 &8 2 o 1 7F f By K 4% & £ 75 5 10 A8 i@
experience in the insurance and investment business, principally in the senior ~ .+ &5 - HASHEHAE - EHA
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an independent ~ }i A% 22 %% SEBKAH o 58 g A /A & 9L 4E [ 47 [R
non-executive director of Hanny Holdings Limited (00275.HK) and Wing /A &) (00275.HK) f 7Kk % Jifg % (35 i) A FR 2 7
On Travel (Holdings) Limited (01189.HK). He previously held directorship ~ (01189.HK)Z 8 7. JE AT 25 o 188 /5 ok
as an executive director of China Strategic Holdings Limited (00235.HK) % [E A R/ F(00235.HK) Z ST E S (h %
(resigned on 7th April, 2008). Z\AEM AL HEHE) -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT WA PLA R

Ms. Yan Ha Hung, Loucia, aged 38, is the General Manager (Corporate  HFiUL/MIL > 3855% » ANME [ 2 JAKEHE (D ¥H
Services) and the Company Secretary of the Group. Ms. Yan is also a  #5) &/ AR o Pr/MHEIRAA A 7 2 KB
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She holds a master’s degree A 7] Z I o 545 T 5% & FAH 22107 « Ifr
in business administration. Ms. Yan is an Associate Member of both The /N 7 7 i 45 FF A0 5 & K 9 B A i B 2 I
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered fTHRABA G2 & H - R _FEZHELAM
Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the Group in July 2005, she ~ AALEF] > % A EFE LHTARTZA
was the company secretary of certain listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. RIS o r/NH RN A 5 B2 f vk A 385 )5 T
Yan has over 14 years of experience in company secretarial and legal affairs.  F5%81 + V054 485§ -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEHEHREH

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED % Hh 25 45 |8 45 FR A w]

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated HHEHIWIREARERRE " FZZNE=H
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008. = — B R A AL LA M R
o HATEE o

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME WA AR

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general meeting of the ~ RIEARNF R " FE-LENLA + - HETZ
Company held on 12th September, 2007 and upon the approval from the — X H4FAI K EE B Fr Pl > RIEH
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda having been obtained, the name of the — FE3E/N Al 3 MR B HER - AA R Z &R
Company was changed from Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited to . FH Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited
ITC Properties Group Limited with effect from 12th September, 2007. The & % ITC Properties Group Limited > & = &
registration of the name of the Company in Hong Kong was also changed ~ E-t4FE LA + = H AR o KF A R ME
from Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited to ITC Properties Group  jERHL#EfE » RN RN F 2 1ML MIR ik
Limited upon the approval from the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong ~ Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited ¥ /£
having been obtained. The new Chinese name of £ +f i 7 45 [ 7 BR /4  ITC Properties Group Limited ° 752 5 € R 44
7] was adopted to replace 1[4 7% Hi 7 SE M 45 FR/A 7 for identification  fH4% b 75 45 MG PR 28 & £ 0 X4 F% > B

purpose only. PR ZR R R A IR A A DMERERRA -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES R

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of ~ AN\ &) J5— GG A R o ALE 2 T
the Group are property development and investment in Macau, the People’s 5/ iR IR ~ th e A RILAE ([ ) M &
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong, golf resort and leisure WY E B R M HE > NP BEKSEHT K
operations in the PRC, securities investment and loan financing services. The — ER BE BT K Tl 6845 75~ 5 E L ERK
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 55 to the consolidated il &R B - H EEME A 5 2 EH RN &GS

financial statements. B R KB ESS o

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION RHB IR

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008 are set outin ~ AEFHREE " FEZNE=H=+—H IL4E
the consolidated income statement on pages 48 and 49. 2 FEARHN A8 A9 H AR R -

No dividend was paid during the year. The directors do not recommend the — 74 MR E - EHEAERIRMSEE

payment of a dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2008. CEF)NFEZA=FT—HIEFEZRE -
FINANCIAL SUMMARY g7 R

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five 7S 8 [ 2 T AR BA B4R 2 2648 - BE M A
financial years is set out on page 167. BRI RE 167H -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Wk ~ BB Bt

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group 78 H R N 2 W) 2 - W 2 skt s B b i
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.  #{ it 455 BB IR E M 2116 ©

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES B3/

Particulars of the Group’s principal properties at 31st March, 2008 are setout ~ AREMH R —“FEZNFE=A=+—HZEEY
on page 168. BN H168H ©

SHARE CAPITAL e A

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are 78 23 & jR4F A 2 B A 88 B 5 1% 0 iR 45 & B 76
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. R MFE43 -
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as
at 31st March, 2008 comprised the accumulated profits of HK$61,160,000
(2007: HK$28,938,000).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Fut Yan (Managing Director)
Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit
Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl
(appointed on 30th May, 2007)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman (Deputy Chairman)
(retired on 12th September, 2007)

Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon
(retired on 12th September, 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Qiao Xiaodong (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 5th February, 2008)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Chui Sai Cheong
(resigned on 5th February, 2008)

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Qiao Xiaodong,
an independent non-executive director, being appointed by the board of
directors (the “Board”) to fill a casual vacancy after the last general meeting
of the Company, shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”). Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) and the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Mr.
Chan Fut Yan, both executive directors, and Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, an
independent non-executive director, will retire at the AGM by rotation. All
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM. Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley, Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, Mr. Lai Tsan
Tung, David and Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl, all executive directors, and Mr.
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, an independent non-executive director, will continue in
office for the ensuing year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont’d)
None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each non-executive director and independent non-
executive director appointed from time to time is fixed with the terms of
office subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
requirements of code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the Code which states
that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election and that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should
be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specified
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years, subject to the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

As at 31st March, 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company and/or their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and convertible notes of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND &35 % 847 B A R By ~ R B BE £y 2 v
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND  #Jit ™55 > b3k Ry £y (4%)
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

Long position e
(i) Interests in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (1) AR 2 ] B T (H 7 °0.01 70 2 %
JRZ e
Approximate
Number of percentage of
issued the issued
ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
Name of director Capacity ) EcAaR: I LRy iR A[R B8BLT
WYLk H 5% W A JBe AL T 43 b
(%)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit Beneficial owner 15,000,000 0.48
(“Mr. Cheung”) HisA N
SREGESEAE (ToRAEA D)
(ii) Convertible notes of the Company (ii) ENACTIL 3 &
Number of
underlying
shares under Approximate
convertible notes percentage of
Amount of of the Company the issued
convertible R4 share capital
notes W P et g of the Company
Name of director Capacity LE 33853 HTFZHB fiAn d T
WYLk H 55 #H ety ¥ H JBeABEL T 43 b
(HKS) (%)
(HE5)
Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, Interest of controlled 17,476,177 39,718,584 1.28
David (“Mr. Lai”) corporation (Note)
MRS (T A D) ZHE A (Hfat)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

Long position (Cont’d)
(ii) Convertible notes of the Company (Cont’d)

Note:  Mr. Lai, an executive director of the Company, was deemed to be
interested in 39,718,584 underlying shares in respect of a principal
amount of HK$17,476,177 zero coupon convertible notes due 2010
issued by the Company on 8th June, 2006 at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.44 per share held by Green Label Investments
Limited (“Green Label”) by virtue of his beneficial interest in the

entire issued share capital of Green Label.

(iii)  Interests in the share options of the Company

Name of director

EPA

Mr. Cheung
Rk

Mr. Chan Fut Yan
(“Mr. Chan”)

BRUB RS
(B D)

Date of grant
fiHAM

15th August, 2006
“EEAENATER

27th July, 2007
SEELFLAT LN

15th August, 2006
“FENEAATERR

27th July, 2007
SEELFLAT N

Option period
TR

15th August, 2006 —
14th August, 2008
ZEENENATIRE
ZFFNEAR A

2Tth July, 2007 —
26th July, 2011

“ERFUFLACSHEAE
S 2y |

15th August, 2006 —
14th August, 2008
“ELRNEARTRAE
“EENEAATHA

27th July, 2007 —
26th July, 2011
SETUFEASH AR
B Ay
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R AT BN FOR By > A BBy B v
BB R % B R ()

i ()
(i) AL EZ AT R ()
BEE - BRA S ABATEF BB ERE

Green Label Investments Limited
(I Green Label J) 4= ¥ B 88 17 B A&
ZE WML o 5 R A
A A ZREENFENANH B
1T T Green Label 75 4x 4z %8 /4 U5 ¢
17,476,177 7014 —F —ZAEF ] 2
2 B AT 00 R SR T 5 230,718,584
AR BRI Ay 2 HERS > VISR F
R 0.447T -

(i) AL AR fE s

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Exercise Number share capital

price of share of the Company

per share options AR AW B AT

AT T TR B A I

(HK$) (%)
(H%)

0.50 10,000,000 032

0.67 12,000,000 039

050 6,000,000 0.19

0.67 7,000,000 023
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND &35 % 847 B A R By ~ R B BE £y 2 v

s RpEE

SEELELA N

26th July, 2011
SERLELAHLE
“F— LA AR
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SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND  #)Bt 595 2 Bii5 Ko R AT (4%
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)
Long position (Cont’d) i ()
(iii)  Interests in the share options of the Company (Cont’d) (i) LA RS s ( )
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Exercise Number share capital
price of share of the Company
Name of director Date of grant Option period per share options AR BB 1T
L2134 ghnm LERE BERATHER B hE S H AR A
(HKS) (%)
(&4
Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, 15th August, 2006 15th August, 2006 — 0.50 2,000,000 0.06
Stanley ZEEAFENATHA 14th August, 2008
HRERE ZEERE TR
ZFENE)\HAIH
27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 3,000,000 0.10
“EZLELAC TR 26th July, 2011
“EFLELACT AR
“E—EEAZHAH
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit 15th August, 2006 15th August, 2006 — 050 2,000,000 0.06
b S “EENEAATRR 14th August, 2008
ZEEANENATIRE
ZEENE)\HAIH
27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 5,000,000 0.16
“EZLELAZ TR 26th July, 2011
“EFLELACT AR
“E—EEAZHAH
Mr. Lai 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 3,000,000 0.10
Bt ZEFEFLAZTEA 26th July, 2011
“EFLELACT AR
“E—EEAZHAH
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 9,000,000 0.29
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

Long position (Cont’d)

(iii)  Interests in the share options of the Company (Cont’d)

R AT BN FOR By > A BBy B v
BB R % B R ()

YR (A7)
(iii) WL AR s (A

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Exercise Number share capital
price of share of the Company
Name of director Date of grant Option period per share options AR BB 1T
21354 AL LEE BT L TR BRI 2 I
(HKS) (%)
(&)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin  15th August, 2006 15th August, 2006 — 0.50 1,500,000 0.05
(“Mr. Wong”) ZEEAENATHA 14th August, 2008
TEREE “EEREANTERE
([E5EE)) “EENENTNH
27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 1,500,000 0.05
“EZLFELAC TR 26th July, 2011
“EFLELAC AR
“F——HLAZtAA
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 — 0.67 1,500,000 0.05
E R ZEFLFLAZTEA 26th July, 2011
e %8 v s ey o
“F——HLAZtAA
63,500,000

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or convertible notes of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required the notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which any such director or chief executive was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which were required
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 26th August, 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”). Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

2002 Scheme
20024

Directors

%

Former Directors

[IEE

Employees
&8

Other participants
Hhsak

ZIN

Total
it

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 27th July,
2007, the date of grant of the options under the 2002 Scheme, was HK$0.66.

Date of grant
ghum

15.8.2006
“REAEAA TR

2772007
ee S ot e

15.82006
“EEANEARTHA

2172007
“FRLELAZ TR

15.8.2006
“REAEAA TR

2772007
e e S ot e

15.82006
“EENEARTHA

2172007
SRRLELAHER

Option period
WM

15.8.2006 to 14.8.2008
“EEANENATHRE
ZEENEAATIEA
2772007 10 26.7.2011
“EFLHELAC TR
“E——ELAZ AR
15.8.2006 to 14.8.2008
“EENEAATLER
ZEENEAATIEA
2772007 0 26.7.2011
TEERLELR TR
e 2 ) I Y
15.8.2006 to 14.8.2008
“EEANENATHRE
ZEENEAATIEA
2772007 10 26.7.2011
“EFLHELAC TR
“E——FLAZ AR
15.8.2006 to 14.8.2008
“EENEAATLER
ZEENENATEA
2772007 0 26.7.2011
TEERLHELR TR
e 2 I Y

Exercise

price

per share

AR
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(HKS)

(1)

050

0.67

050

0.67

050

0.67

050

0.67

Yo B (47)

Number of share options of the Company

R A T BORE A 2 S )

AATRBHERH
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Cancelled at
1.4.2007 during during during 31.3.2008
REZRLE the year the year theyear R FENE
MH-R 4R 4R R ZHE-H
WAL Bl Tl il R
21,500,000 - - - 21,500,000
- 42,000,000 - - 42,000,000
6,000,000 - - (4,500,000 1,500,000
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
- 15,200,000 - - 15,200,000
2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
31,300,00 63,700,000 - (4,500,000) 90,500,000

HEH0.667C ©

2T RZELEELHA = H (20025 #
P ARE B ) A > A BB 2 T
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
Interests of directors of the Company in competing businesses as at 31st
March, 2008 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing

YR B TR MR
AOERFNEZH=Z4—H > ARFEHEFR
LTS A ZURYE B T RUIZES 101 i

Rules were as follows: ZHERS IR
Nature of
Name of director Name of company competing business Nature of interest
HAREH Lk B EBR B YRR
Mr. Cheung Wing On Travel (Holdings) Property business and As the managing director
RS Limited and its subsidiaries hotel operation in TERE AR
TR fR R () A FRA 7 K Hong Kong and the PRC
BNy Pl s L rh ) S S
S8
China Development Limited Property investment As a director and
2 R AT IR R in Hong Kong shareholder
Y ERE ((FE T
Artnos Limited Property investment As a director and
in Hong Kong shareholder
Co-Forward Development Ltd. Property investment As a director and
B A BR AT in Hong Kong shareholder
EHEYERE YRRy 5 RBOR
Orient Centre Limited Property investment As a shareholder
in Hong Kong 1E £ B3R
Super Time Limited Property investment As a director and
in Hong Kong shareholder
Asia City Holdings Ltd. Property investment As a director and
in Hong Kong shareholder
EHEYERE Ve Ry 5 RBOR
Supreme Best Ltd. Property investment As a shareholder
in Hong Kong 1E £ B3R
Orient Holdings Limited Property investment As a director and
LA BRA A in Hong Kong shareholder
Mr. Wong CNT Group Limited and Property investment and As an executive director
Tt its subsidiaries development in Hong Kong VEREATHEF
g EA R W K and the PRC
BNy Pl T B B R R
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (Cont’d) HHR B TFRB AR ()

Mr. Cheung is the Chairman of the Company who is principally responsible 3R 554 A AN T £/ > F & &AL BRI
for the Group’s strategic planning and management of the operations of the i #1| & & F 2 F € /F o i 2 W Bl 2 i 4
Board. His role is clearly separated from that of the Managing Director, Mr.  £% 3 [ 5 A= 2 BHS 75 i &1 40 > BROCAE R 2
Chan, who is principally responsible for the Group’s operations and business £ B A< 4 [8] 5 48}y 2EW5 88 R o B JE AT =
development. Mr. Wong, being an independent non-executive director, does 5 £ e WS BIA L H H & -

not participate in the daily management of the Group.

In addition, any significant business decision of the Group is to be b4 » AEBET(TE R EBH R K AHEFE
determined by the Board. A director who has interest in the subject matter P& o fiff 2 35 j A sl P S B B A AT T 35 >
being resolved will abstain from voting. In view of the above, the Board ¥ {78 i #EXEE o H LA £ TH > 3 FH &R
considers that the interests of Mr. Cheung and Mr. Wong in other companies % - JRJoA K FeE R HAM A R 2 G A€
will not prejudice their capacity as directors nor compromise the interests of — ¥f i Z¢ Hi AT 3 SRR G 18 AT (0] 1 K2 28 > IR
the Company and the shareholders of the Company. ANERPEALN T AR FIORF 45 -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2008, none of the directors of the & F X BEE 4 » R _FEZNFE=H=+—
Company or their respective associates was interested in any business apart ~ H > A%\ 7 2 25 5{ % 45 2 W B2 A -+ A 4 iR AT
from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete, either  {a] Bl 7 £ [H 2E 5 1 452 Bl [H] 422 4% Al 8 m] RE A% A
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group. B2 W R ETIRIN) P oA AR -

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES I By S A SR 2 BE A

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or & L SCHE§E & 41 » A2\ 5] 8 HAT A Fff & 2 7
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of i 4F [K 4T ] Iy R BE 4B 5T S AT AT 22 Hk - Ui A
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 2\ ) 8 g% A 375 1 I A A2\ 7] B AT A] HoAth ik A
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. In addition, none [ 2 Bt iy 5 f& 7 M 4 25 o BLAb > HESEZE IR
of the directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right  B{f% % » BB+ /\ B LA N 2 T LA s I
to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised any such right A2\ 5] 75 %% 2 AT AT HE R 5 B A4 A7 A B
during the year. HER)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE HH2ERALRERR

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transactions and  [& N 3C[ BRLAE 5 K 548 B 32 5 | T ik M &5
Continuing Connected Transactions” as set out below and in note 52 to & MW B 52 T gE &40 - FEAELEH &
the consolidated financial statements, there are no contract of significance i 7 & BEATAA] g ] (A > 7 2 ) B HAT 0] B )
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which 23 7] 3 #E 5] 45 A8 28 ) 3 25 0 6 AP B 4 al H 4%
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or A5 B KHERE 2 AT E R EG4) -

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B k47 # e 2 1 e bk

DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive A3/ &) B ARYE L TR B8 3. 1306 US4 8 ar I
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 47 % 25 5l oM 32 AR HH 2 AR BE R o AR
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-  ® 25T A B ERITEF Y A BN L o
executive directors are independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Company during the year and up to date of this report are set out below:

(a)

As stated in the announcement dated 7th December, 2007, on 28th
November, 2007, Donson (International) Development Limited
(“Donson”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into several agreements in relation to:

®

(ii)

(iii)

the disposal by Donson of its entire interests in Guangzhou
Panyu Lotus Golf & Country Club Co., Ltd. (“Panyu
Golf”), Guanzhou Panyu Wei Di Si Golf Property Company
Limited (“Wei Di Si”) and Guangzhou Lian Chui Property
Management Company Limited (“Lian Chui”) to J&
T B T o 2 A BR A R (<3 B 17 3K), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, which
is an investment holding company controlled by the
Panyu Municipal Government, the PRC, for an aggregate
cash consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$22.2 million) as set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements;

the co-operation between Panyu Golf and Donson in the
development of a parcel of land within Guangzhou Lotus
Hill Golf Resort (the “Development Project Agreement”)
in which the Group will have the right to share 65% of its
residual value. Under the terms of the Development Project
Agreement, the Group will provide a loan of RMB40 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$44.3 million) to Panyu
Golf for use in the development project as set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements; and

the lease of Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort (the
“Lease Agreement”) which comprises golf course and
golf clubhouse within Panyu, Guangzhou, Guangdong
Province, the PRC by Panyu Golf to Guangzhou Donson
Hotel Management Limited (“Donson Hotel Management”),
a subsidiary of the Company, for three years commencing
from the date of the Lease Agreement entered into between
Donson Hotel Management as lessee and Panyu Golf as
lessor for the lease of the Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort
on 16th April, 2008 at an annual rental of RMBS5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$5.2 million) renewable at
an option of Donson Hotel Management at the successive
terms of 3 years up to 20 years.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED  BJ#izs 5 R¥ G R 5 (4)
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(@  (Cont'd) (@  (#)
By virtue of the fact that3 B 15 is controlled by the Panyu H R T B T ol 2 7 B T BUR M N T
Municipal Government and J#& JN 77 25 B iR WE 48 A &) (“F5 BRI, e B e e AR W) (25 B8 i o ) #E ol
a company incorporated in the PRC which is a substantial T 7 38 AR 37 T — P 7 v B 3 i a2
shareholder of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian Chui, is also O] BT RS ORER - R i ok
controlled by the Panyu Municipal Government, % &7 and R EBRR > IR TN
& ® ik liF are therefore connected persons of the Company. s R B T BRI B AR
Accordingly, the disposal of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian A Z BN o L > AR E AR
Chui and the provision of the loan of RMB40 million constituted F4ATE > HEFB SRRk - il
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of W R R > DR AR K %40,000,000
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Lease TR FREINA N T 2 BEAE 5 o IR
Agreement also constituted a continuing connected transaction for RIS 14A T > FH T ek IE T
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the HEAT 2 38 5y IN R AR A ) 2 R 4 B
abovementioned transactions are set out in the announcement dated g o PG FEGEA B A &
7th December, 2007 and the circular of the Company dated 17th FLEFT A LHZAMEAAFH
January, 2008. The disposal was completed on 6th March, 2008. WA _—EZENF—HTLHZEHK -
The Development Project Agreement and the Lease Agreement were HEE R EFTNFEZANHER -
entered into by the Group on 16th April, 2008. AL @i R AR A 15 H [E R

RUSL B IA F fh ek S AH B ih ok o

(b)  As stated in the announcement dated 28th April, 2008, ITC  (b)  ®UWNHEMA -FZ N\FEWAH ~+/\H

Properties Management Limited (the “Tenant”), an indirect wholly- ZOS T s AR AN F] 2 T B A
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement Jo5 /A ) A 7 A B BRA WD ([ R AR
with Island Town Limited (the “Landlord”), an indirect wholly- N 1) HELER B 2E H A RN A (878 ])
owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny”) for 2[R B A R AN R A B BR A A
renting Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt (XD FTy—HEME R > UMAA
Road, Central Hong Kong, for the period from 28th April, 2008 to FEHPREBBEREERBPT PO
27th April, 2011 with a fixed rental of HK$311,340 per month and 31HE3102% > FHH _FF/\FMA
management fee and air-conditioning charges of HK$23,927 per “TANHREE F——4FEWNH T+t
month. The annual caps for total rental and other charges payable H ok o [ 5 < %8 9 FH 2% W H5311,340
by the Tenant to the Landlord will not exceed HK$3,900,000 for the IC o B K 2E A A 23,927
financial year ending 31st March, 2009 and HK$4,200,000 for each It BMEZEFNE=HA=1+—HI1
of the financial years ending 31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2011. FABUAE B > 7R ) 2 S AT 2 A

& K H A 2 AR BR AR LR R Er i i
#53,900,00000 - ME _F—F4HE =
A=t —H R o= =
H 1k BF B4 45 4F R 6 48 il i W

4,200,0007T ©

As at 28th April, 2008, Hanny was indirectly interested in AZEFENFEMAZ+/NH > shBLH
approximately 16.72% of the issued share capital of the Company. WA AN A DT A £16.72% -
Accordingly, the Landlord was a connected person of the Company. B EEBARATRZBEANL -
The tenancy, which will be carried out on a continuing basis and B A N A — ) KOEE EH R
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, R RE A R EAT > MR 4B B AT AL A
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the Company 5 14A AWM BRAS 28 7 2 40 48 B 358
under Rule14A.14 of the Listing Rules. 5 e

(c) During the year ended 31st March, 2008, Kopola Investment  (c) REE EZNFEF=A=Z+—H1
Company Limited (“Kopola”) had converted HK$50 million (2007: 4 FBE > Kopola Investment Company
HK$100 million) of the convertible note due 2010 issued by the Limited ([ Kopola |) £ 4% % B # %5 0.44
Company into 113,636,363 (2007: 227,272,727) ordinary shares of TCZ i MR 1% < B 2 S 050,000,000 7T
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at a conversion (T~ FEE4E - #%100,000,0007T) 2
price of HK$0.44 per share. Each of Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman AN A AT BB 2wk
(a former non-executive director of the Company who retired on SRR SR B AR 4 A IR 113,636,363
12th September, 2007), and his brother, Mr. Ho Hau Hay, Hamilton e ( —FF-BAE 0 227,272,727 1%) B %
owned 50% interest in Kopola, the conversion of the convertible T8 (B W 150.01 T 2 i ik o ] JE 85T
notes constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the H(RAFFFRTES k%%
Listing Rules. LEILH = HARAE) B H M S Aol &

Je % B A Kopola Z 50% 1 45
AR b T LR > S T o S
27 BAA R 2 BE AR 5y o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2008, the interests and short positions of any substantial
shareholders or other persons (not being directors or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

HERK

ATERNEZH =+ —H > EERHREH
e At (AL FEEREETHAR) R
A T A B AR Bl B3 o B A AR B 0 %
BB 5 XV AR5 2 K 353 B 2 Aok SC 1] A ]
P iE K O RC BRI A 2 R ARG A8 I3 L 30 B e
336 B E A7 B 2 BT M 2 M A K R
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T
Long position e
(i) Interests in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (1) TR 2 B TET (75 7°0.01 70 2 %
M2 R

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares fiARAR B8

JBe 3 44 48 55 OB R EH JBe A BEST T 43 W

(%)

Loyal Concept Limited Beneficial owner 477,517,272 15.43
(“Loyal Concept™) His A A (Note 1)
(1)

Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited Interest of controlled 517,517,272 16.72
(“Hanny Magnetics”) corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Hanny Interest of controlled 517,517,272 16.72
i corporation (Note 1)
ZYEE B (BitaF1)

Famex Investment Limited Interest of controlled 517,517,272 16.72
(“Famex”) corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Mankar Assets Limited Interest of controlled 517,517,272 16.72
(“Mankar”) corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

ITC Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 594,072,272 19.19
(“ITC Investment™) corporations (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

O

Annual Report 2007-20084E it

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

Long position (Cont’d)

(i)

Interests in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

(Cont’d)

Name of shareholder

JBE A4

ITC Corporation
Limited (“ITC”)

eI A RAF
([ P83 1)

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(“Dr. Chan”)
B i (T BRI A )

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
(“Ms. Ng”)
sl (ML 1 )

Shepherd Investments
International, Ltd.
(“Shepherd”)

Stark Master Fund, Ltd.
(“Stark Master”)

Stark Investments (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Stark HK”)

Capacity
55

Interest of controlled
corporations

Sk AR

Interest of controlled
corporations

Sk AR

Beneficial owner

FARHEA A

Interest of spouse

i (P HEE 2

Beneficial owner

HAHEA A

Beneficial owner

HAHEA A

Investment manager

Beg e

29

FEBHE ()
igdbii
G) BN E] AR I E 7 HR0.01 T 2 i
M2 s (#)
Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
issued shares A 2\ B AT
TR B A JBe AL T 43 b
(%)
719,642,272 23.25
(Note 1)
(Wt7E1)
719,642,272 23.25
(Note 1)
(Wt7E1)
3,810,000 0.12
(Note 1)
(W7E1)
723,452,272 23.37
723,452,272 23.37
(Note 1)
(Wt7E1)
96,418,727 3.11
(Note 2)
(H7E2)
134,978,817 4.36
220,267,725 7.12
(Note 2)
(H7E2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) HBBOH (A7)

Long position (Cont’d) (A

(ii)  Interests in the underlying shares under convertible notes of the (i)  JrAk 2\ ] B] SR ZHEIE T 2 19 B FR 04
Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) Z W (EF I BH R EIEOFEXY

)

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares fiARAFR B8

JBe 3 44 48 55 OB R EH JBe A BES T 43 W

(%)

Loyal Concept Beneficial owner 1,135,714,285 36.69
Hasa A (Note 1)
(W71

Hanny Magnetics Interest of controlled 1,135,714,285 36.69
corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Hanny Interest of controlled 1,135,714,285 36.69
i corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Famex Interest of controlled 1,135,714,285 36.69
corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Mankar Interest of controlled 1,135,714,285 36.69
corporation (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

ITC Investment Interest of controlled 1,178,571,427 38.07
corporations (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

ITC Interest of controlled 1,178,571,427 38.07
TERE corporations (Note 1)
TR (BfaEL)

Dr. Chan Interest of controlled 1,178,571,427 38.07
B e corporations (Notel)
TR (BfaEL)

Ms. Ng Interest of spouse 1,178,571,427 38.07
it + il (A 2 (Note 1)
(1)

30



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEHEHREH

Annual Report 2007-20084E it

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) TR (AF)
Long position (Cont’d) WA (4
(ii) Interests in the underlying shares under convertible notes of the  (jj) GRS G ] R R IE R 2 A B R
Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (Cont’d) CHER (GEFER SRR EIENEXY
#h) (#E)
Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares A2 6 B8k 1T
JBe 3 4 5% TR B A JBe AL T 43 b
(%)
Shepherd Beneficial owner 188,198,051 6.08
Haa A (Note 2)
(H7E2)
Stark Master Beneficial owner 264,594,155 8.55
Hasa A
Stark HK Investment manager 369,415,584 11.93
PG R (Note 2)
(H7E2)
Gandhara Master Fund Limited Investment manager 334,285,715 10.80
Eitg g8l
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
Long position (Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

Hanny and Hanny Magnetics were taken to have an interest in
1,653,231,557 shares (of which 1,135,714,285 shares relate to their
derivative interests) which were held by Loyal Concept and Cyber
Generation Limited (“Cyber”) since Loyal Concept was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanny Magnetics which, in turn, was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanny, the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Cyber is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Enterprises Limited (“China Enterprises”) of which Group Dragon
(B.V.1.) Limited (“Group Dragon (B.V.1.)”) owned approximately
55.22% of the effective equity interest. Pursuant to the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 25th March, 2008 entered into
by Group Dragon (B.V.1.), the effective equity interest in China
Enterprises owned by Group Dragon (B.V.L.) is expected to be
decreased to approximately 37.10% which was held by a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Group Dragon (B.V.1.) upon completion
of the disposal of the said equity interest in China Enterprises. Group
Dragon (B.V.1.), Group Dragon Investments Limited, Well Orient
Limited and Powervote Technology Limited were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Hanny Magnetics which, in turn, was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hanny. Famex, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mankar,
was the controlling shareholder of Hanny. Mankar was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC Investment which, in turn, was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC. Famex and Mankar were deemed to be
interested in 1,653,231,557 shares (of which 1,135,714,285 shares
relate to their derivative interests) which were held by Loyal Concept
and Cyber. Selective Choice Investments Limited (“Selective”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment, owned 119,412,142
shares (of which 42,857,142 shares relate to its derivative interest).
ITC Investment was deemed to be interested in 1,772,643,699 shares
(of which 1,178,571,427 shares relate to its derivative interest) which
were held by Loyal Concept, Cyber and Selective. Great Intelligence
Holdings Limited (“Great Intelligence”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of ITC Management Group Limited, which in turn, was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC. Dr. Chan was the controlling shareholder
of ITC. Ms. Ng is the spouse of Dr. Chan. Great Intelligence
owned 125,570,000 shares. ITC was deemed to be interested in
1,898,213,699 shares (of which 1,178,571,427 shares relate to its
derivative interest) which were held by Loyal Concept, Cyber,
Selective and Great Intelligence. Dr. Chan owned 3,810,000 shares
and was deemed to be interested in 1,898,213,699 shares (of which
1,178,571,427 shares relate to his derivative interest) which were
held by Loyal Concept, Cyber, Selective and Great Intelligence.
Ms. Ng was deemed to be interested in 1,902,023,699 shares (of
which 1,178,571,427 shares relate to her derivative interest) which
were held by Dr. Chan, Loyal Concept, Cyber, Selective and Great
Intelligence.
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HBB e ()
WAl 25%
1. % B Bl Hanny Magnetics #% #i % 7£

Loyal Concept&Cyber Generation Limited
éber 1) ¥ A 1,653,231,557 Ik Ik
{5} o 1,135,714,285 JI% fi% 3 ¥ K Ko
RIAEMER) DA s o b i Loyal
Concept %% Hanny Magnetics Z 2 & [t
% > T Hanny Magnetlcs CEE
E%’éﬁﬁ%"ﬁ"%ﬁc@ﬂ:ﬁi P2
Kﬁ%’ \#] o Cyber %%China Enterprises
Limited ([ China Enterprises | ) & &
& MTJ% /x w > Group Dragon (B.V.1.)
Limited ([ Group Dragon (B.V.L) ) R
China Enterprlses #955.22% B W B A
WEtd o MIE—FF/F=H_T1H
Grou Dragon (B V.L) % ET 2 A A
B lhik > 1752 5 B China Enterprises,
Group Dragon(BVI)E?ﬁ%gwg/\
j}ﬁ%ﬁChmaEntemnseséﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁz'—(
WE 22 74 45 TE I D 2 £937.10% © Group
Dragon (B.V.I,) * Group Dragon Investments
Limited ~ Well Orient Limited 52 Powervote
Technology Limited %% Hanny Magnetics
%%W}%/\ 7] > Hanny Magnetics HI 74 8
B 2B /R o Mankarft) 2 B KR
{\ i) Famex £ $ L 2 2 RBOR. © Mankar
JHTTC Tnvestment < 4% & Mg 2 ] > il
ITC Investment HI| 7 4% 2 4 ¥ fft o 2>
7] o Famex X Mankar Y815 £ * Loyal
Concept X Cyber JIT 47 1,653,231,557
JBEJBE 1y (L 1,135,714,285 I JBE
W B HC AT A B ) R AR A
ITC Investment 2 & % Kt & 2 7
Selective Choice Investments Limited
( TSelectiveJ ) 75 A 119,412,142 [
EP42,857,142 PB4y 6 B HoATT 2
1‘% i ) H T RE 4% o ITC Investment
# i £ 7 Loyal Concept * Cyber I
Selective fT #f A HY 1,772,643,699 it
1 By (R 1,178,571,427 1% it 0
T FCAT A HE 28 ) T HEA K 35 © Great
Intelligence Holdm s Limited ( [ Great
Intelligence ] ) /7% ITC Management
Group Limited # 2 & fft J& 25 EJ e ITC
Mana ement Group Limited £ % +£ 1)
2 ] o DD 7 8 £ 9 B
ﬂxﬂx% it L 2 Bl & 2 FA o
Great Intelligence #F £ 125,570,000 /i
Ay o FEREBEL £ - Loyal Concept
Cyber ~ Selective Fl Great Intelhgence
Br i A B 8982136995&5&%‘
EF' 1 178571427Hxﬂx T ET
*%E@ﬁ\ﬁﬁf%ﬁ
3,810,000 By B AL B #E Loyal
Concept * Cyber * Selective } Great
Intelhgence Fﬁ B 1 1,898,213,699
B By (O 1,178,571,427 i
B9 B st L HE ) B
fit o 4 LA R B L - Loyal
Concept * Cyber * Selective } Great
Intelligence FIf £ A HY 1,902,023,699
e BT (L o 1,178,571,427 ME R
W AT RS ) OB A RE 3% -

ﬁt
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) .y (#%)
Long position (Cont’d) bRy ()

Notes: MtaE -

2. Stark HK was taken to have an interest as an investment manager 2. Stark HKAE & 1% & & H ok ¥ VE A
in 589,683,309 shares (of which 369,415,584 shares relate to Centar Investments (Asia) Ltd. ~
its derivative interest) which were held by Centar Investments Shepherd * Stark Asia Master Fund,
(Asia) Ltd., Shepherd, Stark Asia Master Fund, Ltd. and Stark Ltd. M Stark International BT % #
International. 589,683,309 1% i 113 (F: H1369,415,584

JBe Mty B LA A M i) 2 M -

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other [} | L 55 & &b » A<\ 5] 5l R 58 R AT fa] H
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the fhd —FEENFE=H =+—HRALNF
Company as at 31st March, 2008. AFREASh 2 A B RE 25 5k o

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEE P AR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the aggregate amount of turnover #HFE " FEEX/N\FE=H=+—HIFFEFE » KE
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the  [H . K& F 2 45 3£ 4450 {5 A 4 [H) 4 45 2650 )
Group’s total turnover. The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to  jA309% o A~4E B 1 R AL e i 2 bR B 4 AR L AN 42
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 37% of the  [E|44 R BEZEAI37% » 1A~ 4E B o L fE e 2 R
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest  FE%H {5 A4 [H] 44 B BE4E 4932% o

supplier was approximately 32% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the &I - W& 2 B8 A a8 & 3 FH i A
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued £ Z</\ &) B 28547 A% A4S 48 18 5% 22 AT Aa] B B A e
share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers. TS A B AR i R TS o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S  JiiA ~ ib sk AR A 62 B
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or A#EE _FEE/E=H=+—HIFFEFERK -
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31st A<\ &) 5 H AT (o] (&8 2 Rl MR M B E ~ B B
March, 2008. [ A 2 W) Z AT AT LT RS S o
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The following disclosure is made by the Company pursuant to Rules 13.20
and 13.22 of the Listing Rules:

1. ADVANCES TO ENTITIES
In accordance with Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, details of the
advances to entities made by the Group as at 31st March, 2008, which
individually exceeds 8% of the assets ratio as set out in Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules are as follows:

Attributable
interest held
Entities by the Group Advances
B AR S Ry 2 A B A Bk
HK$’000
T
Orient Town Limited (“Orient Town™)
and its subsidiaries
(Notes I and 3)
HFPUA R T ([ ) KM E A F
(HfaE143) 45% 1,076,170

BB S 1350 T 2 R BT AT

N ICEAN FARYE L TR RIEE 13.20 & 13.224%
1R 2 5%

1. I B B B
WPE BRI 13.2006 > ALER
FE/FZHZ+— H B ([
A ET B A bR AR 14.07 6T R 5
ZHEEHWRZ%) ZEEEMT ¢

Percentage

Interest of total assets
receivable Total i 380 A
A B ik "l
HK$°000 HK$’000 (Note 2)
T T T (72
56,182 1,132,352 33.7%
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE |1l LI 45 133500 F 2 35813 4E (47)
LISTING RULES (Cont’d)

1. ADVANCES TO ENTITIES (Cont’d) 1. ] B gk (4%)

Notes: MtaE -

(D) The advances are unsecured and non-interest bearing of which no 1) SRR TR R AEE > Hid
demand for repayment will be made by the Group for an amount of H#E #908,000,000 TT 3 B i!lf i
HK$908,000,000 unless approved by the board of directors of Orient ZHEHEGHE > B AL B AR
Town and there is no fixed terms of repayment for the remaining iR EIBEER  c T E&HE
amount of HK$168,170,000. 168,170,000 7T 4 3K ¥ A [ 72 % 3K

By o

2) “Total assets” mean the total assets value of the Group of HK$3,361 2) [ FERIEARE E I —FE )\
million as at 31st March, 2008 according to the Group’s audited HEZH=+—H Zﬂ“%?}?‘d\ OB T
consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2008. BRI R AL ZF T )\ FE=

H =+ —H i %3,361,000,0007C 2
HERE -

3 Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 29th March, 2006 for 3) WBERMA —ZTERF=A 1
the Group to acquire 40% issued share capital of Orient Town, the H 7 45 B i B 35 88 2 40% 2 85 1T X
Group undertook to advance to Orient Town by way of shareholder’s Az —TE B AS4E B RGE
loan in the amount of HK$885 million (the “First Shareholder’s 7 % R B R 2 T 3K 1) #E B SR
Loan”). On 30th March, 2007, the Group has exercised the right e ﬁ,:‘(%‘885 000, 00075 [ 5 — K A%
to acquire further 5% issued share capital of Orient Town, as HH]) R EEEE=H =1+
a condition of which an additional loan of HK$93 million (the H 2[&%[5]5 ﬁ@?’wﬁ H Uk
“Second Shareholder’s Loan”) was advanced to Orient Town. The HEFS% 7 OB T IS » 3 DA [ #E
shareholder’s loans were principally used for financing acquisition fﬁ”‘ﬁ AR 43t #k 15 93,000,000 7T 2 &
of indirect interest in 14 parcels of leased land situated in Estrada (T80 IR IR BBk ) VR B W B A
de Seac Pai Van, Macau and for repayment of shareholder’s loan 14: B Bk T B A b B A L P
due by Orient Town to the vendor. Pursuant to another acquisition PR S BE 7 DU i - Hh 2 [
agreement dated 25th January, 2007 for the Group to acquire 8.7% 2 BE M B R B 4 7( Ej‘j Z &
issued share capital of, a shareholder’s loan and interest accrued R - HIEAW A - TELFE—
thereon of HK$39.6 million and HK$71.4 million respectively A+ T B AR E A s
(the “Acquired Loan”) due by, Empresa De Fomento Industrial E 59.5% T S HE 25 [ 88 2\ w) Wk A 3%
Comercial Concérdia, S.A (“Concordia”), an effective 59.5%-owned B ERAT ([HA 1) 8. 7% E %’§~
subsidiary of Orient Town, the Group undertook to further advance AT HEA L) e e s Bk K B ETHR E 4
to Concordia by way of additional shareholder’s loan of not more By R By s 539,600, ()()075&(%&1‘15
than HK$70 million (the “Concordia Loan”), of which HK$55 71,400,0000C) ([ BEA B2 ) 1y 5H—
million was advanced to Concordia at 31st March, 2008. The First TR Rk - AEERE SRR
Shareholder’s Loan, the Second Shareholder’s Loan, the Acquired HEEE I % B K (L5 A ﬂ ey
Loan and the Concordia Loan have been approved in special general 70,000,0007C) ([ BEAE ) 2
meetings of the Company held on 15th June, 2006 and 23rd March, =P [ B A R kR EP He e
2007, respectively. 55,000,000 G C it —FF /\E A

41‘ H BT o 55— UBOR

B T UBOR AR - AR
&Hﬁ‘éﬂ% KO TR —FE RN
HtHAR=FFCE=A+=
B AT Z AR O R R Al K i
e o

35



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEHEHREH

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED % #2545 H 45 FR A 7]

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE

LISTING RULES (Cont’d)

2. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND GUARANTEE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES
As detailed in the previous paragraph headed “ADVANCES TO
ENTITIES”, the Group had provided financial assistance to, and
guarantee for, affiliated companies in the aggregate amount of
HK$1,132,352,000, which represented approximately 33.7% of the
Group’s total assets value as at 31st March, 2008. In accordance
with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the pro
forma combined balance sheet of those affiliated companies and the
Group’s attributable interests in those affiliated companies based on
their latest financial statements available are presented below:

Non-current assets I

Current assets LB

Current liabilities B A

Non-current liabilities B A E

Minority interest DR R £
DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$302,203.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors

and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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45 |9 2 B £933.7% o MR8 LR
$513.200% > LA B A Al n] {25
2RI ER LR . ZEHE A
Al Z M AR E B ER AR E
FE A A F 2 EAR RS AR

Group’s
Combined attributable
balance sheet interests
FORE AR A AN HE A
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T T
2,163,601 982,914
499,135 252,833
(624,707) (489,075)
(1,961,205) (882,542)
(64,384) (28,973)
12,440 (164,843)

ik
AN AR AR AR 2 CH 3R O
302,2037C °
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS 8 0 e
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye- A/ 7] 2 2> & 40 B B 7 5% 22 16 9] 5if7 4 5% 50
laws or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new B H 2 6 3C » K @ A2\ R 4H 2 Lo 49 1) 334 it

shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders. R R o

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT RS2y 5 R B

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year AT REE “FENE=ZA=+—HIL4
ended 31st March, 2008. JE— EAER R A PRI o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE e 38T

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate A\ T B S HEFF @ /K P 2EEE - ARAL
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by ] FT £ 4% 4 2E 876 1 M 2 OB U AR 42 R 2R
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report, which is on 38 E45EH X ¥R EE -

pages 38 to 45 of this annual report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS i H &

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 53 to the %554 H 1% 5 K FTHFE 15 Hih 5 & BA S 3 K I
consolidated financial statements. #F53 °

AUDITORS %

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general meeting of 75 [ 42 1 i &)y BF 7 bR 5 & 5t Al AT By A R A%
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of B fili 2 PR 538 52 31 i A 2> ] BRI 73 B 2 % R 78

the Company. FERERE -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Cheung Hon Kit FFE

Chairman REHE

Hong Kong, 4th July, 2008 T ZFFNELHA
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and to complying with statutory and
regulatory requirements with an aim to maximizing the shareholders’ values
and interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency and
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”™).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors. Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the
Company and the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2008. The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who may possess or have access to
price-sensitive information.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board are individually and collectively responsible for
leadership and control, and for promoting the success, of the Company by
operating and developing the Group’s business operations and implementing
the Company’s business strategies. As at the date of this report, the Board
consists of nine directors which include six executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has a balanced Board composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors).
With three Board members being independent non-executive directors
possessing professional expertise and diverse range of experience, the
Board can effectively exercise independent judgment and give advice to the
management of the Company, and it can make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The biographical
details of the directors are set out on pages 13 to 15 of this annual report.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the members of the Board.

The Board has delegated the Executive Board or Committee with authority
and responsibility for handling the management functions and operations
of the day-to-day business of the Company while specifically reserving
certain important matters and decisions for the approval by the Board such
as annual and interim period financial reporting and control, equity fund
raising, declaration of interim dividend, recommendation of final dividend or
other distributions, decision regarding notifiable transactions and connected
transactions under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
respectively and recommendation for capital reorganization or scheme of
arrangement of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) WL ()

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year with at least 14~ AS2 Rl 4F e D BEAT UK (47 45 S & & ok >

days’ notices being given to all directors. Additional meetings, if necessary, 2 IR T E g R T IR D 14K

are arranged as and when required. Directors may attend Board meetings B H AR > QA L - AN R 6 A R

either in person or through electronic means of communication. A total of ~ EHHAN Pk &k o 5 F vl B S L T2

seven Board meetings (including four regular Board meetings) were held AL ERG R  WETT)EZN

during the year ended 31st March, 2008. Z=t—HILEE  AAFR GBI LIRES
gk BENROITER g -

The directors are provided with relevant information to enable them to make #HAMER AU E R > DUEE A e >
informed decisions, and appropriate arrangements are in place to ensure FOAF LB E L R REFR
that they are given every opportunity to include matters in the agenda of FERRIETMAFIE - 2EEREHITX H
the Board meetings. All directors have separate and independent access to i | S A5 A 4 B o 4 8 LN B R Jj P 2 43k 2
the advice and services of the Group’s senior management and consultants B R Bl > DA R BEAE < e R LA KR
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and AEBHLR KA -

regulations are observed.

The attendance record of each individual Board member at the Board, Audit I < 85 [0l B 4F BE A A ) & (0 il #E = & ]
Committee and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year under NERE  FREEGLHFME R G GRS

review, on a named basis, is as follows: H2Z R
Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
R kA RERs R ik
Audit Remuneration
Name of Director Board Committee Committee
WYREH WY HBREY  FMZEAES
Executive directors: HATHEF
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SRIEBESEE () 77
Mr. Chan Fut Yan (Managing Director) — [fhBUEA: (3 FHAUACHE) 717 1711
Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley HHR B ek 717
(Deputy Managing Director) (/Y 5 H A FEFE)
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit TRAEESEAE 717
Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David RS 771
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl BRI 717
(appointed on 30th May, 2007) (= FELAE
HA =1 HEZEF)
Non-executive directors: FEHAfTHTE
Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman o] JE 8 54 0/2
(Deputy Chairman) () F )
(retired on 12th September, 2007) (P REL4F
JLA 1 HBAF)
Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon RS 02
(retired on 12th September, 2007) (P REL4F
JLA 1 HBAF)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) W ()
Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
TR A E R ARk
Audit Remuneration
Name of Director Board Committee Committee
HAEA HEg  HEBRHEA  HMEREe
Independent non-executive directors: Wi BT
Mr. Qiao Xiaodong (Vice Chairman) BN (B L) /1
(appointed on 5th February, 2008) (=L E
ZH #HEZEAE)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin BV e 717 3/3 11
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva HEEr ek 6/7 3/3 171
Mr. Chui Sai Cheong A SE 4/6 1/3
(resigned on 5th February, 2008) (B 4E
A #H BHE)
Chairman and Managing Director TR EF AR

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, held by separate
individuals, are clearly segregated with an aim to providing a balance
of power and authority. The Chairman is principally responsible for the
strategic planning of the Group and the management of the operations of the
Board. The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the operations and
business development of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), every director
is subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Non-executive directors are subject to the aforesaid retirement
requirements and are appointed for a specific terms of not more than three
years.

At least one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received, from each of the independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers them to be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) HAH ()
Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors 7Y - TR ERES

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of directors and the EHEHRBARZFHEF RIBRAFEFTKAHK
nomination of directors for re-election by shareholders at the annual general A 423 ) R 4F K € 538 o ARIEA ) 4
meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the directors shall have — HIl » # 557G REAS IR J2 & IR ZE AT AT o] AL i 4T
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as director wH DI ER g 2RSS EABE
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing T H & Z WA - WA B A 1 H 53 Bl 1%
Board who is subject to retirement and re-election at the first general meeting M Z AT & B KK WK G R E RS
or first annual general meeting respectively after his/her appointment. The AT XA o & F & T L4 AN+
Board should take into account of the candidate’s qualification, ability and ~ Z &JE ~ AREKBARAFZBELEETEM - HE
potential contribution to the Company. A candidate to be appointed as an ERBSLIERTER IR AN LAMS b
independent non-executive director must satisfy the independence criteria TTRLRISE 3. 136 BT s B 37 B 49 R o i (] R4
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. During the year under review,  FBE A » BEMEEE 3528 B A B 2 TATAGR SR
no director has involved in fixing his own terms of appointment and no  JN M8 7 JF AT E H 2 B FTAG A 5 2 M 5L 5
independent non-executive director has participated in assessing his own g3 e

independence.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Company has complied AR # % ~FF NE=H =+ —H LB E
with code provision A.4.2 of the Code by receiving confirmation in writing B » 420 &) & 3 57 <F Bl 2 5F R SCEE A4.2
from each of the non-executive directors (including independent non- 1% > BEIEFITHE S (AFEB L ERITESR) &
executive directors) in relation to their renewed term of office so that every — HURMT IR 4555 2 FH 1 #ERR > DA & #E5
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject — (EIFEHZFFE L IMERLE) HE D H=Fin
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and pursuant to the — {EEAE—W » MIARSEL AIA0H - A 59 R
Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of the BMERG E > ARFAHGZ— 2 EHHiG
Company for the time being shall retire from office by rotation such that each  ERAT » DU & 38 578 2 D g = 4R i IR
director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at the FREWHERE R -

annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HMEE &

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific =~ T H & CNZHMZE B & » I 5T IR
written terms of reference which clearly defined its role, authority and  #E » 7§28 52 FIRE - WRE Rk - R A
function. As at the date of this report, the members of the Remuneration WA HNE B el AR R eA G
Committee are Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin (chairman of the Remuneration ~ BMZE B& TJ%) - BB ek Rahsir ek o
Committee), Mr. Chan Fut Yan and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. With the  FR¥ATE FBRB B A4 - HiNZ B G M E
exception of Mr. Chan Fut Yan who is an executive director, the other YR FERATE S -

members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive

directors.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making FMZE e T EREAENA AR EHES
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for K 808 B B i HiH 2 BUK X &5 # 1)
all remuneration of directors and senior management, establishing a formal #HHGRMHEEE R 5 W BET S e BUR
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration 5 8% B 3 8 8 A7 38 S B R AR L B 2 %7
and reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of the BIfFAHIE EX K RBEWEZRT - HiHE
executive directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the B GZMEGEMTETRME  CHEERE
Remuneration Committee, which follow closely with the requirements of ~ $R#4 - A A A F A o B B e R
the Code and have been adopted by the Board, are posted on the Company’s PTG R B AT HGE -

website. The Remuneration Committee has been provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its duties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee convened one committee meeting during
the year ended 31st March, 2008. The major issues discussed and resolved
during the meeting included making recommendation for the approval by
the Board the grant of share options to the directors, employees and other
participants of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of the directors are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year under review, no director
has involved in deciding his own remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has set up the Audit Committee with specific written terms of
reference which clearly defined its role, authority and function. As at the date
of this report, the members of the Audit Committee are the three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiao Xiaodong and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. Mr.
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin is a qualified accountant with extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls as required by the Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the Group’s
interim and final results prior to recommending them to the Board for its
approval, appointing, and reviewing the relationship with, the external
auditors of the Company and reviewing the Group’s financial information
and the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which follow closely with
the requirements of the Code and have been adopted by the Board, are posted
on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has been provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Audit Committee held three
committee meetings. During these meetings, the Audit Committee had
reviewed and made recommendation, for the Board’s approval, the draft
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2007 and the
draft unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30th
September, 2007; had a discussion on the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group with the management and the external auditors
of the Company; made recommendation regarding the re-appointment of
external auditors for the shareholders’ approval at the Company’s annual
general meeting and reviewed the fees charged by the external auditors; and
the internal control policy of the Company.

The Board and the Audit Committee did not have any differences of opinion
during the year ended 31st March, 2008.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING S5 v i

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial S0 R A A A I B 5 S T A R A RS R SR
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the state  PAFLB{ 2 - Hh Sz B A 4 [ 22 BABS IR 0 B A 74
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In ~ FHiH Z 4B SR B2 FAE o AR EH
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2008, £ _FZ/NFE=ZH=+—H ILFEZ B R
the directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them RN - FEHOBEE A BEFIBORT C B HUE
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and LA RAE g~ AT A L R B KAl
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. Fh o AR R AR AR WA IR R - FEFE
The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events ~ NHIZEH B T BB B A AR T R A A 2 R )
or conditions that might cause significant doubt upon the Group’s ability  HH K &¢I 2 5 {4 5l 1% 0 2 AT fr] 85 KR B B
to continue as a going concern. The statement of the external auditors of BRI o AR ) A/ A S il 36 o 58 g A 4% [ B
the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial TR 2 H R 2 B O A AR IR 46
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report, which 47K ISR & o

is set out on pages 46 and 47 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION A% BBl v 4

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) were re-appointed by & &« BB B 7 & 5t ii T ([ 128 H it —FE L
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 12th September, 2007 as ~ FJLA + = H 8172 R AUAFE K& > BIRHR
the Company’s external auditors until the next annual general meeting. For ~ AE & 24 A0 W) 2 S AL Bl - A0 2 T JE ik
the year ended 31st March, 2008, the total auditors’ remuneration in respect FRFREIE - WE_EFENFZH=1—
of statutory audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte is set out  H IR BE - S0 78 B P 4 b vk o e A% I T

below: RS 2 A% BN 4 AR E A SN A0 -
Services rendered PPt s Fees paid/payable
ot AR
HKS$’000
fili i
Statutory audit fees R E R 3,791

Fees for non-audit services: AR

Ad hoc projects FFRIEH 1,440
Review of interim results R H A 520
Review of annual results announcement B E S YN (i) 30
Total auditors’ remuneration for the year A [ A% S Vs v 4 2 3 5,781
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to achieve the Company’s business strategies and the
Group’s business operations. The directors of the Company have adopted
an internal control policy of the Group, which has been developed with
a primary objective of providing general guidance and recommendations
on a basic framework of internal control and risk management. The
Company’s internal control systems include a well-established organisational
structure, comprehensive policies and standards, periodic reviews on
the implementation of the internal control systems for newly acquired
businesses and operational and financial controls on the acquired property
investments in Macau and the People’s Republic of China. Procedures have
been designed to secure assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and to
ensure compliance with the Group’s accounting policies, applicable laws,
rules and regulations. The aim of the Group’s internal control policy is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss rather than to eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the objectives of the Group. The Audit Committee conducted
periodic reviews on the internal audit checklists and reports prepared by the
internal audit manager of the Company which are presented to the Board for
its consideration and approval.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS B )RR 2 % 78

The Board always strives to maintain an ongoing and transparent 22 & B BLA 2% 7] 42 B8 e R AR 40 28 X mi
communication with all the shareholders of the Company and, in particular, ¥ W B Z W78 » IR % 18 JROR X & B R
use general meetings as a means to communicate with its shareholders and %8 > S SB) I SF 22 BL o R & THZH Bt 2 ROR
encourage their participation. In respect of each distinctively separate issue K& F EZRAME R FHIHN S - Z gk =
put forward for consideration at a general meeting, a separate resolution is FEAF IR 2 AR E - EFE LR LEA
proposed by the Chairman of that meeting. The Chairman of the Board has 2~ F) Z Il SO 4F K& KBRS Al K& - S n]
attended the annual general meeting and the special general meetings of AR E ERIESRR o AN A IR & IR E B
the Company and was available to answer questions at the meetings. The JREROHEAE G T AR B R R

Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of A fffi ~ %K A A B AR - TR K
annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars and dissemination ¥ AW E R} » 5% 55 BB IR EUA A A A
of additional information about the Group’s activities, business strategies ¥4 * http://www.itcproperties.com ° # ffl I T}
and developments. Such information is also available on the Company’s Il K20 W4 RI B & I MO SR R 2 B 7 5f
website: http://www.itcproperties.com. Details of the poll voting procedures 18 > HA AL A B 2 7] g W AL
complying with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws are included in the A RIRK G2 gk o NEE ZFFNF
Company’s circulars sent to the shareholders of the Company and in the =H ZT—H IEFRER > A BRI & 5
proceedings of the Company’s general meetings. During the year ended 31st 2 Z % T Pk B ORI IR BE E 2 77 A3k
March, 2008, some resolutions put forward at the special general meetings P& » M A2 7 CARYE b 17 MR 2 BLE TIEEH%
had been conducted by way of poll and the poll results were published in ~ SF&5 5 o

compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board REH G

Yan Ha Hung, Loucia VAT

Company Secretary Hrig L

Hong Kong, 4th July, 2008 > —FF/FELANA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T S A% B Rl e o

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED S A AR A A W)
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MACAU PRIME PROPERTIES (HifiM M4 EalMAERAY)
HOLDINGS LIMITED) B £z JBe ¢

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (M 7 2 AR 2N A])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ITC Properties  ZR % BFi1T E 52 1% 55 48 5 166 B T i 1
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to  H1 /2 £ [H] A FR /A 7] ([ &2 7 1) K H b8 A 7
as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 166, which comprise the consolidated ~ (#iF5[ &M |) Z 456 MBS K - HfHE
balance sheet as at 31st March, 2008, and the consolidated income statement, A _ZEE/F=H=+—H2Z 4G5 &=EA%E
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash R R B EZ HMILFEEZ HFZEBEHEER - &6
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant HES B R NG SR SR B R K EE G
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. SRR 5 A0 B A 5 o

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED #3654k s 2 B AT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true £/ 7 76 25 70 & & AR 15 7 i & 51 Al 2 & A A
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 2 7 ¥ B4 75 ¢ 44 M HI) K2 75 v A A6 ) A5 B
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong 2 3% #& i & i 8 K BB 1M 8 “F- b 5 % 55 45
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements & AT E - 8 TAL Gk~ B M AEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes 547 8 K B BF 1M /3 - Hb 51 i 4 & BA S i 2R A0
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the B2 AR > DA 45 & BAES R R A AEFE |
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial — FAHKFE B &5 5 17 B 2 TR S5 R Ak 5 22849
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or N FH 8 2 S et BOR 5 MIRIEW FEH &
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making PR @&r&Hfitist o

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T S A% B Rl e o

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY BB Z ¥

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial — AS47 [ B AL AR IEALT A A% $ 7% %5 45 & Bt
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a  FHEIEHE R > AR4THI A1 A RIECH %
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for %4\ 7] 5 )55 90 fli 25 SR (V24— 17 B ) 1 4w
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability %! > 3l A 2 HABATAT H A9 o AF7 300 A5 AR
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit 4 2 (A 25 #HT A FoAth A R & AT 4] 26 75 B 422
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong  ZATAT &FAT o AN47 B MR 45 7 ik & 5 A 2 & 48
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that i 2 7 #& 26 5t 1 QI HE 4T 38 4% o ¥ 4l e HI 385K
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain A< 47 2857 48 f R &5 > A6 BB M HATHEZ - DL
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are & i B 45 & MBME RS A FH LM HEK
free from material misstatement. iR Ak

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about A% ¥ M BATAR ¥ LASER A B 45 & A ] 35
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. #4408 MR G R 2 BZIRE - JTEEZ
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 72 ¢ BB iR A2 SOl 2 0 7 > 60 45 514G i K
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial — FF 5% &5 52 1 5 B4 & A R F A7 A R85k
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, — B#lt 2 JEFgE o 76 #FA0 7% 25 BB RF > AR1T7% 58
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and i B 8 45 % K 155 i /A 1 $th 51 R 47 & A 5 4R
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order — FAH B 2 N = H > DLk sHE & 2 B E
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not  J¢ > {H 3l IF /% 35 5 88 (R 3 45 il 2 sk he 8t kR
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 5, o Z# % IR 45 5PAE 3 F T 88 ) 2 & 5 HUR
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 2 & & FrfE i Z Gt st 2 &8 - U
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates M FPAE &7 & MF ik 2 a5 5 = o

made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ~ ARITAH(E > AT ES 2 BZIEEZTLEM
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. T A AN I B A PR LR o

OPINION HR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair ~ A4T§8 5 > ZE &S HBER KXY E REE
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 and of the — FAM¥R 45 B H B B\ V-l s e S &£ FiR —
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong ~ FZE/NFE=H =+—HZHBUR & S4EH
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in A ZE% H IFEEZ EEMEEHE > W E
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies % I8 7 ¥ (/A BG4 ) A B 2 S 8RB € Z 15 i

Ordinance. o

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu TRy o B EEBICTT FrRH AT
Certified Public Accountants Syl

Hong Kong Hk

4th July, 2008 ZEZ)NELHIMH
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
AR AR AR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FFE/\E=H=+—HIL4FE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

2008 2007
"R\ B
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BT o TN
Continuing operations R R
Revenue & 7 181,944 93,389
Property sale and rental income YIESH & A& 81,792 5,251
Golf and leisure income (=N R 1L ON 62,622 52,367
144,414 57.618
Cost of sales BHE A (67,511) (14,073)
Gross profit EF 76,903 43,545
Net income from loan financing BRI A 31,789 21,036
Net gain on financial instruments SRt TH 2 3l 8 76,382 28,623
Other income HAt A 9 73,206 105,616
Administrative expenses FTECE (141,959) (85,400)
Finance costs A% 2 10 (109,933) (97,009)
Impairment losses on prepaid lease payments of  #H & + b FE A FH 15 A
leasehold land and premium on prepaid lease NS TEA T E
payments of leasehold land AIE 2 Vi (8 2 WA 1R 17 (45,000) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MEE AR ZEE  2300) (39,486) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B B A W) 2 s 1R 46 (19,073) -
Compensation for cancellation of call options for i 5T &5k i — 5 & A 7
acquisition of additional interest in an associate  ZH/MESFRIEIIME > WE  23() - 23,370
Share of results of associates JE AL Hih 2 ) SE 4R 23 (25,047) 40,916
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBAHT (518 T (122,218) 80,697
Taxation BLIH 11 (3,475) (10,004)
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing A BEBR 1 5 4 A 2R
operations Z (18 i Fl (125,693) 70,693
Discontinued operations R BRBEEH
(Loss) profit for the year from discontinued ARAEBEAR I RRAEAS S S5
operations Z (18 i 12 (18,665) 3,408
(Loss) profit for the year AAELE (5 18) i Al 13 (144,358) 74,101
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
AR AR AR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FE/NFE=H=+—HIL4FE)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

NOTE

Attributable to: FHIN AL

Equity holders of the Company AAFRERTEA A

Minority interests DBUR AR AR
(Loss) earnings per share & (E18) 2 A 15
From continuing and discontinued operations: K H#3 %8 K IEF SR B L :

— Basic (HK cents) — AR (L)

~ Diluted (HK cents) — HE (A1)
From continuing operations: K H R R R -

— Basic (HK cents) — AR (WAl

— Diluted (HK cents) — B (A1)

49

2008 2007
ZRBN\ “EELE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T T oo
(141,853) 79,091
(2,505) (4,990)
(144,358) 74,101
4.8) 3.7
N/AAEH 3.6
@.2) 3.6
N/AKR#H 3.5




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
wRa B E AR

(as at 31st March, 2008) (R _ZBENE=H=+—H)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

50

2008 2007
ZEBN\E TERAE
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
Ktz W T o TN
Non-current assets BTl 7
Property, plant and equipment Y2k ~ WA R 16 178,543 279,956
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land TG - M TR AR & #OE 17 20,808 96,772
Premium on prepaid lease payments of A+ M AT &
leasehold land HH Z Vi 18 18 114,294 131,527
Intangible assets Y B E 20 = 430
Available-for-sale investments nf it E R E 21 94,570 130,036
Interest in properties held for development N EEE R 2 2 MR 22 14,745 =
Interests in associates TR RS N T 2 HE2S 23 135,503 93,879
Unsecured loans and interest due from JRE NSO 2 ) 2 JEAEG A
associates i=0)& ISt 24 1,077,690 1,234,443
Debt portion of convertible bonds AR IR IR 2 AR 25 51,120 -
Derivatives embedded in convertible bonds ] 4 B 5 Bt 2
fiid TH 25 4,865 =
Deposits and expenses paid for acquisition of A S8 = b R A B A
a land use right ¥ 4 KB 7 26 47,275 41,466
Deposit and expenses paid for acquisition I i — [ B 25 A T B 4
of an associate &b 27 - 90,675
Deposits and expenses paid for acquisition W 2 AR &
of properties &b 28 - 27,125
Other loan receivables Al PR L R 29 - 9,634
1,739,413 2,135,943
Current assets REE
Inventories ety 30 2,161 76,919
Properties held for sale fREY 2 252,903 58,536
Properties under development Ry 19 240,853 11,296
Financial assets at fair value through N TAEFIIR K wEA
profit or loss Bt 2 AR 31 11,957 66,725
Debtors, deposits and prepayments PEUS IR R - 24 &
FEATRIE 32 514,795 473,160
Other loan receivables oAt U Bk 29 243,133 205,495
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land FHE + M FEA AL & 08 17 517 2,480
Amounts due from associates JRE SR 28 2 ) KT 24 2,154 68
Unsecured loans and interest due from A p N D 12 =
related companies R EAS A1) 2, 33 58,251 54,567
Tax recoverable EIEE TR - 1,506
Pledged bank deposits 2RI T 34 51,818 40,783
Bank balances and cash ATHE R Bl 34 243,038 254,622
1,621,580 1,246,157




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
wRa B E AR

(as at 31st March, 2008)

(R=FFENE=ZH=1—H)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accrued charges

Amounts due to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Dividend payable to a minority shareholder

of a subsidiary
Tax payable

Unsecured loans from minority shareholders

of subsidiaries

Unsecured loan from a related company

Convertible note payables — due within
one year

Obligations under finance leases — due
within one year

Bank and other borrowings — due within
one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Convertible note payables — due after
one year

Obligations under finance leases — due
after one year

Bank and other borrowings — due after
one year

Deferred tax liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
Minority interests

B 14
ERTIRS ~ fe &
JERTBH 32
JREAS Wi g 3 ] 2 e
i e e

NOTES
Kt

35

36

JREASF — [RIBHS J 2 7] — D Bk

JBCHR R,

JE LI

Wi I 2w D B R
AL R

— BB 7] 2 SR 38

—EER B 2 AT HRBR

FEATRRIE
—AERF| ] A
LB AR
—AENEE Z RAT K
HAb £

IR )
B IR ) £ 43

FEH I £
— R B 2 AT
SRR BKIH
—ERIN ME
HERYE
— AR B 2 SRAT
S HAAG &
LB A R

E/NGIL SRR DN
JE A HE £
DB R 4

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 166 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4th July, 2008 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Hon Kit
RO

Chairman

T

51

39

40

41

39

40

41
42

43

2008 2007
ZREN\ i
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T
70,392 158,947
890 1,884

- 2,354

13,252 12,340

- 4515

- 1,616

7,284 7,945

49 24
113,996 111,439
205,863 301,064
1,415,717 945,093
3,155,130 3,081,036
1,236,559 1,360,455
173 71
39,647 8,081
28,574 40,609
1,304,953 1,409,216
1,850,177 1,671,820
30,955 23,123
1,812,043 1,598.516
1,842,998 1,621,639
7,179 50,181
1,850,177 1,671,820

A E 166 B T4 & MR E R ZFT N
E-BH D H R E e SRR > Wi
THIEFCREE

Cheung Chi Kit

L35y S

Executive Director

HITEF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FFE/\E=H=+—HIL4FE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 4 #2545 45 FR A 7]

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARTREESH AR

Convertible ~ Share-  Available-
Capital  loan notes based  for-sale
redemption ~ equity  payment investments Minority
Share Share  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Other ~ Special Revaluation Translation Accumulated interests
capital  premim B WHBEE  BBHE  WREE  reerve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  Total PEBK  Total
Rk BB Bl MR B SR MR WDRE ERBG  BERE RN A BE &
HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§$'000 HKS'000
BT ERTr Bkt T ERTx BRTr BT EWTx BETr BT EWT #RTx BT EWTn
(notei) — (noteii)

k) (i)

At Ist April, 2006 REZZAENH—H 6314 21324 646 157,053 - - 32,308 (8,908) - 2,296 42,084 45017 816 445833
Exchange differences arising ~~ ESNAEH 2
ontranslation of foreign R AR

operations - = = - = = = - = 8,068 - 8,008 5077 13,145
Gain on fair value changes i e AT

of available-for-sale Gl

investments - = = - = 3481 = - = = - 3481 = 3481

Net income recognised directly AR H#FED L
in equity HHlA - - - - - 3481 - - - 8,068 - 11,549 501 16,626
Profitor the year KRR = = = = = - - - - - ML 0 @90 7400

Total recognised income REEERARASE

for the year - - - - - 3481 - - - 8,068 79,091 90,640 87 90,727
Transfer (note i) B () - = - - = - (32308 - = - R38 = = =
Recogition of equity e v

component of convertible notes A = = - A6 = = = = = = - 464 - A6
Conversion of convertible notes Wi HiFTHuZ48 8953 393,688 - (63,393) - - - - - - - 339248 - 33948
Issue of shares B 833 491,666 - - - - - - - - - 500,000 - 500,000
Expenses incurred in connection 172

with issue of shares - (12908 - - - - - - - - - (12908 - (12,908
Repurchase and cancellation Bl Bt e

of shares @8 (9615 478 - - . - - . S T o009
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FEB B AK B3

share-based payments - - - - 329 - - - - - - 329 - 329
Dividend payable toa minority  FEff—%» BRI S

shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - - (2354) (235
Acquired on acquisition e i TN

of subsidiaries (note 45) (345 = - - - - - - - 1,795 - - 1,795 51,632 53421
At 31st March, 2007 RoZELE

=A=1+-H 23,123 1,066,055 1124 368304 3,296 3481 - (8,908) 1,795 10364 153,005 1,621,639 50181 1,671,820
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FE/NFE=H=+—HIL4FE)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARTRERSH AR

Convertible ~ Share-  Available-
Capital  loan notes based  for-sale
redemption ~ equity  payment investments Minority
Share Share  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Other ~ Special Revaluation Translation Accumulated interests
capital  premim B WHBEHE BB WHME  reerve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  Total PEBK  Total
Rk RBRE B BRRE B SR MR WDRE ERBG  BNEBE RN A BE &
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§$'000 HKS'000
BT ERTr gkt T RTx BRTr BiTx EWTx BETr BT W #ETx BT W Tn

(noted)  (noteii)

(k) ()
Exchange differences arising ~ #F SEUEH 2
on translation of foreign B R
operations - - - - - - - - - 18,580 - 18,580 3418 22038
Gain on fair value changes ik EREATE
of available-for-sale Ci e
investments - - - - - M43 - - - - - 37 - 37
Netincome recognised directly  fBi A e i ELFERERD
inequiy FiA . . . . - ual . . ) - 0Bl 34’ 664
Released on disposal of FA B A A
subsidiaries (note 46) (Hitas) - - - - - - = - 1) (21470 - (46 (B91)  (66439)
Released on disposal of FA b ik e
available-for-sale investments i} = = = = - (6075) = = = = - (60750 - (60752
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - - - - (141853)  (141853)  (2505)  (144358)
Total recognised expenses REETREIRL
for the year i - - - - - (163 - SO %) (418) (6L (@300)  (05119)
Conversion of convertible notes Wi HiFTHuZ48 483 268,001 - (60585) = = = = = = - 48 - 20248
Issue of shares Bk 3000 165000 - - - - - - - - - 168,000 - 168000
Expenses incurred in connection 172
with issue of shares - (5,114) - - - - - - - - - (5,114) - (5,114)
Recognition of equity-setfled BB MRS {3
share-based payments - - - - 8,342 - - - - - - 8,342 - 8,342
At 315t March, 2008 REFENE
=R=4-H 30955 1493942 L4 307719 11,638 (12,900) - (8,908) 804 T4 1,152 1,842,998 179 1850177
Notes: Mt -
1) Other reserve of the Group represents net balance from capital reduction and (i) A S5 [ Ho At ft Al 2 AR SR N — 2 F =AW A
cancellation of share premium and set-off against the deficit pursuant to the T HH 2 AT AR A 8 A ik
capital reorganisation on 15th April, 2003. Pursuant to a resolution of the 8 R RS s 4 BT AR A o IRIRE R —F
Directors passed on 29th September, 2006, the amount of other reserve was ENENA B BEBRZ REE > Hib
transferred to the accumulated profits. Tt R E i = AR A -
(ii) Special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal (ii) 7 £ B Rl ARt 485 5 A A AR B A — JL L
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount A B2 (8] o AL T o S R A ) 2 e A T B
of the share capital of the Company issued as consideration under the group AN FV AT AU 2 A (B 5 2 22
reorganisation in 1994. HH o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
o Bl

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (# % _~FFNE=H=+—HILFEE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

2008 2007
ZERNE ZERELAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T 0 ki o I
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLHT (518 i6i 1 (140,325) 84,156
Adjustments for: FEIEE -
Finance costs W5 H 110,546 98,844
Share of results of associates JE L g )N T AR 25,047 (40,916)
Allowance for amount due from associate JRE VST M 7 W R TR A = 1
Amortisation of intangible assets T o = 225
Bank interest income SRATRLE IR A (10,259) (33,942)
Interest income on convertible bonds CIE 34 ei P ST UN (3,036) -
Interest on unsecured loan due from JRE WS — T B 7 A ) 2 ST A
an associate B HE (51,618) (56,182)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 ~ MM N sk 1T 8 17,569 20,797
Allowance for inventories ea =gl 5,106 10,870
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts SRR 1,801 145
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments of T e T A5 L B TR 6
leasehold land 2,293 1,984
Amortisation of premium on prepaid lease A+ Hh TR A AR B R
payments of leasehold land Tt AR 2,914 2,502
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries iy YN B = (4,207)
Dividend income received from an associate Bl — [ A R 2 BRI - (7,452)
Compensation of cancellation of call options T R A B — PRI e o
for acquisition of additional interest in FHHIME £t R i A RE 2 A
an associate - (23,370)
Equity-settled share-based payments expense DIBRRESRS B DI AR TE AT B S 8,342 3,296
Impairment losses on prepaid lease payments FHEE 1 b P A AH B 3k H S A 1
of leasehold land and premium on prepaid TEAS AH B K TR 1 2 (B s 1E
lease payments of leasehold land 45,000 -
Loss on disposal of an associate B — FRTIE A R 2 1R 39,486 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EWEE - B G 2 1R
equipment 127 235
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries BB A R 2 1R 37,644 -
Write-off of intangible assets R SISV - 2,550
Net gain on financial instruments SR T H 2 il (71,772) (18,217)
Operating cash flows before movements in RetEEE LB EH 2
working capital KBTS E 18,865 41,319
Decrease (increase) in other loan receivables oAt BE WS S () 31,682 (162,180)
Increase in unsecured loans and interest B 3N ) 2 S T R K B A
due from related companies PSSy (3,684) (43,499)
Increase in inventories B R (27,652) (15,178)
(Increase) decrease in properties held for sale RS &M 2E (38 m) B> (167,242) 213
Increase in properties under development BE R SR (244,128) (5,696)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at N TEFNRE R AR 28 2
fair value through profit or loss B A A D (B 63,717 (39,465)
Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments JREMST IR R ~ F2 4 B TR A R TR 1 i (43,677) (15,086)
Increase in amounts due from associates JRE VAT B 5 /2 ) SR TE T (2,086) (69)
Increase in creditors, deposits and PEATHE R ~ e 4 I T BH S 1 i
accrued charges 48,562 33,070
Cash used in operations S pT B4 (325,643) (206,571)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
i o Bl
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2008 2007
“RENE R
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid CA WA 8L (1,568) (34
Overseas taxation paid C8UE S MBIIH (203) (1,930)
Interest paid CATALE (22,855) (9,744)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING R RBPIRE
ACTIVITIES Bl Em (350,269) (218,279)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES i e
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale A AT It B R TS R
investments 226,428 -
Net proceeds from disposal of associates thETE A B BT A9 S E T AR 136,607 -
Proceeds from disposal of convertible bonds B T A A 5 P A5 Kk TR 44,975 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEY)ZE ~ M A
equipment REE e 188 135
Refundable earnest money received BT TRIEE & - 140,000
Interest received BAEISS 9,331 19,630
Advance to associates BT E A A (81,409) (954,424)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments i i AT AL (63,258) (126,555)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEAMIZE ~ B S st (39,151) (44,019)
Refundable earnest money paid BT TR R 4 (25,600) (352,075)
Increase in pledged bank deposits AP ERAT A7 K (11,035) (37,783)
Deposit and expenses paid for acquisition of W N F B 2 S BR
an associate = (90,675)
Deposit and expenses paid for acquisition of Wi B b fe I ARE A
a land use right i KB X (5,809) (41,466)
Deposit and expenses paid for acquisition W ZE AR A BB
of properties = (27,125)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash AT R o BB 2 ) (TS o i
and cash equivalents acquired) W4 R4 EER) 45 = (120,315)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash th B BT A B (1R BT s B
and cash equivalents disposed) He KB ESEEB) 46 (56,310) =
Acquisition of associates A B 5 ) (45,507) (4,942)
Development cost incurred AR BREE AR = (219)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING 8¢9 57 Wi £ (9i#6)
ACTIVITIES B eEE 89,450 (1,639,833)
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2008 2007
“RENE R
HK$’000 HK$°000
EW T BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES [:3ee 3
New bank borrowings raised RIS S 5,741,188 37,815
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT Ry P A5 2K TE 168,000 500,000
Advance from minority shareholders RFF g 2 7] A BB R 2
of subsidiaries R 13,493 507
Net proceeds from issue of convertible notes BEAT R4 R R A S R AR - 981,730
Unsecured loan from a related company — [H] B8 A ) 2 A K - 67
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBATIHE (5,668,618) (10,939)
Expenses paid in connection with issue of shares #5470 BT 2 BHSZ (5,114) (12,908)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases %2 il & FH & R 4% (23) (144)
Repayment of loans from minority shareholders B2 [t i/ 7] DB R 2
of subsidiaries B = (30,386)
Repayment of unsecured other borrowings fE3E H A HEA 1 & - (36,565)
Share repurchase and cancellation g [ % B R A = (20,093)
Repayment of unsecured loan from a director fE38— 4 = 2 SEHRHR K - (3,998)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES &% A& T8 248,926 1,405,086
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND B RBEFHAH
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA (11,893) (453,026)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RWUH—HZBE&R
AT 1ST APRIL BLE&NMEH 254,622 705,480
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE AhBESE ) 2 5
RATE CHANGES 309 2,168
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RE=A=1+—H284%
AT 31ST MARCH, BBl e H
representing bank balances and cash FTEERIT AL R M B 4 243,038 254,622

56
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1. GENERAL 1. — ek
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company AN B A E B R AL 2
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange AR AR > HBEOREBE S K
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The address of the G A RAF (TBASRT]) i o A&
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, Church Street, N 7 2 g A B S H 4k % Clarendon
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of the House, Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Company is Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Bermuda > MASZ ) 32 B85 25 B 7 74
Road, Central, Hong Kong. v o IR B 1298 25 B BRAT Hh 031
#3102 o

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Hong Kong %5 A BAES R T LAAR N R T RE B M
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. MEAR Y o

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal AAR B EER AT - REBMZ E
activities of the Group are property development and investment TR IR - AR
in Macau, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong (T EEBREYEER LT
Kong, development and operation of golf resort and hotel in the PRC, B R R R R AR R T R R R
securities investment and loan financing services. During the year, MR E - 35 E KSR E R
the Group discontinued trading of motorcycles and manufacturing oo FEIR > A 45 CE B R
and trading of medicine and health products, details of which are set R N E T R R A o REIE
out in note 12. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in AR EE12 o H T EHHE A 7 2 EH
note 55. HAMEEESS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. JRE PR B B SR A A VS S A o v Y
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the AR > AREEE RERZ Hb &
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new et A e ([ HFHEEsA e )
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public A ZEELENHA —HBBE G2
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s AL [ 2 B U B A R A TR e
financial year beginning 1st April, 2007. AI > ERT B R (5 7 vk B 15 R 15 e
Al) o
HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures B e B
19 (R
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures HHMTREENSR TR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach Bk (FEMTRERE  EREEEH
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting ZEG) 2T 2085
in Hyperinflationary Economies T RS
Bl b 2 BT R
HI%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 Btk (B MBRE 2R ST E
ZEG) — R 08k i
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (BT E  EfhRARMETR
ZEG) — R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Btk (BTG RE  POIBR S R
Impairment ZEE) 2105
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Btk (B MBRE 2R BT R E
Transactions ZEG) 2R % AR
JEFFIRAR AL 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B o F R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FE/N\E=H="+—HIL4FE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 45 PR A 7]

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has
been removed and the relevant comparative information based on
the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been
presented for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

M JEI 5900 Y B 488465 iy 7 vl 4 0 it 5 v Y
(#1)

A5 B © 40 Fll 26 90 R A A s 2 L
SR UERTAS) R 7 s B B o e 2R
THEOH T I EERUE « IRIEE s
R 56 3258 2 K TR AR 15 4R B R A i
TERCHAEER - s &t e
SR UERTAS) R 7 s B B o e 2R
THERLE BA B LB R A
KE5

A B R £ LRE A DA AR A4 v
RARCHHER] ~ 7T S B o

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial B ErEHERI S 157 2FI BB #RE
Statements' (& 15aT)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs! Bt e 50358 R
(K&1E3T)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate FETHEALETY  HA B MERE
Financial Statements? (& 15aT)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments THEFHERSE AT ZAR TR
and Obligations Arising on BT (BT A) KR E R
Liquidation’ EEZEM
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and B it BT ) B VR B s
Cancellations' LAl HEN)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? T B e R EBA0
355 (BT
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' T B e R =gl
£
HKIFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession it (PR T R A FRBS R HE 2 B
Arrangements? HRZEE) -
AR 1298
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes* Brits (B R BT KF Bt
AREAY) -
AR 1358
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on T (B PR BB i aHE
a Defined Benefit Asset, wRZAE) - 519%% — EHH 4
Minimum Funding AR 1450 B R
Requirements and BIREAHE &
their Interaction? 2 2 B

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 1 N EENFE—H— Bk Z AL
LA RE A AR AL
REEENELH— AR Bt
AR AR R
NERENFE—H—HBZ &M S
LA AR AR L
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008 4 W EE)NFLH— Bz B

N —=

AR BEIATAER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009 2

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008 3
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. JREE JE) i) e 8 ) 4 S I 5 4 v Y

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d) (#%)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for U H A — BT FE LA — B
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 2 1% BR bR B4 IR AF BE R A T B dR 2
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or RFER EC A% o I BR A0 75 v RS o 4 HE )
after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting 53598 (FBMER]) vl R RS 28 BH2E TS A 1
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary ZEEIEM o AT ME AT Z
that do not result in a loss of control, which will be accounted for A 5 ) 3 OB B L IRE > Al
as equity transactions. The directors of the Company anticipate that Fs g stuE RIS 2798 (RAEHT) A 28
the application of other new or revised standards, amendments or A g 2 a5t A 2 DL
interpretations will have no material effect on how the results and the JEREAZ Gy AN B o RN FIE R M - 1
financial position of the Group are prepared and presented. FA AT KA AEFTHER ~ &R 5

AN & 35 A4 B ) SE A % B 5 IR DL A
KRR -

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ER 3 Fiy e
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the R U0 SC T 3w R T s T 4 A
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which TRBATEFIRS > 456 MBS HRE
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies TR IR S0 A I A B o
set out below.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in SR SRR T H A s € w2
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued i 2 A W o s i ME T T A Y o b
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements Hh > GRS R R A I S e 2 b
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the T Bl B A s N R ) B E 2 38
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong P d% -

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation ERe BeuE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial EEE SRR G A ) B AN A HE
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company HIE R LK g AR 2 A HRE - &
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the AN A R E — B B R
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as B Z RET > AR T 425 A HL Y ) B
to obtain benefits from its activities. R 4 IR B A AR 23 B 422 I
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are T AT A Wi i i 2 T N B AR T
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date B AR H sk B E AR H
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. WE BT ) FhASE B R o
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of i 5 B2 IR 197 3 B JB 4 ) 2 A R
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used fE % > 354 H a5l BUR B AR 4E
by other members of the Group. I At 552 B 2 W BT BRI AR o
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are LENAFIBZIAERLS - #k Kk
eliminated on consolidation. SCEIERER S IR E R o
Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are BB SR B A B B E R E L
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority HE £ B A 4 [ A 2 R R 4 B 2
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests G o /BB RO B V2 R A LA
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s TR S & B H 9 2 25 R D Uk
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses WHA U H IR AL S A ) - DR
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the I BRI A e 15 s 2D OB SO 5% B
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group N A HE RS 2 2 BE Y 4 L & AR 4R
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is HE2E > e D BB B 49 ) AT
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses. T Be 4 A R A% TR AR A B s 4R R
BRA o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations™ are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits

and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Joint ventures BEATH
Jointly controlled operations JE[F] EE T
When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture MERTMRESECEZHEER
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled operations, TS IR B R B 2R > T EZ
the assets and liabilities arising from those jointly controlled GALF PRI EH EEZ EEKAETT
operations are recognised in the balance sheet of the relevant A RERFR AR Z EEAMEK
company on an accrual basis and classified according to the nature hffERd > AR IRRZIE H Z W o
of the item. The Group’s share of the income from jointly controlled A A ) RS R 428 o SE TS 2 A > 2
operations, together with the expenses that it incurs are included T EE A 2 B3 » N5 W B 2 88
in the consolidated income statement when it is probable that the a5 M6 T RE B A AR A [ RE R
economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to/from NERE AR R
the Group.
Revenue recognition Weas e
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received W ts T4 B sk e U A 2 A PE R
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and & RFERNHEETRE PRt
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts EE it S AR5 JRE MAr B Fm ok G B % i 5 A
and sales related taxes. BHBLIHZ %8 -
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has FHE B YN B AAT I B T Iy
passed. TR
Revenue in relation to hotel and golf club operations are recognised R 5 Ko AT R BR e 2 0 A A B At
when the services are provided. RS IR HERR o
Golf club annual subscription fees are recognised on a straight-line o T R BR e e e AR R B4R A DA
basis over the subscription period of one year. B AERERR o
Golf club membership transfer fees are recognised upon approval of E Rk G e H RN RS
the transfer by the management committee of the golf operations. BHZ B e e R iERT o
Building management fee income is recognised over the relevant A5 T S A B AR RS 2 AH B A
period in which the services are rendered. IR o
Sales of securities investments are recognised when the related PHE B ST ENR T RAHEA KA
brought and sold notes are executed. TRRFIERR o
Sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a binding sales B EZ LA TR R R AR T 856
agreement. Toh ek I HERR o
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by & Rl EE 2 FLE I T AR R A &
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest B3 B T M R g R[] R e - i >
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated W% 1) 2R 77 314 46 Rl T R TR R AR B A A
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to wh H AR B A R B 2 A AR TR
that asset’s net carrying amount. Z .
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance, from
properties under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including building, held for use or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the
term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land

Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land, which represent up-front
payments to acquire leasehold land interest, are stated at cost and
released to profit or loss over the period of the lease on a straight-line
basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. LEEFBOR (48)
Premium on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land FH 5 - TR A AL 5 R O = 96
Premium on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land represents TR 1 b TE AT FH 6 3K0E 2 1 38 Rk
premium on acquisition of prepaid lease payments of land use rights I8 F Jo A ) T A B - b o D R TELAST AR
as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries, which are stated at cost and ERIEZ W TI R BAS R - %
released to profit or loss on the same basis as the related land use AR [ - Hb s R RE AR ) 2 BEHEFE 48 75
rights. S
Intangible assets W R
Research and development expenditure OFIE R BT
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the T 2 P 2 A S R R B S o

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development b %52 B T B AR NS AT B E

expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the A TEIA O FE 2 T H BT A A B A

development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be AT 37 i H A% v 2E T B i e RE T B
recovered through future commercial activity. The amount initially R WIS HER NI T G E 2 &
recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the sum of the R AT B E E R MR GEZ B
expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first T AE 2 BR SRR o BT AR A T
meets the recognition criteria. The resultant asset is subsequently FER > % E SR > IR A,
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at HoA% B A8 I AT 2 5 (E s 1R 5
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated B o

impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, A 51 90 P T AT T T HERR
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in B R E AR IR A IR 4 -

which it is incurred.

Inventories Pty

Hotel inventories and other inventories are stated at the lower of T8 5 17 & B A AR 8 T e A B vl 5
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted BFE 2 AR A AR o BAS DL AT
average method. YESE -

Properties held for sale RAL/ES

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net T B W S A% AR % mT 5 B 2 AR
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to FHARR o IEBFETIS % HEMNE
professional valuations or directors’ estimates based on prevailing B S IR BT T DU R E -

market conditions.

Properties under development Bk

Properties under development for future sale in the ordinary course e H % EH R AL h AR H ARS8 &

of business are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Tt Z R ) S AR I R s BV E 2

comprises the costs of land use right and development expenditure RREFT AR EE - HRSHEORE

directly attributable to the development of the properties. b fe I RE RS B BE R Y E E
JREAG 22 %8 R BH S RLAS o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. LR ()

Financial instruments (Cont’d) SR T H ()

Financial assets (Cont’d) B (4

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d) BN TESR Rat AR i5 2 SRl g ()

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be B TIMED > AFHEE & 2 &

designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: B LS 2 B EE o RT A ) R e

R IR 1 0 2% e (B B R Bt AR
5 -

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a . B B 3 B SR R B T R
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would WER TR BRA —B 2
otherwise arise; or W5 Bk

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial o 4 VB A 4 i E el
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed BEASHEHTE ZHS ﬂf
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in R 4 A 42 [ BT o e 2 P
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management BRME > H I (R R4S I ]
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is FEAG R IR 5 T B R I 4R
provided internally on that basis; or B2 B UE R R ER AL 5 Bk

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded . R AR A — R D) B
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined ﬁA]\JU{IEEIE\Z FONEEER
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. 111 A s I BN 397}*’ )

%Hﬁi}%ﬁ:\é‘ﬁ%%‘] (HAEREA
f8) 800 I3 45 0 E S wk AR 4
ZEMEE o

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial AW IR HERRAR 2 £ 850 H > ¥ FE
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value 51 i 2 nf)\fﬁ it 2 ﬁ Tl ¥ 2 DA N PE
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. FhE > ACPEARETE 1 fﬁﬁﬂ ] Eﬁf
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend BaE RS o R R R P R 2 4R I AR
or interest earned on the financial assets. %EE % ﬁ Tl 2 T R B T B R
18 o
Loans and receivables BRI
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed B R T E W Sk T8 TG 3 4 A TS R T B R
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 8 2 [ 7 S 2 4 B AN AR 2 FEATTAE 4
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans MEE - RMLHRESSEEH - &
and receivables (including debtors, other loan receivables, amounts K B R i R T ( @AEWEWEE/TA - HAth
due from associates, unsecured loans and interest due from related JE W K IE J‘Elﬂlﬁiﬁ 2N El FRE ~ e
companies/associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances Eﬁ NI L /N i e = |
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest B E?Fﬂfﬁ SRAT AR DA B BRAT 55 B I
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy H4e) U\E[@%UMFE S x| EZﬁ@C
on impairment loss on financial assets below). AT E R A EREEAR - GESH T
SCA B <l 7 (EL R 1R 2 B RTEUR)
Available-for-sale financial assets AL B il
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either AT A 4 RlE 7 T 4 E B0 R A S
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and Bt AN TEIE R AHL 2 S @&
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. B B KERCGRIES A Z 2 H
ZHEEZFMETH -
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, MG HERE 2 BREEAEE > alfth
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes B & Rl E A \y{ﬁ FHAE o AFHZ
in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is E@jﬁ/\%ﬁn HHERR - H 2 a% 4 Rl G
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the ﬁﬁgiﬁimuﬂfﬁﬂﬁ JELSFKEN
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed Tﬁﬁn R B *fllﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬁi‘ﬁ 5 ﬁ HE
from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on 2 PR > MR A BRI o (FE2
impairment loss on financial assets below). T%j(ﬁ B 4 Bl A 7 S (EL S 1H 2 & R
)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Debt portion of convertible bonds

Convertible bonds held by the Group are separately recognised as
a debt portion and derivatives embedded in convertible bonds. On
initial recognition, the debt portion of the convertible bond and the
embedded derivatives are recognised separately at fair value . The
debt portion is subsequently measured at amortised cost according to
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. In all other circumstances, derivatives embedded are
not separated and are accounted for together with the host contracts
in accordance with appropriate standards.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EEEEHBOR ()
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ST H )
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 2l A VR [ ()
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could M A M EMEEN S > WEZE
include: PRSP ] AR LSS
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; . BEFT N BB T 7 17 7 ik BB

or # 5 5
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or C A B R S AT RLE BOA 4
1
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy . & 3K NA W] BEB EE ST A
or financial re-organisation. B4 -
For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors and JFRE AT R S e Lt BB WA R A A A A
other loan receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired FEMAIEZ A TEMEEE > &
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective 15 T2 45 8 SR AT W (B R A o EMCIR
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables PG 2 H BB EE R A R AL
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, ZBAEBGREE R - HE NI BERE
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past 7 60 H ~F- 3515 B HH sl e i Bk 2 B
the average credit period of 60 days and the repayment date of loan B H W 2 RN > DA K B U AR 3R
receivables respectively, and observable changes in national or local A B 2 A B B by S IR B 2
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables. ot o
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss U S A GREET S »
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that i 27 A7 76 & B 4B R W1 G B B
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the B > I E 487 15 45 BR N ERR - 3
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future 2 A R T B 40 2R BT R R SR B
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. ZAhEH AR B &N R BUE 2 L
= o

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the M SREEN S > SMEE IR
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception T {5 B 4% W R - MR
of debtors and other loan receivables, where the carrying amount A RE Y B R A > AR (E TS
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the R AR E M - BEIRE
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or 2 W THT (B3 ) A48 25 AR N FERR. o i
loss. When a debtor or a loan receivable is considered uncollectible, ST R R At R A AR 2 R i
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries [l > R B4 A AR H BN o FLAR U D@
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss. AR 2 R IH R AR AR IR o
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent U A E SREET S -
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease ik 25 B 1 00 0 e (B s R AR L Y - T
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment S0 T 5 4 M Bk {1 e 1R A R
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is A FIENEE > RIS e R 2 8
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount R R 25 AR IR > Ml DEE N B &
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed B 22 PR TR (L AS 75 8 468 ik 2 S 48 e 5 Ul
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not B 2 e LA o

been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEFBOR ()
Financial instruments (Cont’d) LT H (%)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 2 B ()

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

AT 3t B AR B 2 W E R 1R S &
T BB AR 0 THT A 48 2 BR A3 (B o % 9 (EL s
AR B AT AL AT 2 P (38 0 B B e
ATHERE o

ERA R
HERMER BT EMARRRAT
HAG TRl LA R Z P 2 B VA R
B A TR 2 g i 7381 -

FRe A T 5 s W T A 4 1 A4 B
HT A B AR R i f 2 AR AT 547

Financial liabilities LA
Financial liabilities including creditors, amounts due to minority ST (LIS REATHR R - REASHI B A
shareholders of subsidiaries, dividend payable to a minority T DU R ERIE - REAT B A ) D B

shareholder of a subsidiary, bank and other borrowings, unsecured
loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries and unsecured loan
from a related company are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible note payables

Convertible note payables issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible note payables and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible loan notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible loan notes equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
loan notes equity reserve will be transferred to share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will be released to the
accumulated profits). No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEETHEOR ()
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ST H )
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) BRIA AR (HE)
Convertible note payables (Cont’d) PR IR SRR A RO ()
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan BRLBEAT W] 45 JI S R SR AR AR B 2 22 5 I
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in A TG 4 Fir A5 s H 2 #10r Bl e Bl 2= A
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs B R AT 43 o B AR FR 43 A B 2 228
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity. G AT BT ATRAS A o BLA 5
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included Gy MR 2 38 5 AR T A A B Ay 2
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over WRTH(E > S % W] 4 B Bk SR 4 2 AR
the period of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest R BRI SR -
method.
Equity instruments JieAs T
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the AN R BT EEAT IR TR 4% Bl i 33K
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. TEIN R B AT AR IR o
Upon repurchase of the Company’s own shares, the respective AR IR AR F A B 2 B e > B B
shares are subsequently called upon repurchase and accordingly, B35 1% B [l 452 7 LR > ARX R 2 B
the issued share capital of the Company is diminished by the BEAT IBCAS IS B+ N B T (ELAR R AF b i
nominal value thereof. The premium payable on repurchase was o HEAT i ] IR A 2 Ve (B A AR 4 ]
charged against the Company’s share premium account. An amount Z By FE MR M TR o — SEAR A B
equal to the nominal value of the shares repurchased is transferred i [ A7 TR 2 SOOI P 28 s
from accumulated profits to capital redemption reserve. NN i
Effective interest method B RLE
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BRI R T w4 AR 2 B A
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest AL K 4y B AR BR 4 B 22 ) 6L B 8 2 7
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the % o BRI T H A B AR 2 FEEHE
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through S B P 2 R ] Ay Y T O LA
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a KRB BSHZFIE o
shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis. I JEL BH SCH B R B B ERERR -
Derecognition AL #ERR
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fisf BB B 4 U 2 REF E
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred o B4R O AR B
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and S 4 Pl T S A HEE 2 A DR L i
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a B o $R 7% > RI#E (R TERE A E o
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount T K LF T BT 4 A I o MR T (E
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the B L S s RS K B B A HE 4 e
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity M R B A R M IRE
is recognised in profit or loss. i ARFERR o
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified FEREMARE  ERAREAEIZ
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The FRE T AT ~ BUH sk W RO
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability AR o K1k 2 4 A AR R T (E B
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised T AT sl A AUE 2 22 B 75 A 18 4 R
in profit or loss. 7o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as
a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease on
a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value was denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEFBOR ()
Foreign currencies (Cont’d) AN (4F)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, MBI G A MBIREN T - AL
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are NEBZEERABYEGSAEH
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong TE R 4 5 /o A B2 T 2 2 57 6 (B
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance W) > A B2 B S I 47 191 2 e 3R
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the A > R IE I A R 2R S B E U -
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate RUE DL T - IR 8R 22 5 B 2 [
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates & oo [T e AL RE SLZEHE (AN ) fERR 25 Bt
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences A2 BSLH Gy (R o A BR FE 56
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the ZE RN ZIH MG A 2ET ) B I I AE R AR
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in o
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.
Taxation BLIE
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable JIT A5 B4 BH S 48 BUAT IE 40B TE B HE B
and deferred tax. THZ HaF0 o
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. AT I 5B TE T 5 A 4 O L0 s )
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated FHOA o MERRBL I B B 4% A 18 4 R T
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense s A > T5 R AT A A4S HoAth
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes A 2 TR AT SR A B B 3
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for M H A 38 B 2R AR Bl Be 40 B 2 IH
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or H o AEBZRTBIHABII LA
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. H T e kB PR A AT 2 B SRR -
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying R SIE A TE i A A TS R R N S
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial B IR T BT S RE BB Y A T AR AR
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of FEB R 2R > IEEABEA
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability EESIAR o IR AEBETH A 68— R & il i
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all SR T I 2 BE R > T AR AR TE
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised BEE TG R RE H B RE SR vk A DA K 8
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available R FIRL 2 BT IRF 2 B IRT AR RR o BT IR 22
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such FETR A PR T V25 MRS R E A
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference T A 2% & s R 2 38 5 (ZEHS A OFBR
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a AN HA &= R B E > ISR
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction HEMKEALE -

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary 0% S0 3 T B A % 2 A R e A ) BT
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, OS] 2 BB BT B A R ERB T IR 25
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the AR M AR AR (B W] 4 o 1T IR 25 AR
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference W R R B IR 25 R W] RE A T RS AR
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. e 2 UL o

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each A8 S o T 2 MR T (TR (A 45 5 H
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer Kt o 36 FA AT REN FE A A2 S0 I SRR Uk
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or FIRAG 5% TH B A T AR o 2 B UL T
part of the asset to be recovered. T, o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds and state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and others providing similar
services after 1st April, 2005.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period or is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payment reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received, unless that
fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods
or services received are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses immediately. Corresponding
adjustment has been made to equity (share options reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEFBOR ()
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than B K AETE G A AR B 18 (B A1)
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above) (G2 M EC A R e STBOR)
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts A G H o AN EA R H A T &
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is W& 2 BREE > DAREE A & B 58
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 7N %55 B R 1 o i S
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its JBE 22 ][] 4 B F R A L AR A
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its % A 2 R TR (LM e 2 HL T i ] g
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense B o WEMETE RN RFRERR A B S o
immediately.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying A0k 96k L e 48 LA 13 () > B R T
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 3 2 B TT 2 Al st a] i 5 50
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does WeRZ 3N BETE (B A58 Bl A
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had B % M7 0 39 T A T ik (M 4R T
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A o e 2 BRTH{E o 8l (A 18 38 [m] & R Iy
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately. TERR A ULA o

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. Al AR R R R
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors TAJRE A A 4E [ 2 & T BUR IR > AN F
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and 2 R e 1 R M AR VR A E
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BE N AE 2 R EAE S A - 55
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and Fefgik o PfE 2 Al st AR BAR % TS
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other A3 1 458 B N A A AR 25 AR B 2 R R
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ By AEUE o B R EAR T REBLEZ SR AN RT A
from these estimates. 2o
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an il 51 B AH B AR 5% T DA RR A AR E A 9
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in PR E i i e AR 2 )
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only BT Z I > R a2 301 I AR - ik
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the BT &5 2 H LRI > Hle
revision affects both current and future periods. AT B A A HA T RERR o
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and N B AR A R DA
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, HAMAEAS S HAE LA ST E B R &
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the SRR > iE LAl R B g A T
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial —EEsHEEEEE R A ENIRE
year. TEBLAE H K R 0 S
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d) 4. Al A R PR R AR ()
Allowance on other loan receivables Al R S R
The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its borrowers and AL F R A ZE 2
adjust credit limits based on payment history and the borrowers’ FB A AT BT Bk DA B 2 B A sk N AT
current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review of their 5 B &R F L3R R A 2 R 5 R BR
current credit information. The Group continuously monitors B o AR B HRA B A AR NI
collections and payments from its borrowers and maintains an FEEGIRIL - SR 95 DA R A B BRI 2R 1
allowance for estimated credit losses based upon the present value of B2 At R AR B 4 i 2 LA AL 515
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective S EAE B o A EEERANZ
interest rate. If the financial conditions of the borrowers of the Group B SR Y 3 D) B L 2 A R RE T
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make 55 > RIEZEAE HEEAMEM -
payments, additional allowances may be reprised.
Estimated impairment on properties under development B P 2 AR A A
In determining whether impairment on properties under development EEEREPYERLETEWE  A4E
is required, the Group takes into consideration the intended use B 25 ML S ) S 2 IR - IR
of the properties, the current market environment, the estimated Bkl ~ Aht s 3 A K s
market value of the properties and/or the present value of future cash A AT WOH B U 2 BE o WE 2
flow expected to receive. Impairment is recognised based on the PRI IRAL R R AR I & 0 B Al R T
higher of present value of estimated future cash flow and estimated EHW & ZREmE o kil i
market value. If the market environment/circumstances changes AERESE > MERSZFWEZA
significantly, resulting in a decrease in the recoverable amount of W [l R IE R Y > I ZELAE M AR A R M e
these properties interest, impairment loss may be required. 1 o
Income taxes Bt Bt
As at 31st March, 2008, no deferred tax asset has been recognised Mo EZENE=ZH=+—H > RA
on the tax losses of HK$517,627,000 due to the unpredictability FE e S A AR Tt F R 35 - IR R Vs T
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset 517,627,000 7T B I Jis 15 A 2 108 4 3 JH
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable B o R AR IE K e A A R ZE AT
temporary differences will be available in the future. H &R 2 90 A 20 ek ) o S B 1T
R 22 R T A o
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. R/ BB 4T B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the convertible note payables and borrowings disclosed in notes 39
and 41 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-back as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. £ M
(a)  Categories of financial instruments (a) SEMTHESHE
2008 2007
RN | CETLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T T T
Financial assets ALy A
Available-for-sale investments A/ i tH B 4 94,570 130,036
Fair value through profit or loss &\ F-EFHRIF 5 AR 42
Investments held-for-trading RIEEERE 11,001 57,089
Equity-linked notes JERA G 22 956 9,636
Derivatives embedded AT AR A 2
in convertible bonds T H 4,865 =
Loans and receivables B % MK I
(including cash and (ELHGBL & I
cash equivalents) BaSEEE) 2,202,185 2,221,123
Financial liabilities M
Amortised cost S A 1,449,792 1,622,011
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  BAESE\BRAS L H AR R BUR
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and A 3 3 4 il T B AL A

debt investments, debtors, other loan receivables, amounts

due from associates, unsecured loans and interest due from

associates/related companies, pledged bank deposits, bank

balances and cash, creditors, convertible note payables,

amount due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and bank

and other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with

these financial instruments and the policies on how to

mitigate these risks are set out below.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. SWIT R )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  HABEEEE T RBOR ()
(Cont’d)
Market risk i
@) Currency risk @) &R B
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AL TS A F A
currency bank balances, bank borrowings and PLA W 5 2 SR AT &
available-for-sale investments, which expose the ik~ RATHEE Lt h
Group to foreign currency risk. EARE > WA S K
I MRS
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign AAE [ 2R H 2L S
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary WolEz B EE k&
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: e B RE AW
Liabilities Assets
i B
2008 2007 2008 2007

RN | CRFLF | ZRFAE | CFFLR
HK$000 |  HK$000 | HK$000 |  HK$000
wWTE | wWTou | wBTI | BT

United States dollars (USD) 3G 1,844 - 31,975 6,827
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other foreign AL A 2R BN SE
currency denominated assets at the report date is as 2R¥EERERAEZIRE
follows: HIF -
Assets
03

2008 2007
ZEENE —FTEHE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T T
Singapore dollars (SGD) #n o 75,939 75,970
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of SGD A 4R [ 2T BT 0 3 T 2 A R
as the foreign currency risk on USD is not significant B > HA SR W > 2o A

as Hong Kong dollars are pegged to USD. Ll | N B
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. @I R A)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  EABEEEE R A RBOR (4)

(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) TS (48)

(i)  Currency risk (Cont’d) ) W R\ ()
Sensitivity analysis R S B
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity T R FEAN S A 4L E
to a 7% increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars Y TG 50T N 3 o RE 2

against SGD. 7% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key

THRCT B 7% B9 3 B -
7% 2 1 FAE FLA B

management personnel and represents management’s AR 15 JEL B A0 1 EE % B
assessment of the reasonably possible change in WA E TR > [
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis FAE PG 3 A1 T 2R ]
includes available-for-sale investments which are RESA ) B REAl o BURE
denominated in SGD, and adjusted their translation 43 BT AL FE DA N 3 T
at the year ended for a 7% change in foreign currency sz Ak SR E

rates.

The negative number below indicates a decrease
in equity where Hong Kong dollars strengthen 7%
against the relevant currency. For a 7% weakening
of Hong Kong dollars against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
reserve.

7 778 J9 AR 5 B L e A
SR e 2 7 %5 8 o

T 51 B BR R s W AR
B &N 7% > LI
HE2S WD o s W AR
BB B85 7%
319 Er S i A 2 A 4 K
AR Z 2 o

2008 2007

TR\ CERALAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BTG T

Impact on equity B A (5,316) (5,318)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not necessarily representative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. SWT R4
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  EABEBEE P E R RBOR ()
(Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d) s (48)
(>ii) Interest rate risk (ii) ] e Ja B
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk BN LN /NI

in relation to unsecured loans from associates, debt
portion of convertible bond, other loan receivables,
fixed-rate bank deposits, unsecured loan from a
related company, convertible note payables and
borrowings as set out in notes 24, 25, 29, 34, 38, 39
and 41 respectively.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate other loan receivables,
unsecured loans from related companies, unsecured
loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries and
bank and other borrowings as set out in notes 29, 33,
37, and 41 respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate, HIBOR and
prevailing market rate in the PRC arising from the
Group’s other loan receivables, unsecured loans from
minority shareholders of subsidiaries and borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date.
For variable-rate other loan receivables, unsecured
loans from related companies, unsecured loans from
minority shareholders of subsidiaries and bank and
other borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of asset and liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. @I R A)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  EABEEEE R A RBOR (4)

(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) b (48)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Cont’d) (ii) ] 22 a8\ B (42)
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/ A2 E TR FE 100
lower and all other variables were held constant, FEBE M T A I At 5
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31st March, B RS > RIALEE
2008 would decrease/increase by HK$1,325,000 N E T E/NEZH
(2007: profit for the year increase/decrease by = t—HILFEEEE
HK$1,343,000). This is mainly attributable to the WD 8 & v R
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate 1,325,000 70 ( =& £+
other loan receivables and bank borrowings. A AF B G A B

WD & 1,343,000
JG) o WThEE A
SEH 2 1 B At

WK B SRAT i B T 3 Y
F| 2 R 2K o
(iii)  Other price risk Gil)  FHABERE RS

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising A4 |4 T 3 R AT A
from available-for-sale investments, derivatives & - AR AR IR M A
embedded in convertible bonds, investments held- ZHHETR - HEEHE
for-trading and investments in equity-linked notes. TG I A P o AR AR
Management manages this exposure by maintaining B 7 AR 2 B A 6 R
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The B o BRI AR R
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated AR EBG R 2 B A
on listed equity investments quoted on the Stock GBS R o A4
Exchange and equity-linked notes quoted by B 2 e A A A e 2
financial institutions. In addition, the Group has LR F S 5
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and A BRA R REZ i
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the JREAAR % i 4 A
need arise. A 2 A 8 B4 o

BEAh » AL RAT— W
e /N AL B R M A JE B

S 0 2R 2% i S
JEUBR: ©
Sensitivity analysis R o3 A7
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined DA SRR 43 A T MR
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the R SR 3 ) A1 A
reporting date. The effect of equity-linked notes is B e o

insignificant.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. TR (4)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  BAERERRA L H AR R BOR ()
(Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d) 53 I (48)
(iii)  Other price risk (Cont’d) Gil)  HAWERE B (4)
Sensitivity analysis R 3 By
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had A B B A LB 2 B A%
been 10% higher/lower: EFFREL0% ¢
. loss for the year ended 31st March, 2008 . MR EEE R
would decrease/increase by HK$2,008,000 HNTE - AR
(2007: profit for the year increase/decrease A5 25 B A 2 A
by HK$5,505,000) as a result of the changes T H KA
in fair value of investments held-for-trading, P4 TR A A
derivatives embedded in convertible bonds; o #ex _FE
and JNE=ZH=4—
H 1E4F B2 548
% WD K
# M 2,008,000
T (ZFXE
AF AR RE iR )
D s
5,505,000 JG )
2
. available-for-sale investment reserve would . P A R L B
increase/decrease by HK$9,457,000 (2007: ENFEEE) >
increase/decrease by HK$13,004,000) 7 4 [ A ik B
as a result of the changes in fair value of Beg g, w8
available-for-sale investments. b %9 457,000
T(ZFEX L
A b
# ¥ 13,004,000
JG) °
Credit risk =Vl
As at 31st March, 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to MW _EENFE=H=+—H >
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due 7 45 [H 516 4 BOAS 42 [ AR RS
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and 852 I E s B E B T il A2
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from: 5 3 Mk R R AT T A 4R
JHE 125 f I FL B AT 22 BATS 468 £ i
2o B 5
. the carrying amount of the respective recognised . LA EEAERNIS
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance SRVERE ZIEEE &
sheet; and
. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to . [t 5347 fir e A B A 4E [
financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed BT 2 AR 2 Bk
in note 47. B -
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the M ZEEERENS - &
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination LEEHEC BT — R
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring B 2 A5 AP IRAE - B
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover T H A B2 > DURE (R PR B
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable ke [m] 7 A AR5 2 BRAERS it o
amount of each individual debt at each balance sheet date A > A4 [ B T 2R )
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for A8 A GBS 2 v il 8 > DA
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the e (Rt A0 12 i [l (B 5 e 5 A 4
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly WG R - B > EHER A
reduced. %%@ngﬁ‘mlﬁajﬁﬁﬁ
Ao
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. @I R AH)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  WABEEEE R E R RBOR ()
(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont’d) 7 B (A
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the B A AE 5 J5 ¥ B B A R AR
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by MR PG =5 B 2 RAT >
international credit-rating agencies. HORE &2 FEERARR o
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical A% 4 5] 4% Hh [ 1) 43 2 A5 B A e
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which accounted for 75% FEEPREE > (FR-FF
(2007: 73%) of the total debtors as at 31st March, 2008. NEZA=+—H2ZEBAH

Z75% (—FELE  73%) °

The Group does not have any other significant concentration 7 45 8] M 4 At A U 2 [H] L
of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with several FRFER 2 RAT Z TRl &4
banks with high credit ratings, and the unsecured loans R 524 JT s 2 A 1K 4 3 % B
and interests due from associates as set in note 24, the debt W W s N R AR, ~ B 5E25 B i
portion of convertible bonds and derivatives embedded in Z AT AR 5 1 B AR K]
convertible bonds as set out in note 25, other loan receivables W AE S5 Al 2 ff e T A -
as set out in note 29, debtors as disclosed above and B 5329 BT 3 2 HAth BB g 4 3K
unsecured loans and interest due from related companies as b S B 2 R A R % B
set out in note 33. 33T O HEHR B R S i A

L ) A B T AR AT A K
S E RS -

Liquid risk B &

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors ME MR E SRR S > A
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed EEERRGERFF RS RS
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s AR BB R E S 0 AR
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BB I B BlE K
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank BEEEY AT - EHEER
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. WATHEZEHAGU > MR

1 B S o

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant AR [ AR SR AT 15 B B T B
source of liquidity. As at 31st March, 2008, the Group has Bz R o R _FEN
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately EZH=1+—H  AEEHES
HK$249,866,000 (2007: HK$277,261,000), details of which ] Al PR 8 Y B 5 A A
are set out in note 41. Bl 415 17249,866,0007C (—

EEZ LA i W 277,261,000
Jt) o A BFEE R M R4

The following table details the Group’s remaining R A AR ] 2 A A AR
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- TEAEIE o BRIENAE SR
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up AR S > FRIIBEALE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities JERRE HIE H 2 &RA
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required BREBEESREFEE - T&
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash EEAEFE ARG S o
flows.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. ST (4)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and polices (b)  HABEEEE R RBOR ()
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) BB A (4E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TR S A R R =
Weighted Carrying
average Total ~ amount at
effective 3 months undiscounted 31.3.2008
interestrate  Less than to 1 year 15 cashflows REZENAE
IRET-H 3months  =MHZE years AMEIE ZA=+—H
HENE  SREMA —4 —EhE WEEE RN

%  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
W T EMTC WWTx #ETR

2008 “ERNE
Non-derivative financial liabilities  JEA7A: 24 £ 1
Creditors FEfHIRAR 51,194 - - 51,194 51,194
Amount due to minority FERH WIS 2

shareholders of subsidiaries 62 VT e 890 - - 890 890
Obligations under finance leases il AL E AR 9.15 17 51 201 269 m
Bank and other borrowings BT R

- fixed rate —ER 7.20 598 34,007 - 34,605 33,259

- variable rate -%8 4.05 6,065 71311 42,112 125,488 120,384
Convertible note payables AT 50R 0.62 9,171 - 1560862 1570033 1,243,843

67,935 111,369 1,603,175 1,782,479 1,449,792

2007 “ERRLE
Non-derivative financial liabilities A7 A f 14
Creditors TEftiRaR 123,627 - - 123,627 123,627
Amount due to minority TERT W 2

shareholders of subsidiaries D E R AR 1,884 - - 1,884 1,884
Dividend payable to a minority Tt — [FI MR 2

shareholder of a subsidiary —DERR R 2,354 - - 2,354 2,354
Unsecured loans from minority AT D ERR L

shareholders of subsidiaries A A B2 4.81 4,515 - - 4,515 4,515
Unsecured loan from —BEARZ

arelated company AR R 6.00 1,616 - - 1,616 1,616
Obligations under finance leases Pl & fH B 7d 9.15 7 2 70 97 95
Bank and other borrowings YT R

- fixed rate —ER 6.98 529 30,549 - 31,078 30,303

- variable rate -8 0.34 35,276 47351 8,765 91,392 89,217
Convertible note payables e T 0.58 10,000 - 1845235 1855235 1368400

179,808 77,920 1,854,070 2,111,798 1,622,011
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. @I R AH)
(¢)  Fair value © APE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are SRVEEREMARKZATE

determined as follows: J5RAT 3 T K -

. the fair value of financial assets and financial o WA FR e R R AR HL
liabilities (including derivative instruments) with AR T R E
standard terms and conditions and traded on active 2 4 RE R K A A AR
liquid markets are determined with reference to (BIfETEZ AT
quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively; {8754y il 2 2% Ho 1 35

R B K E A
E

. the fair value of the equity-linked notes are based on . JRE A 58 SR AR 2 T
fair values quoted by the respective issuing banks or To R AR E BT SRR 2
financial institutions; and SRAT Bl 45 Rl A A T 2 R

BRAFEIT S E 5 &

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial . HoAh 4 & B K4 il B
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are BRI ETREYZ A
determined in accordance with generally accepted AR TS 4% D B4 0 2
pricing models based on discounted cash flow BB By B e 2 NGB E
analysis using prices or rates from observable current FE AR B BR A w] AR
market transactions as input. For an option-based B35 38 5 2 Ae kT
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option FE o Ht LA B RO 2y L e
pricing model (for example, the Black-Scholes ZHAETAREMmME » A
Option pricing model). 1 7 AR 4% 0 M MR A =X

(AH 3 58 — &F 78 397 01 4
TR Al -

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial HHRL o 554G BB IRER A T
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in B 45 il BT RS % 4 il L DA
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair B T 2 M T (B LA P(E
values. A o
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts received and
receivable from third parties, net of discounts and sales related taxes
for the year. An analysis of Group’s revenue for the year, for both
continuing and discontinued operations, is as follows:

Continuing operations TR B R
Net gain on disposal of investments HEREEEREZ
held-for-trading Wi 4 AR

Dividend income from financial SRl LR Z R A
instruments

Sales of properties SHEIE

Rental income AN

Hotel operations R

Golf club subscription fees and R g X
handling fees FAEL

Green fees, practice balls and P - BB ER K
car rental income REFA S I

Food and beverage sales S B K flort

Pro shop sales HE LR

Property management fee income LEX-SLE SION

S HA

Loan interest income

Discontinued operations FERRE R B R
Sales of motorcycles S5 PEE AT HE
Sales of medicine and health products S S I M R

In the current year, revenue includes net gain on disposal of
investments held-for-trading and excludes imputed interest on
unsecured loan due from an associate, which are included in other
income. In prior years, revenue included gross proceeds from
disposal of investments held-for-trading of HK$328,693,000 for
2007 and interest on unsecured loan due from an associate of
HK$56,182,000 for 2007. Comparative figures are restated to
conform with current year presentation.
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Wk

Wi 2t 5 45 R AE 86 = 5 11 R Ul B 2%
AR B B TE AR i B I W T R 2 AR
Ao AR AGE B 2 Wi st (BLAGHR A AT
SEH MR AR SRS Z TN T

2008 2007
ZEENE —FFLEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T oo
4,610 10,406
1,131 462
76,619 1,162
3,270 2,658
18,852 11,820
8,174 7,457
19,895 23,717
12,698 7,663
3,198 1,727
1,708 1,414
31,789 24,903
181,944 93,389
17,567 13,125
115,741 400,638
133,308 413,763
315,252 507,152

KEE > WAGKBEEREERERE
i 55 VR AR > (H R B S — P A
AR SR I B AE - E5EA
HAbd A o RBAEFRE > A
FELFREEE R E I S E A5
% #5328,693,000 70 K — T F A 4F — [H]
Wk 7 /% ) 1 I A R 3K B S T
56,182,0007C ° LLEEFE ES > Hk
HAAE FE L 51— 3K o
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8. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 8. 2 T 2 A
Continuing operations
R R
2008 2007
e 29 1%: 2 ZRELAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale AT OB 2 AR
investments 60,752 -
Gain on disposal of investments B R E E A 2 R
held-for-trading 4,610 10,406
Loss on disposal of convertible bonds B AT IR A 95 2 e H (2,373) -
Increase (decrease) in fair values of: FEEIEZ A TAESE N (kD) -
— investments held-for-trading —FHEEERE 9,608 17,549
— equity-linked notes — A B T 710 206
— derivatives embedded — SN E ZTE TR
in convertible bonds 1,944 -
Dividend income on available At ERE 2 A
for sales investments 426 462
Dividend income on investments FEEEREZ A
held-for-trading 705 -
76,382 28,623
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Jefi e A
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RERBES ElEtE b-E 2 e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

ZEIAE | CTTLE | ZRRAE | 2RTUE | ZRRAE | 2RRE
HK$000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$000 |  HK$'000
EWTL | T | e | WBWTC | BT | BT

Bank interest income HRATRIEA 10,168 33,601 91 341 10,259 33,942
Dividend income from A B — [ A A
an associate (Note) A
(Hfat) = 7452 = = = 7,452
Discount on acquisition W BB R
of subsidiaries - 4207 - - - 4207
Exchange gain, net T St 4 2,732 2,773 = = 2,732 2,773
Interest income on convertible bonds  FJ B 2
FEA 3,036 = = = 3,036 =
Interest on unsecured loan TFHEARZ
due from an associate TEHEHR R
ZHBIA 51,618 56,182 - = 51,618 56,182
Others Hth 5,652 1,401 876 1,673 6,528 3,074
73,206 105,616 967 2,014 74,173 107,630
Note:  The amount represents the excess of dividend income from an MEE - AESEER A — WS A2 %
associate over the carrying amount of interest in that associate. S A R W ) 2 RE A MR T
2R o
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10.  FINANCE COSTS 10. ERH
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
ReBUR AR ERAL LN E T B
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

SEINE | ZZRLEF | ZRBINE | 2ZRLE | SEBINE | 2E2RLE
HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$'000 |  HK$'000
W | WML | EWT | BT | wWTR | WWTR

Interest on unsecured loans from: REFIETZ

AR
FE
Minority shareholders of Wit 2 )
subsidiaries bW 734 2,051 = = 734 2,051
Related companies NG| 94 21 - = 94 21
A director —HEF = 222 = = = 22

Interest on bank and other borrowings ZF A Ti.4F- N
wholly repayable within five years ~ RE(ERE

AT A
Lol 11,416 5,186 613 1,831 12,029 7017
Interest on obligations under MEHEREZ
finance leases FIE 8 8 - 4 8 12
Effective interest on convertible [p et
note payables A5t 3O
ZEHEFE 97,681 89,321 - - 97,681 89,321

109,933 97,009 613 1,835 110,546 98,844
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11.  TAXATION 1. B
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
ReBUR B ERAL LN E T B

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRENE | CFTLF | ZRIAE | ZTRLF | ZRRAE | ZTRLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
wWTL | BWTC | wWTx | BWTC | wWTx | BWTC

Current tax: ALEERIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax B A B 1,509 = = 37 1,509 37
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Gl e STyt 833 283 558 14 1,391 297
2,342 283 558 51 2,900 334

Deferred tax (note 42): IEFLRUA

(Wita2) -
Current year RARE 1,133 3,190 = = 1,133 3,190
Attributable to a change in tax rate B ARG BH FTAE 5 - 6,531 - - - 6,531
1,133 9,721 - - 1,133 9,721
3475 10,004 558 51 4,033 10,055
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated Vb 150 T A v I 4F BB Al 5 E R
assessable profits for both years. The provision for PRC Enterprise T AHE 17.5% B 251 o A H B g
Income Tax for all PRC subsidiaries is calculated at a range of N 2 v B A 3 i A5 o 1 85 24 DA AR B
15% to 33% of the estimated assessable profits for the period from e [ A [ T A5 0 R R ik A e E T —
Ist April, 2007 to 31st December, 2007 and 25% of the estimated EELENH—HE - FEEXZLFE+
assessable profits for the period from Ist January, 2008 to 31st A=+ —H 2 Al 51 8 A 2
March, 2008, determined in accordance with the relevant income tax 15%E33% AR5 > DL —FFE )\ FE—
rules and regulations in the PRC. A—HZ2ZFFZNFE=HA=1+—HH

] 2 At ERRBL 6 A1 2 25 % s T 3L o

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the People’s WEFEZLFE=ATAH > PERE
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by o [ A LA 55 63 SR A A Hp 3 N R LA
Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, B A 2E T AR BLIE (BBl ) iR %
the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of FELETZANSH > A B B B A
the New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations will TR R B AR o TR B E R
change the tax rate from 33% to 25% for PRC subsidiaries from 1st A2 A B v B AL 2 B N R 2 B
January, 2008. The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect Rl —FEFENFE—H—HEH33%HK
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective periods when F525% o % A Fol TE R BH O A8 A B LA R
the asset is realised or the liability is settled. Details of deferred M L S0 145 I A T A B R B (R AR
taxation are set out in note 42. AH B T 2 B 28 o R OB 0 I 15 A

Bff 542 o
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11.

12.

TAXATION (Cont’d)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit per
the consolidated income statement as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation: FrBiRT (18 A -
Continuing operations RS T

AR S

Discontinued operations

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate at 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) (ZFE L

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised

YA S BB 2R 17.5%
17.5%) 51 2 BiIE
ANA] SR BE 37 2 BB R 2

TIHRRBLISA Z B 2

11.

ER AR R P e 2

B i JE AT R MR 2 vl B R 2= 4R

Tax effect of share of results of associates JEAL B/ ) S48 2 Bl 28

Effect of tax exemptions granted
to subsidiaries in the PRC
Effect of different tax rates
of subsidiaries operating in

T A R [ AL

other jurisdictions
Effect of change in tax rate DES Tipe-2
Tax charge for the year AAEERLIR

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 27th February, 2007, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire 100% equity interest in Tung Fong
Hung Investment Limited (“TFH”) (together with its subsidiaries,
the “TFH Group”), which carried out all of the Group’s business of
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products, together
with an assignment of the outstanding loan owing by TFH amounting
to HK$99,728,000 to the acquirer. The disposal was completed on
31st July, 2007, on which date the control of the TFH Group was
passed to the acquirer.

88

o A 2 R AR B TR T 2 R

WhE B 2 I AN ] 2 S

12.

BLs (A1)
AHEEEBUA S AR S A R IR (S
18) Wi Al 2 BT
2008 2007
— s 2% 8 e a3
HK$°000 HKS$’000
W T T T
(122,218) 80,697
(18,107) 3,459
(140,325) 84,156
(24,557) 14,727
47,703 20,247
(18,601) (23,112)
7,768 7,465
(9,887) (7,654)
4,383 (7,160)
- (73)
(2,776) (916)
- 6,531
4,033 10,055

REZFFLF_AZ++EH zl:’%[@
BIOL— i S L O ek o R
7% Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited
(AT AL L) R [R] FE B g 2 =] — f A
BIRITALEE ) 2 2 RARE S (R
J7 KLIRE S AR P R e L R g
B ARRRE iy —VISERS) - [R] IR 5H ST AL
Ji R 2 #1599,728,000 7T A A 22 B33
T - HEFRER _FFLEL
HZ=+—H e > A< 4E B 0 4L
A T 11 422 0 RE IR TS (] H o= i O
H o
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12.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 12 ISR ()
On 31st March, 2008, the Group disposed of its entire interest W EE/NFE=ZH=+—H > AEH
in King-Tech International Holdings Limited (together with its H B EL A S ) R B A PR A ) (]
subsidiary, the “King-Tech Group™), which carried out all of the H B Eg A 7 — e Am A T ShFESE 1 ) 2 &
Group’s business of trading of motorcycles to the acquirer. The A CHRE R B R A RAEENE S
disposal was completed on 31st March, 2008, on which date the JFEFLHLZERS) UK T o NG RIER
control of the King-Tech Group was passed to the acquirer. EENE=ZA=Z1—HEN > MAE
VB 3 5 A T 2 R RE SR A R H e
W77 FHp o
The (loss) profit for the year from the discontinued operations is FENRE RS ET 2 (BR) i
analysed as follows: IS
2008 2007
“RENAE “RTLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 8 T T T
(Loss) profit for the year from B IR 2
discontinued operations: (F18) 4 A -
Profit from manufacturing and trading A1 Rk % B R R
of medicine and health products T 7 o 2E 755 2 Tk
operation 1,266 3,235
(Loss) profit from trading of motorcycles 2K F B B EEFLHI TS~ (548 16
operation (1,360) 173
94) 3,408
Loss on disposal of discontinued B FE AR S 1
operations:
Loss on disposal of business HERE R E TR
of manufacturing and trading [EETALE S P il
of medicine and health products (18,577) -
Gain on disposal of business of trading H B R G S U
of motorcycles 6 -
(18,571) -
(18,665) 3,408
Attributable to: AR
Equity holders of the Company EN/NTILEE LS S DN (18,596) 3,667
Minority interests D BURRAE A (69) (259)
(18,665) 3,408
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 12, JERPEERE RN (AT
The results of businesses of manufacturing and trading of medicine HoEELFENA—-HELHZHE
and health products, and trading of motorcycles for the period from HOHAM - R K E B B g I fad R E
1st April, 2007 to the respective dates of disposals, which have been WK E B ELEERC# R EE
included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows: fh %) 2 BT
Medicine and
health products Motorcycles Total
TR B B R PEFCHL st
1.4.2007 1.4.2006 1.4.2007 1.4.2006 1.4.2007 1.4.2006
to to to to to to

3172007 | 3132007 | 3132008 | 3132007 | 3132008 | 3132007
SRRLE | 22T | SRRLE | 2ZFAF | 2RRLE | 22RAF
WA—HZ | HA—HZ |MA—HZE |HA—-HZ (MA—HZE |HA-HZ
SRFLE | CZRLE | SRINE | 22RLEF | SEBIAE | 22RLE

th =5 =1 =5 =1 =5
=0 | =t-0 | Z—=0| =t-0 | ZF—-0 | =t—H

HK$000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$'000 |  HK$'000

W | WL | BT | BT | W TR | WWTR

Revenue g 115,741 400,638 17,567 13,125 133,308 413,763
Cost of sales A (77496)|  (275,961) (16,518) (12,347) (94,014) | (288,308)
Gross profit E£A 38,245 124,677 1,049 778 39,294 125455
Net income from loan financing BHME T - 3,001 - = = 3,001
Other income A A 967 2,007 = 7 967 2,014
Distribution and selling expenses 78 J 8 45 i (25,580) (85,270) = = (25,580) (85,270)
Administrative expenses 1T (10,833) (35,783) (2,408) (573) (13,241) (36,356)
Other expenses Hfth s F (363) (3,550) - = (363) (3,550)
Finance costs WA B (612) (1,833) 1) ) (613) (1,835)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBLRTS A () 1,824 3,249 (1,360) 210 464 3,459
Taxation B (558) (14) = (37) (558) (51)

Profit (loss) for the period/year EN iyl
(E8) 1,266 3,235 (1,360) 173 (94) 3,408
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12.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’'d) 12, JERPERE RN (A1)
The cash flows of the discontinued operations contributed to the AEEFREAREEG ZHSREDN
Group were as follows: T
2008 2007
ZEFNE “RELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 8 T T T
Net cash from operating activities R IET IT 1S 2 Bl 8 29,777 19,699
Net cash used in investing activities BB T ITFE 2 Bl 8 (822) (4,323)
Net cash from financing activities Rl 25 T 15 2 Bl 1 B 846 935
29,801 16,311
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the TFH Group RTALEE K SFEEE NG HZ&E
and the King-Tech Group at the dates of disposals are disclosed in T I B fi 2 R T (LA B R 46 o
note 46.
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13.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, AR OkHR) &
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RERARH IR R B
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SERNE | CTTLE | CRFANE | CTTLE | ZRRNE | TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT | WWTT | BWT | BN | T | BT
(Loss) profit for the yearhasbeen ~ AW4FE (E’?T‘E) i
arrived at after charging gk (FHA) -
(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration BB
— current year —REE 3,391 2,774 262 585 3,653 3,359
— underprovision in — R R
previous years AR 138 305 - 12 138 317
3,529 3,079 262 597 3,791 3,676
Directors’ emoluments (note 14a)  BHENE (it 14a) 25212 13,699 = = 25212 13,699
Salaries and other benefits B I ARR 39,754 37,890 16,338 50,058 56,092 87,048
Equity-settled share-based DA HERE L
payments expense to BB S
employees Hvdia 2,498 702 = = 2,498 702
Retirement benefits scheme BRI R
contributions, net of forfeited FBRE Rk
contributions of Nil HERETT
(2007: HK$251,000) (CFFLE:
#H251,0007C) 875 890 893 2,825 1,768 3715
Total staff costs B THASH 68,339 53,181 17,231 52,383 85,570 106,064
Less: Amount capitalised in W Y S
intangible assets BREAZIE - = i0) 3) 17) 43)
68,339 53,181 17,214 52,840 85,553 106,021
Cost of inventories recognised as BHATER AL
an expense 55,690 3,203 90,121 288,308 145,811 291,511
Depreciation of property, %% R
plant and equipment: R ‘
— assets owned by the Group —AEHAEEE 15,664 10,998 1,879 9,776 17,543 20,774
— assets held under finance leases  —HAEALETH &
HHZERE y 21 2 2 2 23
Release of prepaid lease e T e
payments of leasehold land THEFR B 2,283 1,953 10 31 2,293 1,984
Amortisation of premium on LA E
prepaid lease payments of PR o (B S
leasehold land 2,914 2,502 - - 2,914 2,502
Amortisation of intangible assets T e e - = - 225 - 225
Total depreciation and amortisation 4778 K &40 20,885 15474 1,891 10,034 2,776 25,508
Allowance for inventories HERE - - 5,106 10,870 5,106 10870
Research and development costs R R R R - - - 304 - 304
Loss on disposal of property, uﬂ%%% R
plant and equipment wcffiZ it 110 71 17 164 127 235
Write-off of intangible assets LGESIA I - - - 2,550 - 2,550
Net exchange (gain) losses T 5% (e ) 48 1 A (2,732) ,173) 25 6 (2,707) (2,767)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts AR i 1,441 145 360 - 1,801 145
Allowance for amounts due from T 2 A )
associates FORBHE - - - 1 - 1
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID 14. M4 REHHFMWAL

INDIVIDUALS
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (@) #EFHE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2007: CATS R+ =4 (ZFFL
ten) directors were as follows: T2 ERELEBZME W
T
Other emoluments
HAbm 4
Discretionary
and
performance  Equity-settled
related  share-based Contributions
Salaries incentive payments  to retirement
and other payments expense benefits
benefits MERE DRSS schemes Total
Fees HaR FEBH  URBER BIHA  emoluments
e JAbRiA 2RE MR Bk R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B TL BWTL EWT EWT EWT EWT
(Note)
(Hzt)
2008 i > 90
Cheung Hon Kit SR 10 2,640 2,500 1670 12 6,832
Chan Fut Yan B B 10 2,400 1,750 978 240 5378
Wong Kam Cheong, HHE 10 2,002 334 406 12 2,764
Stanley
Cheung Chi Kit ek 10 1430 500 644 ) 2,656
Lai Tsan Tung, David BER (L)) 240 1,695 250 357 12 2,554
(“Mr. Lai”)
Ma Chi Kong, Karl B 8 2,516 334 1072 10 3,940
Ho Hau Chong, Norman ] 544 5 = = 7 = 71
Lo Lin Shing, Simon B 5 = = 36 - 41
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin TR 120 - - 215 - 335
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva i) 120 - - 179 - 299
Qiao Xiaodong BIK 19 - - - - 19
Chui Sai Cheong EE 102 = = 215 - 317
659 12,683 5,668 5844 358 25212
2007 e < S ts
Cheung Hon Kit SRR 10 2,640 1,500 1,053 12 5215
Chan Fut Yan B 10 2,400 1,000 632 240 482
Wong Kam Cheong, HHE 3 613 200 39 4 859
Stanley
Cheung Chi Kit e lk 6 823 300 80 41 1,250
Mr. Lai [ fia 150 666 100 = 7 923
Ho Hau Chong, Norman B 10 - - 316 - 326
Lo Lin Shing, Simon B 10 - - 158 = 168
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin THE 120 = = 158 = 278
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva FAL 120 - - - = 120
Chui Sai Cheong #tE 120 = = 158 = 278
559 7,142 3,100 2,59 304 13,699
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID 14. #HHMERESHMAL ()
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a)  HFEME (A

Note:  The amount included performance related incentive
payment which is determined by the performance of the
Directors for each of the years ended 31st March, 2008 and

ik © G LR I
E-RENEL-FFL
E=A=+—F LR

2007. 7 RBUME 2 KRB
No directors waived any emoluments during the current and AR AR FE RO AR A B > 3 AT
prior years. o 36 2T <5
(b)  Highest paid individuals b)) EEFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEE S A2 LA ANEd

Group, all (2007: all) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in (a) above. During the year ended
31st March, 2007, three of these directors were appointed
during the year. Their emoluments of HK$2,278,000 for the
period before their appointment as directors were excluded
from the amounts disclosed in (a) above. Their emoluments
before their appointment as directors were as follows:

B (CEZELE 2B BE
AAFIER > P45 2 &
EX@ - #E _FERLFE=
A=+—HILEE s
HP =ZA TR FRNBEAL - 5%
) TR 1 AT 5 o R 2 T
62,278,000 G K 7FA L 3 (a)
B2 &F o BHERERTS

HHREATZMEMT -

2007

B S

HK$°000

BT

Salaries and other benefits 4 S HAb AR F| 1,948

Retirement benefits scheme contributions B4 A 131 fit 3Kk 29
Equity-settled shared-based R HE 465 5 DA B A T 204 3 2 B 52

payments expense 301

2,278

For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the emoluments of each
of the above directors in their role as employees were below
HK$1,000,000.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors and employees, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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15.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15, HROEE) 8N
(a)  From continuing and discontinued operations (@) REFERERIFEFREREE
i3
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings AN T A 5 A A REAS
per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the g A R (s 18) B A TS
Company is based on the following data: AN B
2008 2007
RN\ e S
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Earnings: B
(Loss) profit for the year AN F g R A
attributable to equity holders AT (st v A B
of the Company and (loss) AR RAEEA (1) £
earnings for the purpose of Z (Je18) 271
basic (loss) earnings per share (141,853) 79,091

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary VB 7£## 848 it 2 7 28

shares — Interest on convertible — AR B SRR AT S 2 RS

note payables 89,321
Earnings for the purpose of TR A v 2 A <

diluted earnings per share 168,412
Number of shares: et H

Weighted average number of FHAE A (18 J A2

ordinary shares for the purpose LA B R 2
of basic (loss) earnings per
share 2,938,675,116 2,119,525,127

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary VB £ #8482 728 —

shares — convertible note ] 2 PG S 4 I A R I

payables 2,611,225,804
Weighted average number of F LA R 28 ) A R T4

ordinary shares for the purpose

of diluted earnings per share 4,730,750,931
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15.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d) 15, ROBES) @A (47)
(b)  From continuing operations (b) RAFEREER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share NN ] Hx’r&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ N JREA
from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity A& H R A R ST A R
holders of the Company is based on the following data: P B R T e BE DA T B R
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BN HF- DA T 5 5 EHE
2008 2007
“ERN\E ZERELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
(Loss) profit for the year A IR A NS AR AR
attributable to equity holders of (fE1R) i A
the Company (141,853) 79,091
Less: (loss) profit for the year B PR B IR R AR
from discontinued operations (JE518)) J5 A1) (18,596) 3,667
(Loss) earnings for the purposes R B R AL S
of basic (loss) earnings per share B (E18) B A (E5H8) ZF
from continuing operations (123,257) 75,424
Effect of dilutive potential e E i M
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible note AT BRI A A 2 LS
payables 89,321
Earnings for the purposes of R B R AL S
diluted earnings per share B R A 2 A
from continuing operations 164,745
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above BT 22 4B B E S Pl R WY
for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share. TE g I A T 4 (518 &7
i AR o
(©) From discontinued operations (©) R H IR RS R
Basic loss per share from discontinued operations is 0.6 TRIRAAE EAE B IF Rl 488 2
HK cent per share (2007: earnings per share of 0.1 HK M 2 AN mRE 4R R A N EAG s
cent per share) and diluted earnings per share for the Bk Wn@‘ 18,596,00070 ( —~F &+
discontinued operations is 0.1 HK cents per share for the 0 A 53,667,000 0 ) K&
year ended 31st March, 2007, based on the loss for the S Bk g A A R
year from discontinued operations attributable to the equity (Fa18) BRI R 2 5 55
holders of the Company of HK$18,596,000 (2007: profit of A H JE Fr A @ﬁ&%w%z}iﬁ%
HK$3,667,000) and the denominators detailed above for both AR 18 A B 0.6 Il (—EE
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share. LAE - RE R 5T K01
filn) > U BE XX LHEZNA
=+ —H IR ER B IR R
BT O B R By
0. 1Al -
No diluted loss per share was presented for the year ended B AR R AT {60 i s A % St ]
31st March, 2008 because assuming the exercise of the share i 22 9% o A B0 B s 48 TR
options and the conversion of convertible notes would result Do R E ZFENEZH
in a decrease in the loss per share. =— H 1k 4F B A% 250 4 ik
P e -
The effect of the outstanding share options of the Company AR\ ) W RAT o B RO 2 2
had not been adjusted as the exercise price of the options was RAETEE Lk EE ﬁA,ﬁ% il *%Z
higher than the average market price for shares for the year 7B e 2 FHHE=H
ended 31st March, 2007. 1;‘52; H JJ:fﬁfuZFﬁiﬁquJﬂﬁ
EVETEI
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BB
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and
improvements Plant and equipment Motor ~ Construction
Buildings M machineries f > vehicles in progress Total
s WERE O BERE  RERGH fi TR Ht

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
T LD LD L T T L P

COST %3
At st April, 2006 REFFRE

mA—H 5826 50,043 14,367 487 4,29 - 79404
Exchange adjustments EsiaE 6,957 695 1,641 234 m 1,170 11,020
Acquired on acquisition of  WCHHIE A R
subsidiaries (note 45) B (74s) 161,325 16 8.867 307 15483 37761 209819
Additions K& 288 1920 3927 1,662 2193 34009 4019
Transfer i 33,892 - - 1245 - (35,137) -
Disposals i (34) (801) (1,535) %) (1,147) - (3.607)
At3IstMarch, 2007and ~ REFELE
It Apil, 2007 ZREH-AR

“RELENA-A 208,254 51873 27,67 8.230 708 37823 340,655
Exchange adjustments Bt 18981 140 1,706 219 7 3,849 25,112
Additions RE 2133 400 10,068 2406 2938 21368 39313
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAR
(note 46) (Wits) (129,59) (51,786) (28315) (6,069) (3916) - (219,685)
Disposals k-4 - “38) (1,096) ) (23) - (1,791)
At 31st March, 2008 RBRNE

SAE-H 99769 189 9630 4762 6,214 63,040 183,604
DEPRECIATION il
At Ist April, 2006 REZZAENA—H 187 28652 10075 1,381 48 - 40711
Exchange adjustments Bl 402 0 1,302 193 yIi - 2362
Provided for the year RERR 8,766 7439 1946 1492 1,154 - 20,797
Eliminated on disposals R 2) (673) (1.450) (16) (1,036) - (3.237)
At31st March, 2007 REEZLE
and Ist April, 2007 ZRET-Ak

“AFLENA-H 9353 35,642 11873 299 841 - 60,699
Exchange adjustments ] 4,106 56 520 88 67 - 547
Provided for the year RERR 11,020 1,114 2,860 1300 1275 = 17,569
Eliminated on disposal of ~ tH EHEA IR
subsidiaries i (20,747 (36322) (13915) (3.230) (954) - (77,168)
Bliminated on disposals i R4 = 35) (949) @) (10) = (1476)
At 31t March, 2008 RBRNE

SAE-H 233 55 389 1,126 1,159 = 5061
CARRYING VALUES ~ JKiifé
At 31st March, 2008 REZENE

SAE-H 97437 134 941 3,636 5055 63,040 178343
At 315t March, 2007 REERLE

ZH=1-h 198.901 16,231 15,394 5040 6,367 37823 219936
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16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than

construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4% or over the remaining terms of
the relevant lease, if shorter

Over the terms of the leases
5% — 15%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machineries

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

10% — 33'/.%
10% — 20%

The buildings of the Group were situated on land held under
medium-term lease in the PRC.

At 31st March, 2008, the carrying values of property, plant and

equipment of the Group included an amount of HK$215,000 (2007:
HK$101,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS OF LEASEHOLD LAND
The Group’s prepaid lease payments of leasehold land comprise:

Land use rights in the PRC on

medium-term lease - Hb i PR A
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRI A
Current asset LB A E
Non-current asset B E E

During the year, the Group disposed of Guangzhou Panyu Lotus Golf
& Country Club Co., Ltd. (“Panyu Golf”), a 65% owned subsidiary
of the Company, which held a golf course and a piece of land located
at Panyu, Guangdong Province in the PRC as set out in note 46. Prior
to the disposal of Panyu Golf, the Group has assessed the recoverable
amount of the land by reference to its fair value, and has identified
and recognised impairment losses of HK$30,681,000 (2007: Nil)
and HK$14,319,000 (2007: Nil) in respect of the prepaid lease
payments of leasehold land and premium on prepaid lease payments
of leasehold land, respectively.
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17.

T B AR R R AR 2

Yok ~ BB ()
bt - A SR E E (TR TR
BRAM) DL E AR IESL T AR AT

M A%ERIZ MR
H M
(BH R )
GENELYE 53 Fe A B A
TR I B A 5%—15%

R~ RE LM 10%—331.%

IR 10% —20%

A SR B AR AL P B AR P AR A
Rz i o

MoEENAEZH=Z1+—H » A&H
Yk - W A 2 R T (E AL B
RlEF SR A & 2 B UIHEW 215,000
JG(ZFEFLA - #H101,00000) °

ALEE L3P ALk
A 45 ) 2 FHLE o T A R KOE £
1

2008 2007
“REN\E -
HK$°000 HKS$°000
W T T T
21,325 99,252

517 2,480

20,808 96,772
21,325 99,252

AN > AR B B A A F R A 65%
WE £ 2 B a8 2 ) R N 3 B A 1L S AR
RERFEBELTERAR ([FHET
RKER]) o WHtEE46rat » %A FSHE
— {18 5 T R BR3G S — R o7 iR o B R R
HFEN) T H o A B B ST ORER
il > AEEE 2% L2 A TER
FEAL AT ] U 4 A > I B S TE AT A
b 2 A A R S TR L 2
A A 43 9 S8 S I e R (M 1
30,681,000 00 ( FEE-LAE
4 ) Kk ¥14,319,000C ( “EET L
AE AR o
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18.

19.

PREMIUM ON PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS OF
LEASEHOLD LAND

The amount represents the premium on acquisition of prepaid lease
payments for the rights to use land situated in the PRC on medium-
term lease as a result of acquisition of Everight Investment Limited
(“Everight”) and its subsidiaries as set out in note 45, which is
amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease payments of
the relevant land use rights.

The movement of premium on prepaid lease payments is set out
below:

18.

AR M A AL A K 2 A5

% SRR AR B 545 BT 8003 i
BB A PR A ([ KHE ) K FER a2
T B A7 7 P B P I B A 2 +
ol HETEL A AL B OH 2 Wi > 9%
BELAR I - i o P 2 A IR T AL B K
TEARLR] 2 FEHEHRE

T2 (2 ST

HK$’000
T
COST AR
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries and P WA o > ) IR A DA R
balance at 31st March, 2007 Mo EZELE=H=1+—H
Z 55 134,029
Disposal of subsidiaries HEERHE A A (14,761)
At 31st March, 2008 MoZRNE=ZA=1—H 119,268
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BoH B WA
Charge for the year and balance AAE FEANBR K
at 31st March, 2007 MEEFLFE=H=1T—HZ &R 2,502
Charge for the year AR FEHIBR 2,914
Impairment loss recognised (note 17) EL R I B 1E (st 17) 14,319
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HH B B D I (14,761)
At 31st March, 2008 RoRNE=ZA=1—H 4,974
CARRYING VALUE YR i L
At 31st March, 2008 RoFRNE=ZA=1—H 114,294
At 31st March, 2007 AERLHE=H=1—H 131,527
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. R YE
2008 2007
BB\ “RTLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
b3 8 T TS
At cost: A
At lst April A HA—H 11,296 =
Additions wHE 244,128 11,296
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46) B AR (i E46) (14,571) -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 240,853 11,296

Properties under development under current assets at 31st March,
2007 and 2008 were expected to realise after twelve months from the
respective balance sheet dates.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. IpEE
Development
Ccosts
B A
HK$°000
T T
COST JA
At 1st April, 2006 W ZRENFEMH—H 3,228
Additions e 219
Written-off s (2,927)
At 31st March, 2007 RoEBZLFE=A=1+—H 520
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46) S BB A (K E46) (520)
At 31st March, 2008 R_ZZNF=H=1—H -
AMORTISATION 3]
At 1st April, 2006 W ZERENFEMH—H 242
Provided for the year AAE 225
Eliminated on written-off T R B (377)
At 31st March, 2007 A BEELEZA=1+—H 90
Eliminated on disposal of L 65 BT 4 D IR 3 6
subsidiaries (note 46) (Ktit46) (90)
At 31st March, 2008 R_ZENF=H=1—H -
CARRYING VALUES W i 4L
At 31st March, 2008 R-FZNE=H=1—H -
At 31st March, 2007 RoEBEZLFE=A=1+—H 430

The development costs were amortised, using the straight-line

method, over a period of five years from the date of commencement

of commercial operation.
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21.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21, WA
2008 2007
“RENE BB
HK$°000 HKS$°000
#®W T T T
Available-for-sale investments comprise: FJ it tH & & &4
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong AW BT 2 AR 18,631 54,066
Equity securities listed elsewhere A AT BT 2 AT S5 75,939 75,970
94,570 130,036

22. INTEREST IN PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 027% ) SRR LB

The amount represents the Group’s interest in a property project AR AREE N —TEY EEB 2R
involving the development of a parcel of land with a site area 2> ZE B WA R S
of approximately 48,000 sq.m. within the golf resort known as RKERET65% 2 Mt (W 546 5252(a)
“Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort” resulting from disposal of its Fr ) B R —WEAE 4 B [ M #EAE 1L S
entire 65% interest in Panyu Golf as set out in notes 46 and 52(a). The TR BR AR |2 5 7 < 1R B AR A b
Group will have the right to share 65% of the residual value of the AR TH 7 49 £548,000°T 7 Kk 2 b g
Development Project as set out in note 52(a). TEHH > AR%EE A RSG5 RIE E

BB 2 65% (UNFTEES52(a) BT K) -

101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B ok F R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FFE/N\E=H=+—HIL4FE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

23.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23, RBEAEZ R
2008 2007
“ERNE ZRRLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
#®W¥ T T
Cost of investment in associates, WA A Z BB R
unlisted ] 170,626 6,807
Share of post-acquisition (losses) FENG U A% (548 i) -
profits, net of dividend received FIER T USRS (35,123) 87,072
135,503 93,879
@) As at 31st March, 2007, interests in associates included a @) M_EELFE=ZH=+—H>

carrying amount of HK$5,077,000 which represented 45%
equity interest in Orient Town Limited (“Orient Town”). The
principal asset of Orient Town is its indirect shareholdings
interest in a subsidiary, namely Empresa De Fomento
Industrial E Comercial Concoérdia, S.A. (“Concordia”), a
company incorporated in Macau, which held the leasehold
interests of 14 parcels of land (the “Leasehold Interests”)
situated in Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Macau. During the year
ended 31st March, 2007, the Group obtained and recognised
a compensation of HK$23,370,000 in connection with the
reduction of half of the share options held by the Group. As
at 31st March, 2007, 35 share options were held by the Group
representing 5% shareholding of Orient Town.

On 25th January, 2007, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with Forever Charm Group Limited (“Forever
Charm”) to acquire 8.7% of the registered capital of
Concordia (the “Concordia Acquisition”) and a shareholder’s
loan and interests accrued thereon due by Concordia
to Forever Charm of MOP114,346,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$111,016,000) at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$245,700,000, of which
HK$90,000,000 was paid and included in deposits paid for
acquisition of associates at 31st March, 2007. The amount of
HK$90,000,000 has been transferred to interests in associates
during the year ended 31st March, 2008 upon the completion
of the Concordia Acquisition.
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23.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 23, RBEARIZHER (A
@) (Cont’d) @) (#)
According to the Macau Gazette published on 31st October, MW M BUT IR —FFLFE+
2007, the Chief Executive of Macau had endorsed, and HA=+—HHAEZ N > WM
Concordia had accepted, the offer for the granting of a new TBUR B B e DL AR
land lease concession of the Leasehold Interests in August AR A 2 T AR 2 B
2007 at an additional land premium of approximately # > MR R ZFEELEN
MOP578.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$561.6 AiEmABEL > SN ER
million). F LM 578,400,000 7C (A 56 A

AIHE561,600,0000C) ©

The Group will develop the Leasehold Interests with other 75 £ (B i B A L Ath Je T T
shareholders of Concordia. The Concordia Acquisition FERELS o A 25 R s At Al
results in an acquisition of additional 8.7% interest in the B HE A5 B 2R I SR A0 8.7 % HE
Leasehold Interests. Accordingly, the value of the cost of g o B o WSO I A BE A A
acquiring additional interests in Concordia is recognised PR B A 7 3 A i A 5 R i B
at the consideration paid for the Concordia Acquisition (BLHE 28 5 LA ) v 22 AR A s
(including transaction costs) of HK$136,182,000. 136,182,0007C H FERD. ©

The Concordia Acquisition was completed during the year B B R IUR IR B E —FFN
ended 31st March, 2008. Upon the completion, the Group’s HF=H = —H IR -
effective interest in the registered capital of Concordia SERLAR o A B R B AR E BT A
increased from 26.8% at 31st March, 2007 to 35.5% at 31st A Bl —FEF L
March, 2008 and Concordia remains as an associate of the FE=ZA=+—H2Z208%%
Group.’ ZEENE=ZH=Z+—HZ

35.5% > AT By A SR 2

BEAT -

(i)  On 6th October, 2006, the Group entered into a subscription i) MRZEEARNETHANH A
agreement to subscribe for 4,000 new ordinary shares of B 1 5T 5L w8 W W E o DARR
US$1 each in More Profit International Limited (“More More Profit International Limited
Profit”) for a cash consideration of US$4,000 (equivalent to ([ More Profit |) 4,000 8t &5 % 1
approximately HK$32,000), representing 40% of the issued HES 102 B > HE
share capital of More Profit as enlarged by the subscription JAMore Profiti s iMore Profit
shares of 5,000 new shares at US$1 each in More Profit, 5,000 A% 45 F% A B 55 4 1 JC 258
and to provide a shareholder’s loan of HK$248,000,000 JRHE R A% 2 C AT AR 40% >
to More Profit. More Profit was an investment holding B 4 08 A 35 44,0000 (A%
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with A AW #:32,000 08 ) A K )
limited liability. On the same date, More Profit entered into More Profit £ it B & 2 i s
an acquisition agreement to acquire 50% interest in Great 248,000,000 JG ° More Profit %
China Company Limited which was a company incorporated — [ B i i 2 A 5 S A T
in Macau with limited liability and was the owner of a land ZEREERARAT - FH -
situated in Su da Marina Taipa-Sul Junto a Rotunda do More Profit E. 71 37 Wit i 15 7% Ui
Dique-Oeste, Macau and a hotel complex erected on the land. WK v A BR A ) 50% M A
The acquisition was completed on 1st February, 2007. W2 A B M s L 2

BRZSF] > S 2 P — i Ao A IR
P Ok AT R 57 247 A 15 SE ML 247 7 3
(B 4 2+t % HL - B 0 )5
ZHAN c WHER _FE L
FEH—HEM -
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23.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 23, RBRE A F RS (AT
(i)  (Cont'd) Gi) ()
On 26th June, 2007, the Group disposed of its entire WoEELENHA S
40% equity interest in More Profit, through disposal of a H » 4 £ E & & b & E
subsidiary, Dragon Rainbow Limited (“Dragon Rainbow”), NI | Dragon Rainbow Limited
together with the shareholder’s loan due from Dragon (I Dragon Rainbow 1) > A K&
Rainbow to the Group amounting to HK$260,412,000, to Get Dragon Rainbow 4% K 74~ 4 [ 2
Nice Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Cayman % 5B s 260,412,000 7T >
Islands and listed on the Stock Exchange (“Get Nice”) (the ) 45 G4 B A RN W ([ 54 »
“Disposal”). — [ 1A B 2 B S sk A ar - T
IR RE I BT 2 o w]) A A
More Profit4:#40% 2 A HE #5
(M) -
The total consideration for the Disposal amounted to H /B AR AR Ay s 15350,000,000
HK$350 million, which was satisfied as to (i) HK$150 IV 4 VSR 1l = v )
million in cash; (ii) 126,262,626 shares of Get Nice at W 4 # ¥ 150,000,000 TG
market price of HK$0.66 each; and (iii) HK$100 million 5% (ii)126,262,626 Bt & i 17 €
convertible bonds due 2010 issued by Get Nice (“Get Nice W W 0.66 70 2 & AF R 5 R
Bonds™) as set out in note 25. (iii) B 55 25 BT i 45 1 2547 s W
100,000,0007C5 & A —F—F
B 2 AR AR R ([ 45 4
#1) o
The Disposal was completed in September 2007, resulting HERZZELHEILA TR
in a loss of the Disposal of approximately HK$39,486,000 B AE A5 39,486,000T 2 H B
which has been charged to the consolidated income statement iR > BRORERZ AR
during the year. Details of the Disposal were disclosed in the thR N o HEFEHR %
circular of the Company dated 24th August, 2007. FLENHA W H FIEEz A
2\ RE K N B
(i)  On 31st July, 2007, the Group disposed of its entire 50% Gii) M-FEFLHFELA=1T—H:
equity interest in Jean-Bon Pharmaceutical Technology A SR 2 0 B RO AL R
Company Limited through the disposal of TFH as set out in A TE IR 5 2R 1 A BR A 7 A T
notes 12 and 46. 50% M AR 45 A B FE I HR
WFEE12 5246 o
Included in the cost of interests in associates at 31st March, 2007 MoBZELE=ZA=+—HEHEAF

was goodwill of HK$1,701,000 arising on acquisition of associates
during the year ended 31st March, 2007. The goodwill was released
and included in the determination of loss on disposal of an associate
as set out in (ii) above.
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23.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 23, RBEARIZHER (A
At 31st March, 2008, the Group had interest in the following major MoFEZNE=ZA=1+—H > A&EH
associates: IS - Ak XL Tl
Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of issued share capital
business incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and indirectly held by
structure operation Class of fully paid share capital the Group
Name of associate E3 70 kBRI, shares held [k 7i) ARATHRAZ Principal activity
BB AHLH BR it L Firke e B0 SR AT DEARATEHILH 2R
2008 2007

ZERNE| CFELE

Best Profit Holdings Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 HKS$1,000 315 Investment holding
EREEARAT FEMAL ik TR #0000 | HERL0007C REHR
Concordia Incorporated ~ Macau Quota Capital | MOP100,000,000 | MOP100,000,000 355 Property development
B FEMAL Y RRUES W Lk IE
100,000,007 | 100,000,0007
Orient Town Incorporated ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary HK$700 HK$700 45 Investment holding
R Fia i il TR #7007 007 REHR
Orient Town Project Incorporated ~ Macau Quota Capital MOP25,000 MOP25,000 45 Project and
Management Limited ~ #EM AL i i A WM B25,00000 | RMH25,0007 construction
YA EEIARAR management
services
A H R E TR
San Lun Mang Incorporated ~ Macau Quota Capital MOP100,000 MOP100,000 315 Investment holding
Investimentos, Limitada ~ sEftA0E 1M it EA b ek etk &R
MR A ARAT 100,007 10,0007
Note:  Quota capital represents the Portuguese equivalence of registered Kzt - A 55 H 2 Quota capital BJ 3% it &
capital as Portuguese is the official language of Macau. Ao AR AR EHRES ©
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23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below:

Total assets B ARE
Total liabilities BB
Minority interest DB RORE i
Net assets B RE T

Group’s share of net assets of associates

Revenue A

(Loss) profit for the year AAEJE (518 i Al

Group’s share of (loss) profit of A 52 [ B A L 8 A )
associates for the year EN (B8 i Fl

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Group discontinued the
recognition of its share of losses of certain associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of losses of these associates, extracted from the
relevant management accounts of the associates, for the year ended
and cumulatively, are set out below. These associates of 2007 were
disposed of during the year.

Unrecognised share of losses of AR AR AR A
associates for the year LR/l T |

Accumulated unrecognised share of BEAMERENS
losses of associates W o v e 1
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23.

752 P A A ) TR (EL

B A ) 2 Bl (A
EREIIAL BB A AR > ERR
VR R k- ENGIE RS SEE S R
EPS 2 B4 0 AN geatRice:b)
ETEA o HER I AL E A
A E R R IR -

AR [ B N ) 2 A D RS B R
AR :

2008 2007
— 2% —ERE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
2,662,736 3,145,540
(2,585,912) (3,067,243)
(64,384) -
12,440 78,297
135,503 92,178
(54,201) 99,569
(25,047) 40,916

WE_FRZELHE=H=1T—HIL4¥
JE o ARG O A R TR L AL T
Al - MEAFEZIL - R AR R
8 2 A 5 4 T ol 1R R (i
Bk Bz A N R B E AR B
T o BE_FTLEZBE X FRE
MEHE -

2008 2007
“RENE -
HK$°000 HKS$’000
W T i P
(2,451) (1,353)
(2,451) (1,353)
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24.

UNSECURED LOANS AND INTERESTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

24.

W8 > v 2 SR £ B A R B,
FEVBCOOB 85 2 ) kB

(@)  Unsecured loans and interests due from associates (@) S A E] Z SRR R R R A
8

2008 2007
ZREBN\E ZEELF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
bl T T oo
Loans to associates RGN~ 1,021,508 1,226,237
Interest receivables AR 56,182 59,288
1,077,690 1,285,525

Less: Loss allocated in excess of ¥ : # L EMAZ

cost of investment EL /AL 4R - (51,082)

1,077,690 1,234,443

In 2007, the interest on loans to associates of
HK$1,226,237,000 is ranging from 7.75% to 8% per annum.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount
will not be repaid within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and was therefore classified as non-current asset.

In 2008, the loans to associates are unsecured and non-
interest bearing, except for an amount of approximately
HK$281,150,000 which carries interest at rates ranging
from 5.25% to 7.75% per annum and interest income of
HK$23,677,000 is received during the year. The effective
interest rate on the interest free loans of HK$740,358,000
was 8% per annum.

Before offering any new loan to associate, the Group will
assess the associate’s credit quality and the usage of the loan
by the associate. The recoverability of the loan is reviewed
throughout the year. 100% of the loans to associates are
neither past due nor impaired and of good credit quality.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 85% of the total
unsecured loans and interests due from only one associate
and the associates are private companies and located in
Macau. In order to minimize the credit risk, the management
of the Group has monitored the repayment ability of the
associates continuously.
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A ZFENGE > BN m R
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24. W8 2 vl 2 SR £ B i R B,

25.

UNSECURED LOANS AND INTERESTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(Cont’d)

(b) Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from associates JRE WAL B #25  R) RRIE

B B

Less: Allowance

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free
and repayable within one year from the balance sheet date
(2007: within one year).

DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As detailed in note 23(ii), the Get Nice Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$100 million with maturity on 20th September, 2010
was issued to the Group as part of consideration for the disposal
of Dragon Rainbow in September 2007. The Group is entitled to
convert the Get Nice Bonds into shares in Get Nice at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.924 per share, which was subsequently
adjusted to HK$0.907 per share as a result of share placement of Get
Nice on 19th July, 2007 and further adjusted to HK$0.901 per share
as a result of share placement of Get Nice on 8th November, 2007.
Both Get Nice and the Group may at any time after the expiry of the
18th month following the date of issue of the Get Nice Bonds and
prior to the maturity date redeem or require Get Nice to redeem the
outstanding Get Nice Bonds at par together with 5% interest accrued
thereon.

The Group classified the debt portion of the Get Nice Bonds as loans
and receivables and the embedded derivative component as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
The fair value of each component of the Get Nice Bonds on initial
recognition are determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, a firm of independent valuers. The effective interest rate of
the debt potion of Get Nice Bonds is 9.75% per annum.
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24.

25.

WREMBCOBH 85 2 v kB (A7)

(b)  MEMIERE A RLRIE

2008 2007
ZEBN\E ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$’000

b3 T W

2,154 83

= (15)

2,154 68

R WS W 5 A D G T Ay SR
At B RGHE HR—FER (CF
TLE  —FR) -

W 5B A5 2 i 45 O B Wl R B A
Ji B 2 A 2 T

AN B R 23 (i) It > AS4E B ISCEUAS 4
#H 75 ¥ 100,000,0000C - I H & —
FT—FFIA 1 HZ BB —
FEELFENABITTAER > (EAH
4 Dragon Rainbow M) ¥ f73 AAAE - A 4E
9] ] 2 A AR A A T T3 5 650,924
T &5 U 5 SO &5 0 TRy o F R
B —EFE LA A JUH AT
L > ST B AR SR 2 IR R
HEN0.9077C - A R &5 I —FE L4
T —H N\ H B UOEAT B i B i — 2
S 2 A %50.901 7T o &0 K
A S T AT A IR S BT H AR A
A &% K BB B 22 B A e i B ()
SR E R & 4% T (B (R ] 5 B )LL)
I [ W R AT A A 2 i -

A 42 [ 519 45 07 1 5 2 BAETR A B AE 1S
B K REWGEIE > Tt B A AR T EE A
T A T R PR 45 8 48 25 MR A A8 ST (1 5
YEEREE o 5% &I EHFS T
WA TSR 2 A THE > Ty AR /A 7 3E
H IR PR F (— KB
{HA R ZAGE T E - 45 TR as
Ty 2 BB R 559,758 o
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25.

DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Cont’d)

At 31st March, 2008, the fair value of the embedded derivative
component of the Get Nice Bonds with initial recognition amount of
approximately HK$12,092,000, was approximately HK$4,865,000
after the disposal of convertible bonds with the principal amount of
HK$43 million during the year.

The fair value of the Get Nice Bonds during the year ended 31st
March, 2008 was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The inputs used in the model adopted by the management in

25.

Y B A 25 g £ 0 B B vl B 27
P B 2 A 2 TR (A7)

A A 4 4 B S T 43,000,000 7T
Z Al SRR > R _FERNFE=H
=1+—H > #irEF (REREH
%) 5 Hk 112,092,000 7T ) ATt 2 fir A
T H I 2 N T-H %9 7 s 154,865,000
5T o

WE _FF/NE=H =T — HE I
I Z A VAR T) 58 — &F T A 2
R FHE - BN S HEE AT

determining the fair values at the respective dates were as follows: EHR 2K BRI
Disposal date Disposal date
1st November, 2007  6th November, 2007
HE B HHEHS | 31st March, 2008
“FEE “FELE “ERNE
t+—H—H +—HxH ZA=1—H
Closing share price at date of valuation W {E H 2 it 8 HEHHKS0.847C T HEHK$0.9378 HHHKS0.5970
Conversion price S MK S0.90778 HEHHKS0.907 ¢ ERHK$0.90170
Expected volatility (note a) TBRHEE (Hf7ta) 52.78% 54.78% 53.43%
Risk-free interest rate (note b) BB (i) 3.179% 2.806% 1.385%
Expected annual dividend yield ERHEER g% 4.93% 4.93% 4.93%
Fair value per option ORI it W HK$0.18270 BEHEHKS0.231C | #EWHKS0.0770
Notes: Mt
(a) Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility (a) TE R R UG (A H #8910 H A4

of the price return of the ordinary shares of the Company over 910
days from the valuation date.

(b) The risk-free rate interest was based on the yield of Exchange Fund
Note.

Accrued interest on the convertible bonds was calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 9%
to the liability component.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as all (2007: nil) of the

convertible bonds held by the Group was due from an independent
third party which is publicly listed in Hong Kong.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

DEPOSIT AND EXPENSES PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
LAND USE RIGHT

The amount represents deposit and expenses paid for the
acquisition of a land use right in the PRC for a cash consideration
of RMB50,964,000 (equivalent to HK$51,479,000) under an
acquisition agreement dated 22nd March, 2007.

DEPOSIT AND EXPENSES PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE

The amount at 31st March, 2007, represented deposit paid of
HK$90,000,000 and expenses incurred of HK$675,000 for the
Concordia Acquisition. The amount has been transferred to interests
in associates upon the completion of the Concordia Acquisition
during the year as set out in note 23(i).

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTIES

The amount at 31st March, 2007, represented deposits paid of
HK$26,556,000 and expenses incurred of HK$569,000 for the
acquisition of 44 residential units in Macau at a consideration of
approximately HK$88,520,000. The acquisition was completed
during the year and the amount has been transferred to properties
held for sale.

OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES

SE BB K
ISV G

Fixed-rate loan receivables
Variable-rate loan receivables

Carrying amount analysed for R R AT MR
reporting purposes:

Current assets T

Non-current assets FE B
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26.

27.

28.

29.

W - 3 5 IR A 4 8 B B X

ARZERBREI N - EFLF=H
T H R R o U — TR
Bz bl HE - B AE A N R
50,964,000 7t ( #H &5 7% #5 ¥ 51,479,000
JG) °

WO — R B 25 2 i) A e B 3K

AT EELEZA =+ — HZHIE
6 ST B A R A I 2 e & v N
90,000,000 7 & BT £ 2 B % s #E
675,0007C ° w40 B EE23G) Frd - #)IH
A B A % A 5T B AR B A A A A
EN - NEI P

WO 3 O 4% 4 B B X

AZEELEZHA=+— HREHEE
A 42 1 452 AR B 4 WS 88,520,000 7T
g YL P 444 A o BE N T ST A 2 %
£ %26,556,000 70 K AR B S TR
569,0007C ° WHEC RN ERL » HH

AT B = Y -
Uil o £k
2008 2007
— s 2% —ERE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
13,133 9,634
230,000 205,495
243,133 215,129
243,133 205,495
- 9,634
243,133 215,129
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29.  OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 29.  JCfbMEBCEESK (A7)
The following is an analysis of the aging of other loan receivables at DL 2 o Ath M Wi SR 45 AL H 2 HR B
the balance sheet date: AT
2008 2007
ZEENE “EFEHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T BT
Within one year —4ER 93,500 169,681
More than one year, I —4E > BRI
but not exceeding two years 144,998 24,948
More than two years, AR > HADR =4
but not exceeding three years 4,635 20,500
243,133 215,129
The Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables of HK$8,499,000 carries AL 7 E B WS B 58,499,000
interest at 8% and are secured by 40,000,000 (2007: 25,000,000) JERASJEFTE 5 3l DA — [ A B 2 P BE
shares of a private limited company incorporated in Malaysia, with i Bz 2 FA A BR A W] 22 40,000,000%
a nominal value of RMO0.25 per share. The remaining fixed-rate (ZZFFLAF + 25,000,000 ) 45 % 1 (H
loan receivables of HK$4,635,000 are denominated in United States R VA R 025 6 2 AR R4 48 o H
Dollars, which is not the functional currencies of the relevant group 1 22 5L B AT 45 27 54,635,000 7T T3 LA
entities, carries interest at 3% and are unsecured. All the fixed-rate FEItEHE (it FEMH LB TR 2 )
loan receivables are due before December, 2008. AEEWE > DIBEREE - &M
P BB B RO —F T /NE+ 2
AE -
At 31st March, 2008, all variable-rate loans are unsecured, carry MZEEZNF=H=1—H > A%
interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 2% per annum and are BE SR KR - 42 7 s f 18 BRI 3
repayable within one year. At 31st March, 2007, except for a TAEFI B EE 6 I — 4 N AE
loan of HK$20,000,000 which carried interest at the higher of o M _EFXELFZH=1+—H > (k&
Hong Kong Prime Rate or 4% per annum and was secured by the — SR W B B R SR B AR R 2R 4 JE
borrower’s investment in convertible note with a principal amount 2 W R 2 U5 20,000,000 70 &
of HK$20,000,000 issued by a company whose shares were listed ) o DMEEE TR — I3 Br LT #
on the Stock Exchange and was repayable on 28th September, 2007, AT ~ ARG %20,000,00070 2 7]
all remaining variable-rate loans were unsecured, carried interest Wl SR G AR B AR > WER —FE
at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 2% per annum and were repayable THEIH = /NBAERS » A HAth
within one year. The effective interest rates of other loan receivables TR B 5 AR - AR RER
are ranging from 7.25% to 10% per annum for both years. FIZR AR R B E K o HoAth g &
KB BRI A FAEMFET25EE10
JE o
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29.

30.

OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Before offering any new loans, the Director of the Company will
assess the potential borrower’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by the borrower. The Director will continuously assess the
recoverability of other loan receivables. 100% of the other loan
receivables are neither past due nor impaired and in the opinion of the
directors they are of good credit quality.

The Group’s has concentration of credit risk in the above loans
as five borrowers accounted for 95% (2007: 75%) of the total
borrowings as at 31st March, 2008.

The loan receivables borrowers mainly consist of one listed company
in Hong Kong and several private companies. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has monitored the
repayment ability of the borrowers continuously.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials J
Work in progress TE ” A
Finished goods R
Consumables THFE S
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29.

30.

Jofib M 8% (A7)

A A R P (OB BEECHT > SR
RN Z BT B R RS E SO
ZAREEIIBR o S A T A HL A
W B 2 AT A [ AR B o LAl R A B K
AR S e a S AN e (> HEE R
ZAFPHA R EEER -

HFAERAR ZFEFNE=H
=T — HiEEHEESD —FEFL
A 75%) > WA BHE b kT
£ {5 SR o

PR B N E S — W&
EWAR KL HEANAF - ALEE
B B RS BEE - B EEME
N IEFKEETT o

#R
2008 2007
ZEBN\E ZREALAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 T BT
- 20,185
- 829
341 54,559
1,820 1,346
2,161 76,919
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  31.

OR LOSS

Investments held-for-trading:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
Equity securities listed elsewhere

Financial assets designated at

fair value through profit or loss:

Equity-linked notes

FHERERE

=

(3
Ak bl 2 B
W HAt Ty b

>

T8RN FES
EREE
JReAR 48 S %

BN e
A SR

MR M AREEZ

At the balance sheet date, all financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are stated at fair value. The fair values of listed
securities are determined based on the bid prices quoted in active
markets and those of the equity-linked notes are based on fair values
quoted by the respective issuing banks or financial institutions.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade Receivables

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Refundable earnest money (Note)

Other receivable (note 45)

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

JEWSC 7 Bk
B RS

A FRERES

32.

(Hfit)

FL At EMSCRKIE (M it45)

HABREWORS

e MR R0A

The Group allows credit period ranging from O to 60 days to its trade

customers.
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BN TR Bt A i35 2 Grih ¥ s

2008 2007
SERBAE | CETLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
WS T T
9,245 44,369

1,756 12,720
11,001 57,089

956 9,636

11,957 66,725

RESHEH - BT AFEIIR R FA
Hit 2 EMEEYLUAPEIIR - &
T RS I3 O3 V- (B 45 BT B T 35 i i
< B R E - BA S 2 T E
Jh5 5% SR AT B AR A B T

AT RESE -
MK - e BOBUR T
2008 2007
SERMNE | CRBLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T T
27,685 53,349
- (3,315)
27,685 50,034
365,791 362,075
- 17,721
121,319 43,330
514,795 473,160

AEEGTHASEF ZFEHRE

AT HAE -
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32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 32 MEMORAK - d4 BBk ()

The following is an analysis of the aging of debtors net of allowance DL 75 I A B (11 B R SRR A ) A
for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date: EEEH Z BRI AT

2008 2007

ZEFRNE BB

HK$°000 HKS$’000

b3 (8 T T

0— 60 days ZE&51TH 16,977 35,555

61 — 90 days ANt—HZIJIL+H 124 1,118

Over 90 days Lt e 10,584 13,361

27,685 50,034

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year.
61% (2007: 73%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit rating.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors is an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$10,708,000 (2007: HK$14,479,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 120 days (2007: 120
days). The aging of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired
is as follows:

At—HZENLTH
I+ H

61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 180 days
because historical experience is such that receivables that are past
due beyond 180 days are generally not recoverable.
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A2 R T A > AR I A
HEPZHERYE > WEEZE W
FEMIR - BF MG S8 e S
FEMEAT MR 0 61% (- EF L4
73% ) 7 08 308 1wl ok B 2 2 ) M AT R
B 2 5 S5k

31| e s A ] Y JRE A B K 2 TR THT (L 2%
#410,708,0007C ( —FEE LA - #EHE
14,479,00070) > #Za B E A RS H
FIHY > A 42 N SR A e (s R -
7 45 (9] A 4B E UM 5 65 R R AT AT fRT SR
il o EAE ECIR 3K RO T3 RS 45 120 H
(T FEL4E  120H) o B@EREIE
Z B 5 IR BRI R F T

2008 2007

— 2% e aE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Wl T i P
124 1,118

10,584 13,361
10,708 14,479

A B L I A A A A AR 180 H 2 B
MRS AE 2 Bt - D IR 4 1 %8 B B
7N B 180 H 2 MEYTIRZK— A
AET LA IE] o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B ok F e

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FE/N\FE=H=+—HIL4FE)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 32, HEWONGSK ~ 5l BB KOH (4)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: SRIRARI BB
2008 2007
ZERE)N\E —TTEHE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WTL BT
Balance at beginning of the year SRR R 3,315 3,026
Exchange realignment R 5o, 3 2 305 144

Impairment losses recognised FEMCGRIETERR 2 B RE 18
on receivables 1,801 145
Amount written off as uncollectible OB 22 R AT A B R TR (992) -
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 0 B B s ] I 6 (4,429) -
Balance at end of the year SRR LR - 3,315
Note:  In June 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an Mt o R TERTAENA AL A MR
independent third party (“Vendor A”) signed a non-binding letter W s F B — 2R = ([
of intent with a view of negotiating a possible acquisition from FH ) BRTRAR = mE > Mk
Vendor A of 50% of its ownership and interest in certain land 7R T R LA 25 A0 1495,000,000
located in Macau which was initially intended for redevelopment JC o [ B 5 R S A P
purposes, at an initial consideration of HK$495,000,000. Upon T L 2 50% A HE R4S o A
signing of the letter of intent, an amount of HK$10,000,000 (2007: B s b e R R o R
HK$10,000,000) was paid by the Group as refundable earnest IR M ER - AL AT
money. 10,000,000 7C ( — F & L 4F :
10,000,000 7% ) 1 £ AT T 18 2 9 &
4o

In March 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an MROEELFEZH - ARE—HE
independent third party (“Vendor B”) signed a non-binding letter KW s F B — 2R = ([
of intent with a view of negotiating a possible acquisition from ) BERTRAR S mE > Mk
Vendor B and a party as procured by Vendor B (“Vendor C”) of their PR BEM B & KB T CARMEZ
aggregate interests of 67.5% in a company which was established —Z NE(TE B ) Bk in—
in the PRC and is engaged in development and operation of golf FTTE r R RS I 8 S e S S
resort (the “PRC Company”), and of shareholders’ loans due by AR BREEMBA 2 A w] (T B A HE )
the PRC Company to Vendor B and Vendor C of approximately G2 67.5% M o UK EA T
US$14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$109,200,000). HEREF KRB AZ R
Upon signing of the letter of intent, an amount of US$2,800,000 #2542 14,000,000 7G (48 55 74 £ s
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,884,000) was paid by the #109,200,0007G) ° JAZEFT = 0] E
Group as refundable earnest money. The amount was fully refunded % > ARG T S AT 3£ 422,800,000 70
to the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2008. (FA %5 1A 4 5 5 21,884,00000) 1 2%

] TREMEE o ZSHD REE
ZERBE)NFEA=ET—HIEEER
BHOR T AL

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B ok F R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FFE/N\E=H=+—HIL4FE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 32, HEWOIREK > R4 KA RXE (4F)

On 28th December, 2006 and 21st March, 2007, further amounts of
refundable earnest money of approximately HK$170,000,000 and
HK$160,191,000, respectively, were paid by the Group through
Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Wing On”), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange for the negotiation of
possible acquisition of ownership and interest in properties located
in the PRC. Wing On will procure to return the earnest money to
the Group within three months upon conclusion of the negotiations
unless the fund is applied towards any payment for acquisition of the
property interest. Up to the date of this report, the negotiations have
not yet been concluded.

On 18th January, 2008, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding with an independent thirty party with a view of
negotiating a possible acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
a company which is proposed to hold and develop a land in Vietnam.
Upon signing of the memorandum of understanding, an amount of
HK$15,600,000 was paid by the Group as refundable earnest money.

On 29th October, 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
paid HK$10,000,000 to vendor with a view of negotiating a possible
acquisition of ownership and interest in properties located in Hong
Kong.

The refundable earnest money mainly concentrated on vendors of
4 projects and 90% of total refundable earnest money are arised
from one project. The Company has continuously assessed the
recoverability of the money invested and the progress of the project
and consider the vendors of good credit quality.

No formal agreements in respect of the above possible acquisitions
have been entered into up to the date of this report. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the possible acquisitions may or
may not materialise and are fully refundable, therefore, the above
refundable earnest money is classified as current asset accordingly.

M-FENEFZAZTNH K
SEELEZA A —H AR
I 2 R (FE ) A1 RS
(k% > — BB BB 3 7 -
1l 24 1) BLRE T AT R L7
A L
45 S AR AR 0 M
170,000,000 7T K i # 160,191,000
T o KT BE R 444 =
R A (5 O
05 M S S 3) -
HEAH F 4 BRE B 5
o

HEENFE—H+NH » AN
£ W T AT AR SO — [ e B R 4
AR —E A ER 2 2WE
BEATIRA - BB SIS = wT S
TRk - ZR SRR S Bk AR o ANdE
%] 37 A+ & %% 15,600,000 7T 1E 5 Al T
R RS -

RoFEEEAZ A > AR
) A W A ) 4 W T T R AL
PN s 2 Wy 2 2 WA HE Kb R
155 5 3456 510,000,000 7T

T FIRE T 4 Bk G U EIE A
ZEF > A TREWNESAE
0% H —HEH ° A/ FFAEFE
fl B 3% & 2 #CH 2 A Wi )RR B K
THHZ MR > Wi b s BRI
£,

BEAWS BRI > MR L
A B 3 AT 2 Wi B T ST AT AT 1E =X
o ANFIEHTS > WfEETZ
Wl AR E Hn] TREORE > |
Bt s bk A] R R A A A i
B o

33. UNSECURED LOANS AND INTEREST DUE FROM  33.
RELATED COMPANIES
The amounts represented loans to Wing On and one of its

B L 2 i) 2 S £k B M A S

2%k TR A T K 2 B — R Y
LK o FRIE S AT R R
MR 2 S > WRAEE HE—
FENEE(CETLE  —FR) -

subsidiaries. The amounts are unsecured, carry interest at Hong Kong
Prime Rate plus 2% and repayable within one year from the balance
sheet date (2007: within one year).

BEMAEFRAT2E (ZEELLE 95
JE) o

The effective interest rate is 7.2% (2007: 9.5%) per annum.

A I T AR AR R o SRR 4
FS SIS R 1 P T B N ] (L
FLFE 2 o

The Group has concentration of credit risk as all (2007: all) of the
unsecured loans were due from two related companies.
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34. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH 34. UIWET % S8 0n R4

The pledged bank deposits amount represents deposits pledged to O ERAT A7 3 fe © #4717 8817 DAL
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. The EALEEZ —BIRITRVE Z 73K -
deposits carry interest at 2.9% (2007: 4.2%) per annum. TR ZEMBE29E (—FFELAE
4.2)8) o
The bank balances carry interest at rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.5% SRAT A R 2 AE AR H0.01 EE4.5)F (=
(2007: 2.5% to 5.1%) per annum. EERAAE  25HES 1) R -
35.  CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 35, MEAFMRK - 5 BT B 5
The following is an analysis of creditors, deposits and accrued FEATHRER ~ Hed K EFT B SOR A5 A
charges at the balance sheet date: ZOHTR
2008 2007
BN “EFLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WTL BT
Trade creditors aged: JEAT B8 5 Rk 2 B i
0— 60 days ZE5TH 1,420 61,825
61 — 90 days ~Nt—=zJLt+H 355 8,956
Over 90 days L H 360 9,245
2,135 80,026
Other creditors, deposits and HoAREATHRR ~ #24
accrued charges (note) FESHBA = (Mt 72) 68,257 78,921
70,392 158,947
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. The WEERZ PHERHAH - A%
Group has financial risk management policies to ensure that all @ﬁﬁﬁ%@@%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
payables are within the credit timeframe. FIAAE I N SAT o
Note:  Under the agreement in connection with the disposal of Panyu Golf, Mt - fﬁﬁ%ﬁ Bl 51% 7 ji BRHY Hh
the Group agreed to assume certain assets and liabilities of Panyu % » AR [%IEJ %%%ﬁ% 1R R 2R
Golf with the net carrying amount of approximately HK$30,423,000 ﬁ JF E‘E T E 4 ti 7%/\%30;\433’099
which has been included in other creditors at 31st March, 2008. JLL %E%ﬁ 1 = &% ﬁ%ﬁﬁ* %
JNAEZH = — H SRR HAb AT

36. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF  36.  MEAHHHE & v 4 BUBORKH
SUBSIDIARIES o
Ed y. e g ym
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. HIE S MRS G0 0 R AR 2R -
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37.  UNSECURED LOANS FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS  37. K& 2 vl 4> #0Be it 2 Sk £ 3%
OF SUBSIDIARIES
The amount at 31st March, 2007 was unsecured, repayable on FERN_EFLFE=A=T—HZK
demand and interest free, except for a loan of HK$3,535,000 which TE B SEAEH - IRESRMEE KB (Fr—
carried interest at prevailing market rate of 6.14% per annum in the 454k H3,535,000 70 2 B FK K B I
PRC. The loans was settled upon the disposal of subsidiaries. THER614HFE) o BT A L&
B I > ] IRF 5 5 o
38.  UNSECURED LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY 38, — B A ) 2 SRR £ K
The loan at 31st March, 2007 was borrowed from 7 & = 7 KBk th FERN_EELF A =T—HZH
4 in which Mr. Lai, an executive director of the Company, was the FAE BARAF AT E SR AEE T
Chairman. The loan was unsecured, carried interest at 6% per annum B2 HEEWE R & o & IEI
and was repayable on demand. The loan was settled upon the disposal o A ROEFHS » RARERAEE -
of subsidiaries. FERTIA 45 W 2 R Rp 45 5
39. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES 39.  WHBRERRE h‘%ﬁlﬁ
(a) In April 2005, the Company entered into nine subscription () B _EERFEMA > AN F
agreements with seven subscribers. Of the nine subscribers, TR A8 S A IR
seven of them were subscribers who were funds managed fhk > LB RIENES 4:
by global asset management firms (the “Fund Subscribers”), 25 B ERBRE B A A E
with the remaining two subscribers being Loyal Concept Ll S a8 DN gt

Limited (“Loyal Concept”) and Kopola Investment
Company Limited (“Kopola™). Pursuant to the subscription
agreements, the Fund Subscribers in aggregate, Loyal
Concept and Kopola had agreed to subscribe by cash for
HK$956 million unsecured zero coupon convertible notes
due 2010 issued by the Company pursuant to the subscription
agreements (the “First 2010 Convertible Notes”) with
principal amounts of HK$356 million, HK$450 million and
HK$150 million, respectively (the “Subscription”). Loyal
Concept is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny
Holdings Limited (“Hanny”), a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Kopola was 50% held by
each of Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman (“Mr. Ho”), the former
deputy chairman and non-executive director of the Company
and his brother, Mr. Ho Hau Hay, Hamilton, and therefore an
associate of Mr. Ho.
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A1) o Bk W AR Eﬁ J\
Al %% Loyal Concept Limited
(T Loyal Concept | ) % Kopola
Investment Company Limited
(I'Kopolal) o M3 ik
&R A - Loyal Concept
J Kopola 3 [F] A 4 14 [F] &
DLEL & 58 A 0 71‘&%%5’%
th % ¥ 17 Z ¥ ¥ 956,000,000

I S SCSE PR i iR
BT R (58—t =%
—RETNHRKRERL]) > A&
& W 73 H 7y ¥ i 356,000,000
¢ ~ ¥ %450,000,000 70 K i
150,000,0007% ([ 52 1) - Loyal
Concept £ A A %2 5+ it oz H.
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39.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 39, WHUBSEIRMEAS K ()
() (Cont’d) (a) (%)
Pursuant to a placing agreement, the placing agent would MR — 1 i 65 ok - 5 AR
procure not less than six placees to subscribe by cash for FEAH A DA 7S & AR B DLB 4
HK$44 million unsecured zero coupon convertible notes due R A A ) S R AR R T T
2010 proposed to be issued by the Company (the “Placing BEAT 2 W H44,000,0000C —F—
Convertible Notes”) pursuant to the placing agreement Zo A 3 A S A 2 B T 4 R B
with a principal amount of HK$44 million (the “Placing”). P ([ e T # B SR8 1) - A4
The terms of the First 2010 Convertible Notes and Placing 4 50 7 W5 44,000,000 7T ([ AL
Convertible Notes were identical. None of the placees would ) o Bt T - FAEA
be the subscribers. 3 S 4% B i 5 ] A ER AR 2
SCHAR] o ARE 4R T2 At 20 R 0
PN
Upon full conversion of the First 2010 Convertible Notes at fifg 55 — b — F — FAF W] #2 i
the initial conversion price of HK$0.44 per share (subject EHEYRBK44 Iz
to anti-dilutive adjustments), a total of 2,172,727,272 A Y B A8 (A] T fz T K )
new ordinary shares, which would fall to be issued by the A B R o RIS AT A 3
Company upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached 2,172,727,272 1 8 & 4 i > AR
to the First 2010 Convertible Notes, would be issued. I8 R RN AR — R — AR ]
i 5 S T o 4 T R A AT (6 Iy
BATH B -
Upon full conversion of the Placing Convertible Notes at the A A T 45 R SR A ) 40
initial conversion price of HK$0.44 per share (subject to anti- 18 4 B 76004400 (7] 7 S 48
dilutive adjustments), a total of 100,000,000 new ordinary AR U - BT A
shares, which would fall to be issued by the Company upon 100,000,000 % #7 & 48 B > A2
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Placing A R B R 4 RS 5 O 4t
Convertible Notes, would be issued. JRCREHEA T (IR 884 T B
The First 2010 Convertible Notes and the Placing IR S — it = F—FAEn] ik
Convertible Notes, unless converted prior to their maturity T T T AT 4R % S R A B
under the conditions specified in the relevant notes H % A B 2 3 S sk B 2
documents, will be redeemed at 110% of their principal oA St > 5 BRI AR 4
amounts. B2 110% 05 Em o
The Subscription and the Placing were completed on i REEC R ZFEE AR
11th August, 2005. The total gross proceeds from the ANH+—H%ER - &R
Subscription and the Placing amounted to HK$956 million BT HBEE S L0 0 A
and HK$44 million, respectively. Therefore, the total gross # ¥ 956,000,000 T K
proceeds from the Subscription and the Placing amounted 44,000,000 JG ° FE UL - 58 8§ K&
to HK$1,000 million. After deducting related expenses of TiC il A5 2 T 4 5 A 2L oy ke
approximately HK$11 million, approximately HK$989 1,000,000,000 7T ° &40 R A B
million would be used to finance the expansion of the B S 491 %511,000,0007C1% > 4
investment property portfolio of the Group. #5 #5989,000,000 TGS EE IR B

ALEEBEYEANEGZ -
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39. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 39, WHRBER REAT KO (A7)
(a) (Cont’d) (a) (%)
During the year, HK$111 million (2007: HK$354 million) SANE EE43Gv) Bk > ER > W
of the First 2010 Convertible Notes was converted into #111,000,0007C (- FE-L4 :
252,272,727 (2007: 804,431,812) ordinary shares of #s M 354,000,000 7T ) 55—t —
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at the F— FLAE ] I B Sl
conversion price of HK$0.44 as set out in note 43(iv). In e M 0.44 70 5 #8555 252,272.727
addition, HK$40 million of the Placing Convertible Notes B ( —FFE L4 804,431,812
was converted into 90,909,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 JBE) A ) Je A v e R T
each in the share capital of the Company at the conversion 0.01 7G4 iE - Wk » s
price of HK$0.44 during the year ended 31st March, 2007 as M sE43@)rat - e —FFL
set out in note 43(i), whereas no such conversion was noted EZA=+—HILERK >
during the year ended 31st March, 2008. The remaining 40,000,000 7G 2 fiil B AT 4 1 5
HK$469.5 million (2007: HK$580.5 million) and HK$1.5 5 1% 50 H B VS M 0.44 78 ST
million (2007: HK$1.5 million) of the First 2010 Convertible 90,909,000 23 7 JBEAS v 4 i T
Notes and the Placing Convertible Notes, respectively, were (¥ #0.01 0 2 A - R
outstanding at 31st March, 2008. ZERENEZH =+ —HIEE
TSl A B AT R 5 S AR o
x5 469,500,00070 (—FZF L
4 580,500,000 ) 5 — it
TR B A R R s
1,500,0007C ( —FEE-L4E « K
1,500,0007C) 2 Fic 5 w] e 524
M oEENE=ZH=+—HM
G o
(b) On 8th June, 2006, the Company issued HK$60 million (b) B EENENHAHNE R

unsecured zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 (the
“Second 2010 Convertible Notes™) at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.44 (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) for
settlement of consideration on acquisition of Everight as set
out in note 45. The Second 2010 Convertible Notes is non-
interest bearing and will mature on 11th August, 2010. The
holders of the convertible notes have the right to convert the
Second 2010 Convertible Notes into shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company at any time during the
period from 8th June, 2006 to 11th August, 2010.

Unless previously converted, the Company will redeem the
convertible notes on the maturity date at the redemption
amount of 108.3% of the principal amount of the convertible
notes then outstanding.

120

O TG A A i B AR WS 7R 0.44 00
(] T IR ) > BE1T U
60,000,000 JT JA — & — F 4 F|
) 2 J A 0 2 S, AT R R B R
(M58 it = F— B 5
1) > RATE B AEAST Bt 45 T i
Z WK REZ ARE o BBt
T TR A RS
Witk —F—FFEN\NA+—H
ES B Y K SR PN e
M EERNEANANHE -E
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39.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 39, WHUBSEIRMEAS K ()
(b)  (Cont'd) (b ()
Upon full conversion of the Second 2010 Convertible i 55 — 4t T — T4 n] L
Notes at the initial conversion price of HK$0.44 per share B0 B s ¥ 0.44 0 2 W1 A R
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments), a total of 136,363,636 JBOAE (AT T S v R ) 4
new ordinary shares, which would fall to be issued by the oo R 81T A 3£136,363,636
Company upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached JBEB A 1 > AR R A AR
to the Second 2010 Convertible Notes, would be issued. b — T AF T % S A i
160 B HE 8 A o R 35 AT A B
By o
During the year, HK$42.5 million (2007: Nil) of the Second N &5 42,500,000
2010 Convertible Notes was converted into 96,645,052 JC (BB LE - M) 2B
(2007: Nil) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share =% — FAE W] % 2E PR
capital of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.44 A8 B 1 v W 0.44 8 SR A
per share. The remaining HK$17.5 million of the Second 96,645,052 B ( — FF L 4
2010 Convertible Notes was outstanding at 31st March, ) AN\ A o A R T (E
2008. #0.01 70 2 B o B T

17,500,0007C 2 6 — it —F—=&
AR ] TR A R A =
HA=+—H MR o

() On 15th June, 2006, the Company issued HK$1,000 (c) A EENESNHTHH > A
million unsecured 1% convertible notes due 2011 (the 4l ¥ ) A He B v 0,70 7T
“2011 Convertible Notes”) at an initial conversion price of (A7 R BEHREE) > BT
HK$0.70 (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The 2011 1,000,000,000 JG it — & — —4F
Convertible Notes bear interest at 1% per annum and will FIHA 2 1 B A T 4 B SR
mature on 15th June, 2011. The holders of the convertible ([T —— i ) o
notes have the right to convert the 2011 Convertible Notes T — A T R R B PR AR A
into shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the RIUEFHE > WA —F——4
Company at any time during the period from 15th June, 2006 ANATHHEM - iR
to 15th June, 2011. R NAHER —FFNEANA

THHE=F——%~ A +h
HM > BRI % —— 4]
AR SR A R A

RE{E 0.0 e
Unless previously converted, the Company will redeem the R A A S Ak > AR FDRE R
convertible notes on the maturity date at the redemption I H H e i R 5830 2 R 4 R R
amount of 110% of the principal amount of the convertible PR GHZ 110%E F ] R i 5
notes then outstanding. b
Upon full conversion of the 2011 Convertible Notes at the i = —— ] R R AR
initial conversion price of HK$0.70 per share (subject to anti- JB s 70,7070 2 10 5 4 AR (T
dilutive adjustments), a total of 1,428,571,429 new ordinary TR ) AR > R
shares, which would fall to be issued by the Company upon BEAT A 351,428,571,429 A% #
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the 2011 A ARNFHN F——4F
Convertible Notes, would be issued. A 45 R S A T o 4 S RE A AT

AT A BRI A -
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39.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 39.  WHRJBEIRMEAT KR (A7)
(©)  (Cont'd) ()  (#)
During the year, HK$94 million (2007: Nil) of the 2011 N > &R 94,000,000
Convertible Notes was converted into 134,285,714 (2007: (ZFEFLE )z - F——
Nil) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of AT HR R SRR AR b0 MR A 1 AR
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.70 per share. 0,70 70 50 HR £y 134,285,714 %
The remaining HK$906 million of 2011 Convertible Notes (ZFEELAE - ;) AN A A
was outstanding as at 31st March, 2008. o 4 JE T (B S 00,01 70 2 3 4

B o 85K #s 906,000,000 7C 2
S EA RN O E
FTNEZHA=Z+—HMERL

o
The convertible note payables contain two components, liability and A] R E A R IE AL A W RR A A
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity under the 8 B LA 4Y o BEARER 4 HA T P45 A 22
heading of “convertible loan notes equity reserve”. The effective WA 1 TE T 251 By AR o ] #a %
interest rates of the convertible notes are ranging from 5.85% to TR 2 EBRAE A R A 55 5.85H £ 9.58/F
9.58% (2007: 5.85% to 9.16%) per annum. (ZEFLHF : 5.85HE9.16)H) N5 -
The movement of the liability component of the convertible note A 45 R S A AN R I A AR A A N
payables for the year is set out below: B
2008 2007
BN R
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T BT
Liability component at A2 B ERS
the beginning of the year 1,368,400 838,462
Issue of convertible notes BEAT ] RSB B - 780,086
Conversion during the year GRS (212,248) (339,248)
Interest charge (note 10) FILEBA S (Hf7E10) 97,681 89,321
Interest paid CASALE (9,990) (221)
Liability component at FERZ AR
the end of the year 1,243,843 1,368,400
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RS
Current liability B A K 7,284 7,945
Non-current liability B A A 1,236,559 1,360,455
1,243,843 1,368,400
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40. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 40. AL R
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
WAL Sk T A Sk T BLH
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EFNE | CEFTLE | ZRFAE | FTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T | EWToo | TR | B¥T
Amount payable under finance leases: TR B AT 50 -
Within one year —&R 67 36 49 24
In the second to fifth year inclusive B_RETE
(L& w4 202 91 173 71
269 127 222 95
Less: Future finance charges W HRMEE 47) (32) - =
Present value of lease obligations RIS HIE 222 95 222 95
Less: Amount due within one year B MEAEE T —F
shown under current liabilities WEH 2 3R0H 49) (24)
Amount due after one year — A B 2 FIH 173 71
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain fixtures and equipment under 7 A [ 2 TS B MR HE RS A S
finance leases. The average lease term is approximately five years. T E g e o SEFHEL B AR o
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed B S AL S IE T RIE 2 £ B 5915
at respective contract dates ranging from 9.15% to 9.16% (2007: JEZE916)E (—BELAE : 75HFE9D
7.5% to 9.2%) per annum. JH) REE S BERAAL L B E o
A4 ) A B R E TS DL AH A 2
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the TG VEHE o

lessors’ charge over the leased assets.
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41.  BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 41, BYT BRI e £
2008 2007
“EERN\E —EETEHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T BT
Bank loans, secured A AR T B 153,643 93,902
Trust receipt and import loans, secured A &5 sEUCHE Kok 0 &3k - 25,618
153,643 119,520
The maturity profile of the above AR EHRRAEEZ
loans and borrowings is as follows: FBBWT
Within one year or on demand R — R R R R 113,996 111,439
More than one year, but not —4ERL EHAAE A
exceeding two years 12,433 4,040
More than two years, but not WAERL B {H=AE A
exceeding three years 12,837 2,021
More than three years but not AR F{HIAE A
exceeding four years 13,254 2,020
More than four years but not PR EE AR
exceeding five years 1,123 -
153,643 119,520
Less: Amount due within one year W MEAEE TN
shown under current liabilities F|HA 2 FRIH (113,996) (111,439)
Amount due after one year — B EH 2 20 39,647 8,081

124



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B ok F e

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008) (#E_-FE/N\FE=H=+—HIL4FE)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

41. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 41. BT R HAbAS £ (42)
Carrying amount
Contractual Wi
Bank borrowings comprise Maturity date interest rate 2008 2007
RITEEELRE FMA GrOpIES “RENE “ELEE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
e T T
Variable-rate borrowings:
TR
HIBOR plus 1.75% secured HK$ 31st July, 2007 HIBOR + 1.75% - 24,500
bank loan (note i) “FELFELA=T—H BRI TIR ¥
Fr AT R B0 175 ) FEm1L75E
HARME TR AT B (7))
HIBOR plus 0.75% secured HK$ 11th May, 2007 HIBOR + 0.75% - 3,787
bank loan (note i) “EFELFERA+—H BRI TIR ¥
T SRATIF 247 80,75 ) FEmo.75/E
HARME TR AT B (7))
HIBOR plus 1% secured HK$ Revolving HIBOR + 1% 1,844 5,009
bank loan (note i) fase BRI TIR ¥
BT R S 1 ) FrE e
HARME TR AT B (A7)
HIBOR plus 1.55% secured HK$ 30th April, 2012 HIBOR + 1.55% 51,690 -
bank loan (note i) “EZ—-ZFMA=1+H s ATIR ¥
Fr AT R B 155 ) P Em1.55E
HARME TR AT B (7))
Hong Kong Prime Rate minus 0.5% 25th July, 2008 P- 0.5% 66,850 -
secured HK$ bank loan (note i) “EENFLAZTHH B A% R0.5 8
T B R R 23900,
HARME TR AT B (7))
Secured bank loan of RMB 12,000,000 31st October, 2010 Prevailing market - 12,121
at prevailing market rate in the PRC R -FETA=A—H rate in the PRC
(note ii) W B B 47 A 2R
TR BT R B2 AR
12,000,000 T HSHHSRAT Bk (M i)
Secured bank loan of RMB 18,000,000 10th September, 2007 Prevailing market - 18,182
at prevailing market rate “EXFLENLATH rate in the PRC
in the PRC B BT TG A%
BB TR B2 AR
18,000,0007C7 #EAMHRATHE K
120,384 63,599
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41. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 41. BT RIS £E ()
Carrying amount
Contractual Wi
Bank borrowings comprise Maturity date interest rate 2008 2007
HATIHE L FIHH BHFR ZRENE “ERRLH
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T
Fixed-rate borrowings:
ERER
6.696% secured bank loan of 13th September, 2007 6.696% - 11,111
RMB11,000,000 “FELELATZER
6.696)E 2 A B#11,000,00078
AR B
6.728% secured bank loan of 19th July, 2007 6.728% - 13,132
RMB13,000,000 “FELELATLA
6.7288 2 A B#13,000,00078
AR B
8.064% secured bank loan of 4th August, 2007 8.064% - 6,060
RMB6,000,000 “FELEAANA
8.064)% 2 A\ R #6,000,0007%
AR B
7.47% secured bank loan of 22nd December, 2008 7.47% 13,304 -
RMB12,000,000 ZZENFTZAZTZH
74782 N #12,000,0007C
AR B
7.02% secured bank loan of 9th September, 2008 7.02% 19,955 -
RMB18,000,000 ZEZE)ENLANA
7.02J% 2 N #18,000,0007C
AT R
33,259 30,303
153,643 93,902
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41. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 41. BT R HAbAS £ (42)
Notes: fEE -
() Interest will be repriced when HIBOR, Hong Kong Prime Rate or @) F BRAGAR IR F W5 8R4 7 R 207 B B
prevailing market rate in the PRC was changed. T A R S P B BT T R R
(ii) The loan was early repaid during the year. (i1) PR O 4R RAE R o
As at the balance sheet date, the Group has the following undrawn REEEH > REBA DT KRR ZE
borrowing facilities: BRE
2008 2007
2 9.€ 2 e =2 s ki S
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T BT
Floating rate FE) %
— expiring within one year — — 4 IR JE IR 17,150 -
— expiring beyond one year — — 4R JE I 222,406 277,261
239,556 277,261

Secured trust receipt and import loans are repayable within one year A {5 5E Y48 S O B EUE R 458 H B 5t
from the balance sheet date and carry interest at rates ranging from  —4F N{E 8 - L E W EATRI ETR B N1 E £
HIBOR plus 1% per annum to HIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2007:  1.75)E (= FE-E4E | FHukeRAT R ZE55 Eom1 &
HIBOR plus 1% per annum to HIBOR plus 1.75% per annum). £ 1.75)8) ZEF| KRG8 - FlREH k55 E

Interest is repricing monthly or quarterly. Al e

The effective interest rates of bank and other borrowings are ranging #8747 Jz HoA i 8 2 B MR AE FI| 2 554,758 £ 8.06
from 4.75% to 8.06% (2007: 4.48% to 6.38%) per annum. JE (BT LF - 4485 6.38)H) A& o
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42.  DEFERRED TAXATION 42.  EEBLEEM
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised AR BAAE S R AE4E B2 E
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: SRR TH B il (A ) KA BASEE)
Accelerated Deferred
tax development
depreciation costs Tax
Tk WA losses Total
BLEYTE  BEORA  BUEEH At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T EWRTr ¥t B¥Tx
At Ist April, 2006 MEELREMA—H = 540 (540) =
Charge (credit) to income for the year A RULAFIRR (FHA) 3,352 (465) 303 3,190
Effect of change in tax rate charged TREE AR 1| 22 52 )
to income for the year ba 7 7275 = (744) 6,531
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WSC SR B 2 ) A
(note 45) (ff7E45) 31,842 - (954) 30,888
At 315t March, 2007 REFFLHF=A=1+—H 42,469 75 (1,935) 40,609
(Credit) charge to income for the year — FM4ERULA (FFA) F1BR (646) = 1,779 1,133
Exchange realignment [ 3¢, A % 1,067 - 81 1,148
Released on disposal of subsidiaries H A B A
(note 46) (Ml7t46) (14,316) (75) 75 (14,316)
At 31st March, 2008 REZZFNE=H=1—H 28,574 - - 28,574

At 31st March, 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$517,627,000 (2007: HK$702,486,000) available for offset
against future profits. At the balance sheet date, a deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$nil (2007: HK$8,554,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$517,627,000 (2007:
HK$693,932,000). The tax losses of HK$511,706,000 (2007:
HK$667,840,000) may be carried forward indefinitely under
current tax regulation in Hong Kong and the remaining tax losses
of HK$5,921,000 (2007: HK$34,646,000) will expire from 2008 to
2011.

At 31st March, 2007, the Group had deductible temporary
differences associated with property, plant and equipment of
HK$11,622,000. No deferred tax asset had been recognised
in respect of such deductible temporary differences due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31st March, 2008,
there is no deductible temporary differences due to disposal of
subsidiaries.
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MREENE=ZA=+—H > AEH
AR AR B R AR i A 22 ok B A B TH
i 18 B ok 95 517,627,000 T ( —FEE L
4 #k#702,486,0007C) © R&EEH
B A B s 48 e SRR 4 B TH K A W
WL (ZEE LA 8,554,000
JG) > MENFHERLER T AR B BLE B R
#517,627,0007C ( = EE L4
693,932,0007C) > FERBIR LRI IH & A o
MR U BLRE BTS00 > BTl 12 s
#511,706,0007C ( = FE L4
667,840,00070) F] HERR I 458 > AR T
5 s 18 s 195,021,000 8 ( B FE L
4 W H34,646,00000) A —EE N
EE TR ——IFE -

MRoEEELE=ZH=+—H  A44EH
F Y ~ B R 2 v 0380 R
ZHRALHE11,622,0000C © ML TE
wh R A s A A YE > kT A S AT 0 e
WFEFMRREREEE - R_FF
JEZHA=1T—H > FHEEHNEAR
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43. SHARE CAPITAL 43. B
Number
of shares Amount
il =] SHE
HK$’000
T oo
At HK$0.01 each: 3 R THI (B 5 70,0100
Authorised: HEE
At st April, 2006, 31st March, 2007 MZEENEMH—H -
and 31st March, 2008 TEEELFE=ZHA=1+—HK
“EENE=H=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RBE -
At 1st April, 2006 A ZEENFENH—H 631,436,639 6,314
Conversion of convertible SR YR T (M D)
notes (note i) 895,340,902 8,953
Placement of shares (note ii) BE 4 Ay (i i) 833,332,000 8,334
Repurchase and cancellation of Wt e R s B R A9 ( Bt i)
shares (note iii) (47,795,000) (478)
At 31st March, 2007 RZEELF=H=1—H 2,312,314,541 23,123
Conversion of convertible ﬁf@jf@&mf (ftativ)
notes (note iv) 483,203,485 4,832
Placement of shares (note v) Be & B (Mt 7 v) 300,000,000 3,000
At 31st March, 2008 REZBENHE=ZA=1T—H 3,095,518,026 30,955
Note: Mt
@ In April 2006 and May 2006, the First 2010 Convertible Notes o R ZERTRENA I TN

H o A4 B 354,000,000 7C 2

and Placing Convertible Notes with aggregate principal amounts

(i)

of HK$354,000,000 and HK$40,000,000 were converted into
804,431,812 and 90,909,090 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
respectively, in the share capital of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.44 per share. The new shares rank pari passu with all
the other shares in issue in all respects.

On 27th April, 2006, the Company entered into a share placing
agreement with a placing agent for a placing of 833,332,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
at an issue price of HK$0.60 per share. The placement was approved
by shareholders in a special general meeting held on 8th June, 2006.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$487 million would be used
to finance the expansion of the property portfolio and the existing
property development projects of the Group. The new shares rank
pari passu with all the other shares in issue in all respects.
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43. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 43. B (FE)

(iii)

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Company repurchased
a total of 47,795,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company through the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$20 million, details of which are
as follows:

(iii)

BEEELEZHA=+—HIME
BE > A ] A B AE i AR A
#1395 %20,000,0007C % [F1 47,795,000
JBEAS A ) B A v 4 8 T (L5 60,01
TLZ R > RSN

No. of
ordinary
shares of Price per share Aggregate
HK$0.01 each B BB A consideration
Month of repurchase IR R 0.010 Highest Lowest paid
ik 11 3 3 Z B H Bewif 8549 <] e A
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
I i BT
July 2007 4,505,000 0.490 0.350 2,011
“EZZEEEA
August 2007 26,425,000 0.465 0.390 11,795
“ERELENNA
September 2007 16,865,000 0.405 0.345 6,287
—“FELEAA
47,795,000 20,093

All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The
nominal value of the cancelled shares was credited to the capital
redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration was paid out of
the reserves of the Company.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during both years.

e A A A [ R RS o
JBe > 22 T {EL T A A R [ ot A - 480
B RAAS S Bl Z it AT

RN AR B 2 v MR A B
U R T A A 7] LT o

(iv)  During the year, the First 2010 Convertible Notes, the Second 2010 Gv)  FRN o AR SH AU 111,000,000
Convertible Notes and the 2011 Convertible Notes with aggregate JG W W 42,500,000 76~ W K
principal amounts of HK$111,000,000, HK$42,500,000 and 94,000,000 7C & 5 — it —F —F4F
HK$94,000,000 were converted into 252,272,723, 96,645,052 and CIECY S5 S Tt et S 255
134,285,710 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital A SR e —F — — AR R R
of the Company at the conversion prices of HK$0.44, HK$0.44 and SRR o Rl 2 L A A e vk W 0.44
HKS$0.70 per share, respectively. JC ~ W H50.44 0 12 0,70 78 Sh

#252,272,723 % ~ 96,645,052 it &
134,285, 710BEAS 2 7] BEAS H 4 BT
HHH0.0 T2 HEAE -

(v) On 18th May, 2007, the Company entered into a share placing v) e a2 < ks S I = e AN = ER N/

agreement with a placing agent for a placing of 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
at an issue price of HK$0.56 per share. The placement was approved
by shareholders in a special general meeting held on 1st June, 2007.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$163 million would be used
to finance the expansion of the property portfolio and the existing
property development projects of the Group. The new shares rank
pari passu with all the other shares in issue in all respects.
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44.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 4. Bk S
Scheme adopted on 26th August, 2002 (the “Scheme”) RoZZHENH T AHRMZE
&) (T5H# D)
Following the termination of the scheme adopted on 28th February, Wit — LN E A -+ ANHRHKZ
1994, in August 2002, the Scheme was adopted pursuant to a sEEIA —FFE FENAKIEE > A
resolution passed on 26th August, 2002 for the primary purpose NARIER —FEE _HFENH —+NH
of providing incentives to eligible persons and will expire on 25th BB RRERAEE > FEEN A
August, 2012. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may A Bk N L RALSEE - FHE R =
grant share options to the following eligible persons to subscribe for FE——4ENHA T H B ER o R
shares in the Company: # > ARNFEEF ] FHEER AL
2t T ER A R A 2 W IR
(i) employees including executive directors of the Company, its (i) AN F] ~ HHE A B AN T
subsidiaries and any companies in which the Company holds R HAT A0 A E i 2 ARAT 2
any equity interest; or AZER - GEHATESE ; 5
(i)  non-executive directors of the Company, its subsidiaries i)  AAT -~ HHHE A F KA A
and any companies in which the Company holds any equity R E AT A0 A HE 25 2 AR AT
interest; or A ZFHATHEE ; 5
(iii)  suppliers or customers; or Gil) HLERESEE 5
(iv)  consultants, advisers or agents. (v)  AEFRER - BMSAIA -
Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days of the date BT i R IR HEZEiA B2 1 H A RE 28 R
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of share options. NFEAN > JiE R 2 S 3% 1 22 i
The exercise price is determined at the highest of: (i) the closing TATU W TCAAE o AT HEER UL T B
price of the shares on the date of grant of the share option; or (ii) the ZAEASTERE ()BT B LR H 3
average closing price of shares on the five trading days immediately Z TS 5 Bk G I B B I A
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of shares on the HEH B R BAE 2 2 B 2 I TiE s
date of grant. B BE  H 2 THAE -
There is no specific requirement that an option must be held for A 8] A B IR P A7 (o i 2 e
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors are R Z R RIRE » M2 AR IR
empowered to impose at their discretion any such minimum period at EE AT A0 5 A2 B R 2 I I 195 78 A ]
the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which an 2R o WEIROHE W] T AT (A
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors at their o519 oy 5 S A M 7 R T S A
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than A AR H YR R R T o

10 years from the date of grant.
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 44. WAt 3k 28 B (48 )
The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options MR T E R 452 1L W RO HE i ¥ I 2 Ml
under the Scheme may be granted when aggregated with the oy R > R [R]AR A P At 3 T T
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be 5% 4 W P v e 2 I Ay M 8 (381
granted under all the other schemes (the “Scheme Limit”) is 10% FR%E ) 2 &L A #IERMKEHE
of shares in issue on the adoption date of the Scheme. The Scheme BTN 2 10% o w1 %1 PR AR ] 48 408 1%
Limit may be refreshed by a resolution in shareholders’ meeting such WK PR R E A WEARE R AT
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise ] HoAh 51 350 4 T % 2 A R4 2R
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes AT IR AT BT 2 A B > NS IR
shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of such A R HEE B BB AT IS 2 10% o
shareholders’ approval. However, the Scheme Limit and any increase SR > it s B B AT o] 38 W N 155
in the Scheme Limit shall not result in the number of shares which BOR T #) K HAhFT# 2 H Z R AT
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted TR T e 0 2% A T R Wy ] 8 AT 22 I
under the Scheme and other schemes exceed 30% of the shares in BH > BHEARE BTN Z30% -
issue from time to time. No person shall be granted a share option, U A AT N ] A 4% S e A
within 12-month period of the date of grant, exceeds 1% of the shares sHH A I B R E
in issue as at the date of grant. B BT 1% 2 TR IREHE o
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TREEESE - B KHAb2 T
options held by directors and employees and other participants, and R AN F I IRRERE NG > DL AR AR i
movements in such holdings during the current and prior years: BOMAEAF B A B H) -
Number of share options
JRHESEH
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at at at
Exercise 14.2006 Granted 142007 Granted Cancelled 31.3.2008
Vesting ~ Exercisable price  REZFNAE duing  WEFFLE during during  REZFNAE
Date of grant proportion  period per share WH—H the year WH—H the year theyear ZA=1—H
#iln RERR  WhAMm BROER  WAGE ENER WAGE AR ERRE WROH
HKS$
BT
Employees: fE& :
15.8.2006 “EFNEAA TR 0% 15.8.2006- 14.8.2008 050 - 750,000 750,000 - - 750,000
ZZZNEARTRRE
ZZZ)VEAR A
0% 15.8.2007-14.8.2008 050 - 750,000 750,000 - - 750,000
“ZZEEARTRRE
ZZZ)VEAR A
2172007 “ZTHEEA LR S0% 2772008267201 067 - - - 7600000 - 7600000
“ZRMELA-HERE
“E—ELAZAH
0% 27.7.2009-26.7.2011 0.67 - - - 7,600,000 - 7,600,000

“ERNELACTELRE
e St S o I
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44.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 4.  BBNRRS ()
Number of share options
TRRHERH
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at at at
Exercise 1.4.2006 Granted 142007 Granted Cancelled 31.3.2008
Vesting  Exercisable price  BEBFNE during  R-ZF LA during during  REZEMNE
Date of grant proportion period per share WH—H the year WH—H the year theyear =H=1—H
Sy RERD WA BT B WAGE  FRRH WRGE AR AR WAL
HKS$
T

Other participants:  ShZ8% :

15.8.2006 “EEREMTLH 50%  15.8.2006- 14.8.2008 0.50 - 1,150,000 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000
FERENATERE

“EFNEAFLA
50%  15.8.2007- 148.2008 050 = 1,150,000 1,150,000 = = 1,150,000
“EFUEARTRAZE
ZEENEAR TR
2172007 “RFLELAC A 50%  27.7.2008-26.7.2011 067 - - = 2,500,000 = 2,500,000
“ZENELACLHE
ZZ——FLAZ1RA
50%  27.7.2009-267.2011 067 = = = 2,500,000 = 2,500,000
“ERNFLACHERE
“E——ELAZAH
Directors: B
15.8.2006 “RENEARTAA 50% 1582006~ 14.8.2008 050 — 13750000 13,750,000 - (43500000) 9250000
(Note) i) “EERENITRRE
ZEFNEAREA
50 1582007 14.8.2008 050 — 13750000 13,750,000 = — 13750000
“ERLEATRAE
“EFNEAA LA
2112007 “EZUELAC LR 50% 2772008 2672011 067 = = - 21750000 - 21750000
“ERNELASHEHE
e e A it
50 277.2009- 267.2011 067 = = — 21750000 — 21750000
“EFNELAZHRE
ZE——FLRZ1RH
— 31300000 31300000 63700000 (4500000) 90500000
Exercisable at LB
the end of
the years 15,650,000 26,800,000
Note:  The share options included 4,000,000 options granted to two MfaE - TEBORERIE R BT M4 A A AT
executive directors of the Company before their appointment as AR K EE 24,000,000 173 1 B
executive directors. HE -
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44.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before 15th
August, 2006 and 27th July, 2007, the dates of grant of the options,
were HK$0.445 and HK$0.66, respectively, and the estimated fair
values of the options granted were approximately HK$4,050,000 and
HK$15,269,000 at the dates of grant, respectively.

The fair values of the share options granted during the current and
prior years were calculated using the Binomial option pricing model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant = H

Share price i

Exercise price T

Expected life of options TEFT R RE A A
Expected volatility TEFHE R

Expected dividend yield TEFHR

Risk free rate I i )

Fair value per option o I B M HEE (B

The Binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
management’s best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Expected
volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over five years. The expected life used in the
model has been estimated, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

As the fair value of the services to be performed by other eligible
participants cannot be estimated reliably, the fair value of such
services is also measured with reference to the fair value of share
options granted using the Black-Scholes pricing model.
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44.

W5 0.2206 70 K ¥ % 0.2588 70

B ATk R 5 (48
AN w0 A B B R B
EENENATRHA R ZFEELAE
= Bt s ol = I 1l Q= a1 R
0.4457C I #: %0.66 7T ° B 557 H3 I B
ZAGFEATE R R 1 H A R A A s
#54.050,0007C K 7 5 15,269,0000T °
AAEJE RO AR AE B B B 2
SR TS B = 0E SO A A T
B AR
2008 2007
ZRBN\E TEELA
27.7.2007 15.8.2006
ot 2 ot TEERINAE
tH=1++tH AH+THH
HKS$0.63 HK$0.44
W 0.637C H0.4478
HKS$0.67 HK$0.50
W 0.677C HH0.500C
1 to 2 years 2 years
—F 4R A
59.03% 56.21%
59.03% 56.21%
Nil Nil
4
4.28% 421%
4.28)4 4218
HK$0.2206 & HK$0.2588 HK$0.1294

#:40.12947C

AR A TS AR At B A
HELNTE - RSB -TER A 2
SR ARG T ¥ PG 2 B AR A FHE
o B R AR (B 2 T BB
A TANIE o FEEHBE S 5RO AR 2 7
R R A T 4F 22 JBE S W 7R S o A
R FHRHAF AR5 B %
JEB AN T B ~ AT o8 R ) B 1 81 4R A
2z FAEfh R o

P S A A 2 B B 5 R
IR AEFT S it - AT BT 024
PRIV 55 B 0 R 22 -1
S Ay 5 — B RIS (%
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 44. B ATk R 5 (48
The Group recognised the total expense of HK$8,342,000 for the KA > AREBE AN AR L 2
year (2007: HK$3,296,000) in relation to the share options granted Ji R e 8 s 108,342,000 0 ( —FF £
by the Company, of which HK$2,498,000 (2007: HK$702,000) 4F - {E1:3,296,0007T) 2 BASCARAR o Wk
was related to options granted to the Group’s employees which has TR EE 13 BT A 92,498,000 7T
been included in staff costs as set out in note 13, and the remaining (R4 - #1702,00000) T3 BL5!
balance of HK$5,844,000 (2007: HK$2,594,000) was related to A B TAZ 32T AL H {8 B 2 W5
options granted to directors which has been included in directors’ REABA > s AN M]L‘E‘EM(a)Fﬁ #o HR
remuneration as set out in note 14(a). 4B ARV 55,844,00000 (BT LAF i
#2,594,00070) 5 Bt A S 3 37 2 4%
TEF AR -
45.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45.  WOREREA ¥
During the year ended 31st March, 2007: PR _EFEFLE=A=1+—HIEF
JF o
(a) The Group acquired the entire equity interest in Everight (the (a) 7 4 18 DAL 1B W 141,993,000
“First Acquisition”), a company engaged in the development JCU AR 2R I AR 2R ([ 1
and operation of golf resort and hotel and property WD) - 5% A e 8 R I
management, for a consideration of HK$141,993,000. RS W REREBA - W5 &
Everight owned 63.03% interest in Smart Sharp Investment WG o KR RRIRER
Limited (“Smart Sharp”) which owned 88.17% interest in FRA A (55 ) % 63.03%
Donson. MERS o T B AR AR B
88.17% M4
(b) Everight acquired the remaining 11.83% interest in (b) T HE DL AR B s %5 19,529,000 70
Donson (“the Second Acquisition”) for a consideration Wi B8 S RO R N 11.83% HE 22
of HK$19,529,000. After the completion of the Second (M55 Rl 1) - RSB Es —
Acquisition, the Group owned 67.40% effective interest in W A% A B2 B RORIEA
Donson. 67.40% B FEHERS ©
(©) Everight acquired the remaining 36.97% interest of Smart (c) K HE B W g B Braniff
Sharp through the acquisition of the entire interest in Braniff Developments Limited
Developments Limited (“Branift”) (the “Third Acquisition’) ([ Braniff]) 2= &BAEDE > WCHER
for a consideration of HK$35,730,000. After the completion HER T 36.97%ME %5 ([ 26 =1k
of the Third Acquisition, the Group owns the entire interest in Wi D) > AR 2 5 H535,730,000
Smart Sharp and Donson. TG © A SERUEE IR IR - AR
5 B B A LR e AU 4 o b
5 o
The transaction (a) had been accounted for using the purchase f%(a)ﬂﬁf%ﬁ%@%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ@ ©

method of accounting.
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
The net assets acquired in the acquisitions and the discount arising on

acquisition are as follows:

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments of
leasehold land
Premium on prepaid lease
payments of leasehold land

Inventories
Properties held for sale
Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash

Creditors, deposits and
accrued charges

Tax payable

Amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Unsecured loans from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Unsecured loans from related parties

Unsecured loan from a director
Unsecured other borrowings
Bank borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Minority interests

Revaluation reserve

Discount on acquisition

45.  WOmEHE A (A7)
A WS S 2 TR BT AR 2 K
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IEHTERIT
2007
TERBAAE
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination
REPEET Fair
BT NG| Adjustments values
2 IR {E A NTHE
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T ki cam T T
JIT AT i 7 VR
WIS - M AR 209,819 = 209,819
TH& T FE AT
FHEFHIE 101,139 = 101,139
THE - PR
R e = 134,029 134,029
(note i) (ff7%i)
& 1,752 = 1,752
a2 /ES 213 = 213
FEUS AR K ~ #4 Me
TEfT A 19,985 - 19,985
A i [a] Fi 15 258 = 258
SRATAE B B 4 9,559 = 9,559
FEATRREK ~ Hed: 2
e A (55,640) - (55,640)
JEE AR IE (11,443) - (11,443)
JREAST Bt JE 2
DB SR K IH (1,377) = (1,377)
I JEg > ) /D B R
SR 2K (34,901) = (34,901)
A B\ - M K (8,303) = (8,303)
— 4 T AR R (16,427) - (16,427)
SEHE A H AL & (17,382) - (17,382)
RITE B (45,507) = (45,507)
B SR I A 1 (7,119) (23,769) (30,888)
(note i) (H17%i)
144,626 110,260 254,886
DB RRE A (103,522) 51,890 (51,632)
(note ii) (Hf7Eii)
B = (1,795) (1,795)
41,104 160,355 201,459
Wi B T (4,207)
197,252
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45.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 45.  WOWHHE A (A7)
Notes: HfaE -
() The amount represented fair value adjustment on acquisition of @) W2 RS I TR b M TR A AR K
prepaid lease payments of leasehold land and the related deferred tax TE A B e B T 4 5 2 AP (E
liabilities. o
(ii) The amount represented the fair values of net assets of (ii) WA REAE R A B AT B b7

HK$100,812,000 acquired from minority shareholders in the A5 REL B R A B 008 A 30 T o i

Second Acquisition and Third Acquisition, net of share of fair value
adjustment of HK$48,922,000 by minority shareholders in relation
to the premium on acquisition of prepaid lease payments of leasehold

land and the related deferred tax liabilities.

Satisfied by: AT

Deposit and expenses paid for WS B B A T A 4
acquisition of subsidiaries KB

Cash Bl

Issue of Second 2010 Convertible Notes BATHE MR

AR R SRR

Expenditure incurred for the acquisition of AT A S A ) i R

subsidiaries ZBX

Other receivable (note)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

HAt REMSCRIE (ff 7T

WS i AR B A U R AR

Cash consideration Bl UE
Bank balances and cash acquired T A SRAT A i S B 4

Note:

The other receivable represented an amount due from the vendor in
respect of tax indemnity given by the vendor pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement for acquisition of Everight. The amount is
included in other receivable as set out in note 32.
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B2 D BB R A3 A & BE A TE  RE
s 1548,922,000701% » AHE IR
TR = R i B 1) D BRSO
TTHEZ A TE#%5100,812,0007T

2007
—EELE
HK$000
s T

12,099
128,233

73,000

1,641
(17,721)

197,252

(129,874)
9,559

(120,315)

F oo HAB B GER IR AR S K R 2

T Mo e WL T 711 e 22 A R 7
W Tr 2 &8 o AR SFT AR
FE32 BT 2 HoA SRR
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45.

46.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st March, 2007
contributed HK$54,960,000 to the Group’s revenue and had a loss
of HK$5,727,000 included in the Group’s profit after taxation for
the period between the date of acquisition and 31st March, 2007.
Had the acquisition had been completed on 1st April, 2006, the
Group’s revenue for the year would have been HK$890,230,000,
and profit for the year ended 31st March, 2007 would have been
HK$68,267,000.

The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of turnover and results of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st April, 2006, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As detailed to in note 12, the Group discontinued its businesses of
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products and
trading of motorcycles through disposal of its subsidiaries, the TFH
Group and the King-Tech Group on 31st July, 2007 and 31st March,
2008, respectively.

In addition, the Group entered into several conditional agreements on
28th November, 2007, to dispose of its entire 65%, 64.83% and 65%
interest in Panyu Golf, Guangzhou Panyu Wei Di Si Golf Property
Company Limited (“Wei Di Si”) and Guangzhou Lian Chui Property
Management Company Limited (“Lian Chui”), respectively, which
are engaged in development and operation of golf resort and hotel in
the PRC to the acquirer. The disposal was completed on 6th March,
2008, on which the control of these subsidiaries was passed to the
acquirer.
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45.

46.

WBC U B J8 A ) ()

BEERZELEZH=1+—HIL4EE
KHEZ B AR AREHHE - F
FEELF=ZHA=Z+—HYMAEAEH
e A% e 85 54,960,000 7T 2 Wi 35 B ik B
5,727,000 Z 518 > 36 B 5 A A 4E [
Z BB A - MU EC R FE N
AEPUH — H SEA » ASSE B AT R IR 3 A
5 1890,230,0007G » T E —FE L
EZH =+ —HIEFEZ A R A
#68,267,0007C °

% ERMEEB IR > A —EHR
fisf WS —F F N A — H B S8
B UL A 52 B MR B A5 2 B SR K
B IR By R ACSER 2 T -

B BB A )

AN Bk 12 BT R 5 AS AR [ 43 R —
EELHEELH =+ —H R ZFFNFE
ZA=+—H > B A
WAL KSFEE M > P HRE

Be B R A R o R
R -

WA > ALEER _FFLE+—A
ZAHNHE L ZEA B o DA
BHRE B R - BMNTHEBE
MR AR S L E A RA A ([ R
Wil ) BN TR Y R A R
ANFE ([T#ER]) 2 RlFEE 2865% -
64.83% 1% 65% 2 WEts o #% — /AR
A F B[] WA B O A R R A S T
KERFEBAT B TE 275 - HETEIH
B EENEZANH R - R
%55 I N 7 2 PE IR EOR 5% H A
WS o
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46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 46. HERBA A ()
The aggregate net assets of the disposed subsidiaries at the dates of W& R IE HEREA R 2R E
disposals were as follows: FERAFEIE -
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Total
FHERERE R aR A RE st
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Net assets disposed of: OB RS
Property, plant and equipment Yy ~ B B At 111,501 31,016 142,517
Prepaid lease payments of A& + M FE AT
leasehold land B HIH 52,947 1,405 54,352
Intangible assets Y B = 430 430
Other loan receivables HoAth U Bk = 30,314 30,314
Inventories nE 68 96,153 96,221
Properties under development By 14,571 = 14,571
Amount due from immediate JRE W B B i
holding company NG = 1,138 1,138
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EMCHRR ~ Fesi I
HATROA 5,534 39,834 45,368
Financial assets at fair value FOPEPIIR K FEA
through profit or loss ot 2 4Rl g E = 2,500 2,500
Tax recoverable AT g [ A T = 2,045 2,045
Bank balances and cash WATHI R LB 3,862 81,629 85,491
Creditors, deposits and accrued charges  JEATHEZX ~ #24 M
R (6,389) (128,765) (135,154)
Dividend payable to a minority JREAT BFF g /A 7 o B
shareholder of a subsidiary o 2 g B (2,665) = (2,665)
Amounts due to minority shareholders JREAST i g N ) A 8k
of subsidiaries JE SR IR (521) = (521)
Unsecured loan from a minority (TN S
shareholder of a subsidiary SHEHE AT 7 3K (14,115) (980) (15,095)
Unsecured loan from a related party HE#ENL
EHE A K (621) - (621)
Obligations under finance leases il A 5 R A = 12) 12)
Bank and other borrowings SRAT S A5 B (17,573) (25,457) (43,030)
Tax payable JREAS B IH - (270) (270)
Deferred tax liabilities % S ol T 4 (14,316) = (14,316)
132,283 130,980 263,263
Minority interests DB R RS (43,471) (504) (43,975)
Translation reserve released [FRE B3 (B A JEE R 1 (17,671) (3,801) (21,472)
Revaluation reserve released A A A AR R (991) - 991)
70,150 126,675 196,825
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries A B A 2 E1E (19,073) (18,571) (37,644)
Total consideration RAHE 51,077 108,104 159,181
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46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Satisfied by:
Cash

Amount due from the disposed

subsidiary included

in debtors, deposits

and prepayment
Other loan receivables

Interest in properties held for

development (note 22)

Expense paid for the disposal of

subsidiaries

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration

Bank balances and cash disposed of
Expense paid for the disposal of

subsidiaries

The impacts of the disposed subsidiaries of discontinued operation
on the Group’s results and cash flows in the current and prior periods

are disclosed in note 12.

IR A
B4

JREU EL 5 e /A )
R (FAREAS
Wk~ e K
R AR
HAh R i R
RBP4 E v
FB (M z22)
HERBARZ
BB

HeE

AR 2
BB

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2007, the Group had given an indemnity to the
purchaser relating to unrecorded taxation liabilities, if any, and
warranties relating to the affairs and businesses of a subsidiary
disposed of in the previous year. The maximum aggregate liability
of the Group in respect of all claims for breach of the warranties
shall, when taken together with the aggregate liability of the Group
in respect of all claims under the indemnity, not exceed the sum
of HK$60,000,000. All related claims may be brought against the
Group up to the expiry of 10 years from 31st March, 1998. The

contingent liabilities were released on 31st March, 2008.

In addition, the financial guarantee given to a bank in respect
of banking facilities utilised by an associate amounted to
HK$250,000,000 at 31st March, 2007. The financial guarantee has
been released through the disposal of More Profit as set out in note

23(ii).
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EHERITHR A E

46.  IMEWIEAE (A

HERHEL 2 SRS

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Total
FERERE R EEE A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BWT T EWTT T
22,173 20,000 42,173
14,669 - 14,669

- 90,000 90,000

14,745 - 14,745
(510) (1,896) (2,406)

51,077 108,104 159,181
22,173 20,000 42,173
(14,448) (81,629) (96,077)
(510) (1,896) (2,406)
7,215 (63,525) (56,310)

Hh B I R A A 2 2 W A R AR
SR H AT RO 1 ) 2 SRR R Bl
Vi 2 B M RE 127 1R 4 -

47. A
MoBEEFE=H=1+—H  A4%£H
) B AR Rk 2 BUBS AR () 18
A A R 8 I S A0 A A 2 — ]
W N Al 2 S I SR BE R T8 - A
L BhE AR 2 Tl R AE > ER AR
LEEBBHERBEN TG REZ S
FrEE > &£ A8 60,000,000
I ° A A B R E R — UL =
A =+ — HREF 4 A ) A 4L [ 42
e iR AaBE RN FEENFE=H
=+—Hf#B -

o R EFEEE=ZH =+ —
H o> 5t — M Bk 2 7 8 2 $R47 Rl
I [ SR AT Bk 2 B S A U M
250,000,0007C © #% BB 95 A1 B35 1
& More Profit (5 15 # 74 B 51 23(i) ) 7
EfRER -
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48.  CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 48. WA B IUfbARIE
2008 2007
BB\ ZEELA
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T W
Capital expenditure contracted for but MU R AR ERTH)
not provided in the consolidated ER SR G B R -
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEE Y - AU R
equipment 31,292 35,080
— acquisition of properties (Note 28) — W2 (B E28) - 61,964
31,292 97,044
Other commitments: HoAh A& E
— acquisition of an associate (Note 27) — W — B N | (M iE27) = 155,700
— acquisition of a land use right — B+ Hb (i R (S AE26)
(Note 26) 5,000 10,013
—loan to an associate (Note 23) — [a] — [B] ko A R SR ALK (M7 23) 15,000 70,000
20,000 235,713
51,292 332,757
49.  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 49.  BRAERIN
The Group as lessee AR Ry R AL
2008 2007
ZRBN\AE ZERELAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
b3 T WHET o0
Property rentals paid by the Group AR AR R DA R 45 ZH AT
during the year in respect of: 24
Minimum lease payments K4 13,422 30,407
Contingent rents i SRFH 4 3,167 9,572
16,589 39,979
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BRI (4
REFH - AL BAREAS AT 2
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49. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont’d) 49.
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows: BARYET
2008 2007
ZRBN\E “EELF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T
Within one year —4E R 1,960 27,492
In the second to fifth year inclusive B R (EEE EWA) 323 12,805
2,283 40,297

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and outlets. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of three years and rentals are either fixed or, in addition
to the fixed rentals, determined based on a fixed percentage of the
monthly gross turnover of the outlets, for an average term of three
years.

The Group as lessor

The property rental income earned during the year was
HK$3,270,000 (2007: HK$2,658,000). The properties are expected
to generate rental yield of 1% on an ongoing basis. All of the
properties held have committed tenants within one year.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —4E A
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ASEER A A
2&@&%&2%%@%4&%%%
# 3,270,000 JG ( F LA B
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50. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 50.  EEAH
At 31st March, 2008, the Group’s bank and other borrowings and Mo EZENE=ZH=+—H » AEH
credit facilities from financial institutions were secured by the ZERAT B A A B R R S A R AE
following: Z A5 ERE B R S1IE B EHEA
(a)  bank deposits of HK$41,268,000 (2007: HK$40,783,000); (@)  SRATAF S 41,268,000T (—
T F LA i I 40,783,000
Jo) 3
(b)  legal charges over the Group’s properties held for sale with a by A% @KW MES B
carrying value of HK$231,818,000 (2007: HK$58,536,000); 231,818,0007C (“EE L4 « i
#58,536,0007C ) £ 1 th 45 4 2%
LA
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of (c) e N TEF IR FEA IR 15 2 &
HK$1,756,000 (2007: HK$29,599,000). il 5 E 2% 1 ¥ 1,756,000 (
TEL4 : #129,599,0007C )
In addition, at 31st March, 2008, the Group had bank deposits of A s RZFEFENE=ZH=Z+—H >
approximately of HK$10,550,000 (2007: Nil) pledged to banks in 745 B 49 B i 910,550,000 70 (—FF
respect of banking facilities granted to third parties. LA ¢ M) Z BT R E AR T IRAT
EBSATIR T3 =B G 2 ER
Other than the above, the Group’s bank and other borrowings and bR _E#lsh > AREE R —FELFEZH
credit facilities from financial institutions at 31st March, 2007 were = H Z 84T B At £ A K eh A
also secured by the following: W AE L 2 5 Mg N i A IH E AE
LA
(a) prepaid lease payments of leasehold land of (a) FHLEE A b TR AN AR B T A s
HK$143,211,000; and 143,211,0007C 5 K
(b)  available-for-sale investments of HK$75,970,000. (b) AR EBE R HEN75,970,000
JG ©
51. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 51 BREA GRS
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits AL 5y A GRS R BT AR IR I 25 R
scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement PR AR B 51 A6 1) (T Ik 3 98 K £ 1 5t
Scheme Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme) for eligible employees. The # 1) 5k 2 e B AL ORI AR A EH#
assets of the scheme are separately held in funds under the control of at B 2 EE TR Z it NE R R4
trustees. IrBRFEA o
The cost charged to the consolidated income statement represents TEHGEHEERTMBRZER - T4
contributions payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in £E B AR 4w BUHLE BT Gk R E
the rules of the scheme. Where there are employees who leave the T B 45 JE AT 2 AR 3 o A B A A O
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions 15 HERRATR ez et # > A2 iz i
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited ] DA A B B A 2 Ak o
contributions.
At the balance sheet dates, the Group had no significant forfeited AEEEH > ASSE BN 2 R R B 1R
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the retirement AR A 5B T A AT R AR AR A 4R [ A
benefits scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions 15 AF BEEAT sk 2 B RR itk o

payable by the Group in future years.
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51.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d)

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group has also joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions paid or
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes are to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of

HK$2,126,000 (2007: HK$4,019,000) represents contributions paid
or payable to the schemes by the Group during the year.
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52. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52, 1 BN A 5 B A B
AND BALANCES
Related party transactions FHEALRY
(a) During the year, the Group had the following transactions () R AEE B BN &
with related parties: ETUTFRS ¢
2008 2007
ZEEN\E “ERRLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
Related parties Notes Nature of transactions BT T IT
ABEA L Jira ROHR
Director:
HE
Mr. Lai Interest expense - 222
85 FE B
Minority shareholders
of subsidiaries:
WG 22 ] DB -
Braniff (i) Interest expense - 1,785
FE B
JEE N T % B it e 48 28 (ii) Interest expense 734 266
FE BRI
Management fee paid 295 295
EAE
= a0 e AR I B A R (ii) Rental paid 231 84
EfifHE
Associates:
W& L] -
Orient Town Interest income 51,618 56,182
G FEMA
Concordia Management fee paid 910 -
B A= ST E
Orient Town Project Management fee received 250 -
Management Limited EAE=2 b
HHIE H B R
Other related companies:
R LA -
Wing On (iii) Interest income 4,677 3,690
K FLE A
Mr. Chang Rong Wu (iv) Interest expense - 11
TREEHE Fe FE B
L.F. Sam (HK) Ltd. v) Interest expense - 92
A (i) A BR A A FEBIX
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52. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  52.  A7BH%A L35 5 B &t (40)
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)
Related party transactions (Cont’d) HBEANLRY ()
(a) During the year, the Group had the following transactions (a) AETA > AN E v B A B\ 1
with related parties: (Cont’d) EGUTRS - ()
Notes: MaE -
@) Minority shareholders of subsidiaries of Smart Sharp ) BN _FZELFE A
which become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the —+NHERAEANFRE
Company on 28th February, 2007 as set out in (d) R Jeg 2> 71 ) 2 Bt A ] A
below. JBSHA T 3C(d) °
(i)  Minority shareholders of subsidiaries of Everight. ()  KHEZ B o A D O
o
(iii)  Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, an executive director of the (iii) AN E) AT SR A S
Company is also a director of Wing On. A IRB IR 2 HEH o
(iv) A former director of a subsidiary of Everight. @iv) JKHE 7 — BB 8 2 A i B
o
) Mr. Chan Jink Chou, Eric, a former director of v) K HE B — [T B J8 2 71 Y /i
a subsidiary of Everight, is also a director and a HEHREBRIERKCAE > N AA
shareholder of the related company. BN T FE R ST o
Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set B B A W) 2 i AR AR R A R
out in the consolidated balance sheet and in notes 23, 24, 33, FENE WU A A B AR
35, 36, 37 and 38. F¥23 24 ~33~35°36" 37K
38 °
(b) As stated in the announcement on 5th January, 2007, (b) M EMAE —EEELE AR

Everight entered into an agreement with AIM Pacific
Limited (“AIM”) which was owned as to 65% by Mr. Lai
and 35% by Mr. Chan Jink Chou, Eric. Pursuant to the
agreement, Everight agreed to acquire the entire interest in
Braniff which was owned as to 67% and 33% by AIM and
Mr. Chang Rong Wu, respectively, and aggregate amount

H 2 25 i Bl » ok HE B2 43 Bl
oy #E S A K BRIE AR SE A A
65% M 35% HE %5 2 AIM Pacific
Limited ([ AIM |) &7 57— 53 14
o MW KRR
[i# A Braniff 2= #F #E %5 > Braniff

of shareholders’ loans owing by Braniff to AIM and Mr. 43 FIl B8 ATM J2 5 4848 Se AL HER
Chang Rong Wu and the interests accrued thereon up to the 67% }%33% # %5 > LA X Braniff
completion of the agreement for an aggregate consideration 45 R AIM B S48 e A 2 JROR.

of approximately HK$98 million (the “Braniff Acquisition”).
The principal asset of Braniff was its indirect holding of
36.97% effective interest in the issued share capital of
Donson and the guarantors of the Braniff Acquisition were
Mr. Lai and Mr. Chan Jink Chou, Eric.

In addition, Everight should, immediately after the
completion of the Braniff Acquisition, repaid on behalf of
Donson or procure Donson to repay loans due to Mr. Lai and
L.F. Sam (HK) Ltd. of approximately HK$1.3 million and
HKS$1.6 million, respectively, and interest accrued thereon.
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52. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52. B A LR85 RN E)
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

Related party transactions (Cont’d) AR ALY (4E)
(®  (Conr'd) b (#)
Mr. Lai, Mr. Chan Jink Chou, Eric and Mr. Chang Rong Wu TB A~ B IE Bk GG R A4S
were directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company and 4 1 4 5 AR N T T BB 4 T
Mr. Lai was the executive director of the Company. Mr. Chan TS B AN F
Jinl;.Chou, Erifc End Mri)C.g?ng R(:ing‘Wu illave been (rlezig;fd RS - BT BT
as directors of these subsidiaries during the year ended 31st -
=+ —HIFE > BRIERSEE
Mareh, 2007 FR A S B AT S
ARIZHEE o
©) On 15th June, 2006, Hanny, four fund subscribers who were (c) B EENESHTHHA
funds managed by Stark Investments (Hong Kong) Limited., fREL - B EERIEANZ K
an investment manager of the fund subscribers (“Stark & £ 3 Stark Investments (Hong
Funds”), ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”), and the eleven Kong) Limited % P 1% 55 5 4 2
other note subscribers which were funds managed by global H 4 A ([ Stark 24 |) -
asset management firms had in aggregate conditionally R 2 4R A PR /A A (T g
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of HK$1,000 million B R — KRR A

1% convertible notes due 2011 issued by the Company

JN S A He A e iy T
pursuant to the subscription agreements with principal i ml I 2 O 4 2 A SR R

amount of HK$270 million, HK$123 million, HK$30 million b M N IEIR A IR PF IR o T
and HK$577 million, respectively. Hanny and ITC were A% 2% ) AR R R R AT 2
companies incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability B A 36 7 ¥ 15 1,000,000,000
and their shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. The 2011 L E R E R
Convertible Notes had been issued during the year ended 31st AR EE . R4 4 R
March, 2007 as explained in note 39(c). £ #270,000,000 TG~ HE e

123,000,0007C ~ #%30,000,000
JC M #5 577,000,000 7T o $5 B
R ABAE Ty A B BB sE MRS 2
HRAT » H i W22 or b
T o BlAn i 5E39(c) rad » — &

— AR RO R EE

FELEZA=+— A ILER

AT
Hanny and Stark Funds held 20.71% and 17.26% interest in i B K Stark 2 4 75 52 9B 520
the total issued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share o YA SR /N i N
capital of the Company, respectively, as at the date of the - 5 T (B M #2001 T2 2 E
note subscription agreements entered. No conversion of 2011 B AT 33 45 B HE A 20.71% Bt
Convertible Notes held by Hanny and Stock Funds noted 17.26%HEZS o 1 T AR 45 BE (R0 46
AT O s L% Starl B 4 4 346 FL

LR AR RRRR o
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52. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits KA 55
Share-based payments JBe A Atk

The remuneration of directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Connected party transactions

(a) As stated in the announcement on 7th December, 2007,
on 28th November, 2007, Donson entered into several
agreements in relation to:

®

(ii)

the disposal by Donson of its entire interest in
Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian Chui to &l T &
B EEARAR ([FEWH]), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, which
is an investment holding company controlled by
the Panyu Municipal Government, the PRC, for an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$22.2 million) as set
out in note 46;

the co-operation between Panyu Golf and Donson
in the Development Project in which the Group
will have the right to share 65% of its residual
value. Under the terms of the Development Project
Agreement, the Group will provide a loan of RMB40
million (equivalent to approximately HK$44.3
million) to Panyu Golf for use in the development
project as set out in note 22; and

148

52.

BN LB 5 RSBk (A)
(d) B YNSRI

ENERZHMT

2008 2007

ZRBN\E TEFLA

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T ki

19,368 11,105

5,844 2,594

25,212 13,699

M BN & B a
75 AR N 2 R T 8 B
fEE o

LY 2

(a)

B H A EE LT
HEtHER_-ZZLFE+—H
ZNHZ Mk - ARG
T AN HEIEFT L L H R

Q) FOR DA G LB ERE A
B % 20,000,000 7C ( #H
O #) s ¥ 22,200,000
gt ) o HEHEREES
FTRER ~ R 3y Ko R
2 TR SRS T RN T &
B EERRAA
([FEBW] ) > FEN
A EE46 o B B
£y — T A B G 7 AR ST
A MR EA BB B
A > B B UM

BT

(i) 7 B TR Bk B R
BRIEHWEGES > &
£ [ 515 A RE A3 Ak H R
RE(E 2 65% - RiE 5
JEIH B ek 2 Bk
A 4R [ i R AN R K
40,000,000 7C ( A & 7
%) s W5 44,300,000 JC )
2T T A ORER
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52. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52. fiBdA L5 R (E)
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

Connected party transactions (Cont’d) BN 132 5 (48)

(iii)  the lease of the golf resort known as “Guangzhou (iii) T A ) B S D B M
Lotus Hill Golf Resort” which comprises golf course T SRR 5 A A BR A
and golf clubhouse within Panyu, Guangzhou, A ([ AR E A )
Guangdong Province, the PRC by Panyu Golf to FH T o B B R N T
Guangzhou Donson Hotel Management Limited P B I A 4 B [ RN
(“Donson Hotel Management”), a subsidiary of the A6 1L 55 T R BR B BRA
Company, for three years commencing from the Z TR BRERAT (8
date of the lease agreement entered into between TR ERIG KRR
Donson Hotel Management as lessee and Panyu Golf BRErfr) > fAMA B R
as lessor for the lease of the Guangzhou Lotus Hill A NG (AR
Golf Resort on 16th April, 2008 at an annual rental of A ) B B S R Bk
RMBS5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.2 (fERHAEAN ) HHE
million) renewable at an option of Donson Hotel JE N 3EAE L = AR BRI
Management at the successive terms of 3 years up to RAT B —FEENE
20 years. WAHSHE L2 HE

Whik H AL FE =4 > 4F
2 AN R % 5,000,000
g6 ( FHE R A s B
5,200,000 JG ) > H IR

T 5 7 S AT PR YR A

=4 REZEH —+

4E o
By virtue of the fact that & & 1 3 is controlled by the P A T ) T o T R [ A A
Panyu Municipal Government. J& M| 7 & & Jik #iF 44 2\ &) B i B M T AR R A
(“F& B3k iF) , a company incorporated in the PRC which is O ERdE ] ) (A A B g i
a substantial shareholder of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian WALZ AT ) B E SR
Chui, is also controlled by the Panyu Municipal Government, Bk fE I R R B R
B Wk and 75 BiRIF are therefore connected persons of o 1 R U R
the Company. Details of the above-mentioned transactions T B h e T B R U B AN
are set out in the announcement dated 7th December, 2007. FZBE AL - LR 525
The disposal was completed on 6th March, 2008. HRRH A - EELET

AL A2 « B AT R
BB\ A AT -

(b) During the year ended 31st March, 2008, Kopola had (b) BE _FENF=ZH=4—
converted HK$50 million (2007: HK$100 million) of the H 1E4F R > Kopola £ 1% s
First 2010 Convertible Notes into 113,636,363 (2007: 50,000,000 G ( — F F L 4
227,272,727) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share # 100,000,000 7C ) Z 5 — it
capital of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.44 per TR — AR W] M I PR R
share. JiE 1B A8 v 5 0.44 7T 58 R £

113,636,363 & ( —F F L 4 :
227,272,727 M%) A48 T EAS 4
J T (B 950,01 T 2 @ A% -
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53. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 53. & H#%IH

(a)

As stated in the announcement dated 28th April, 2008,
ITC Properties Management Limited (the “Tenant”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a tenancy agreement with Island Town Limited (the
“Landlord”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny
for renting Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, 12
Harcourt Road, Central, from 28th April, 2008 to 27th April,
2011 with a fixed rental of HK$311,340 per month and
management fee and air-conditioning charges of HK$23,927
per month. The annual caps for total rental and other charges
payable by the Tenant to the Landlord will not exceed
HK$3,900,000 for the financial year ending 31st March,
2009 and HK$4,200,000 for each of the financial years
ending 31st March, 2010 and 31st March, 2011.

As at 28th April, 2008, Hanny was indirectly interested in
approximately 16.72% of the issued share capital of the
Company and is a substantial shareholder. Accordingly,
the Landlord is a connected person of the Company. The
tenancy, which will be carried out on a continuing basis
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, constitutes a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Rule14A.14 of the Listing Rules.
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53.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Cont’d) 53.  ASEHSSE ()

(b)  Pursuant to the announcement dated 6th June, 2008, the b)) MWBEBE_FFENEANA
Company proposed to issue 9,286,554,078 shares (with up to ANHZ A AN EERE
2,476,414,420 bonus warrants to be issued by the Company i e AR N A A U
to the successful applicants of the Right Shares pursuant to 0.07 76 2 w8 Hf 8 DA At i o =
the rights issue at an initial exercise price of HK$0.105 per 179,286,554,078 B Bt 4y > H
warrant share (subject to adjustments) at any time during a i % 2,476,414,420 17 AL F 58 A%
period of 18 months from the date of issue of the warrants WEFB A Hh AR ) 42 FR R B HE =5
(the “Warrants”)) at a subscription price of HK$0.07 each (RR M HERS 1) 8847 H RERT 18
in the capital of the Company, by way of rights issue in A8 3 349 R PR A AT I P A R
the proportion of three rights shares per every ordinary FECARE 5 B ATy 2 40 55 4T (01 s
share of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company 0.1057G ( o] 7§ %8 ) #5477 it
(the “Right Shares”) (with the Warrants to be issued in the Bz I FEN > HEREA
proportion of four Warrants for every fifteen Rights Shares 2N ) A v — R T o
subscribed) held to the shareholders other than the excluded 0.01 JG 2 38 38 % £k = A {3k i A
shareholders as defined in the announcement, whose names 3 (T BERE > 1) A B 42 5 W
appear on the register of members of the Company at the AL AR B 3 DR 2% G 73 58
close of business on the record date for determining the RERS 2 FLE > ils TR ek H
entitlements of the shareholders to participate in the rights A 7 2 48 R IRE 42 51 7R 8 ) IR
issue. 2 it LAHE 2 B B s 2 B

Z R (ANEIEA AT E R Z
BROMBCH) o

The rights issue is conditional upon the approval of the b 1 2B R AR T B RO AR A ]
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting JER R RIIR & EHEUE > i vE
of the Company and the transaction has not yet been H o EEARRSE HIAZE S R
completed up to the date of this report. The estimated net SERL o bR TS SR IR R T AT
proceeds of the rights issue will be approximately HK$626.6 %9 5 W5 #626,600,0007C © BT
million. The net proceeds are intended to be used as general TR B A EAL E —
working capital of the Group principally for its existing s 4 > R AL
business and for the repurchase of the First 2010 Convertible Z B 3 DA % i ) 28 — it —
Notes and the 2011 Convertible Notes. The Rights Shares, B BAEAMREE L F
credited as fully paid, rank pari pass in all respects with the ——EARREE - AMRSIE
then existing issued shares. B2 2 AR A7 I 45 T T B

IR L 3T ey 4 B[R] S 37
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54. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 54. AAAEEAME

The balance sheet of the Company at 31st March, 2008 is as KANFRZEEZNE=ZH=1T—HZ

follows: EEAMGENT :
2008 2007
ZRBN\E CEELE
Note HK$°000 HKS$’000
Mt W TI0 T T
Non-current asset B EE 1,117,096 1,189,481
Current assets MBENEE 2,034,061 1,657,490
Current liabilities & E 8,060 8,676
Net current assets ) G HE 2,026,001 1,648,814
Total assets less current liabilities B P RO B B 3,143,097 2,838,295
Non-current liabilities B AE 1,236,559 1,360,455
1,906,538 1,477,840

Capital and reserves JBeAS B frt A

Share capital A 30,955 23,123
Reserves Ak (a) 1,875,583 1,454,717
1,906,538 1,477,840
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54.

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Note:

(a)

Reserves

THE COMPANY
At 31st March, 2006

Recognition of equity
component of convertible
notes

Conversion of convertible
notes

Transfer

Issue of shares

Expenses incurred in
connection with issue
of shares

Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Profit for the year

At 31st March, 2007

Conversion of convertible
notes

Issue of shares

Expenses incurred in
connection with issue
of shares

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Profit for the year

At 31st March, 2008

A

REBEHAE
Zp=t-A
AT AR
2

IR R

i

M

BT EE
2B

0 Bt ¥

TR IA
L GAREN
AR A

e
=ZA=+-H
ST BB

T
BT EE
23

TERBISA G55
et fit
AE A

RoFRAN
ERES

54. AN FEEEARER )
(a) fafi il
Convertible
loan notes Share-
Capital equity based Accumulated
redemption reserve payment (losses)
Share reserve ik reserve Contributed profits
premium BA REEE RBA surplus Bt Total
Betyael RGN BORGEE W BARR OBEDEN Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
W T % BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(Hit)
213,224 646 157,053 - 206,177 (181,664) 395,436
- - 261,644 - - - 261,644
393,688 - (63,393) - - - 330,295
- - - - (206,177) 206,177 -
491,666 - - - - - 491,666
(12,908) - - - - - (12,908)
(19,615) 478 - - - (478) (19,615)
- - - 3,296 - - 3,296
- - - - - 4,903 4,903
1,066,055 1,124 355,304 3,296 - 28,938 1,454,717
268,001 - (47,585) - - - 220,416
165,000 - - - - - 165,000
(5,114) - - - = = (5,114)
- - - 8,342 - - 8,342
- - - - - 32222 32,2022
1,493,942 1,124 307,719 11,638 - 61,160 1,875,583
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54.

56k

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 54.  ARAWEEARR )
Note: (Cont’d) MFE - (78)
(a) Reserves (Cont’d) (a) fai il ()
Note:  The contribution surplus of the Company represents: Mzt o ARAFZEARERE
1) the difference between the underlying net assets 1) ARAFR— L
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company EHETTEMEA
at the date of the group reorganisation in 1994 T WS e Jo5 2 )
less any dividends distributed from the pre- ZAH B A (B
reorganisation reserves and the nominal amount B I A A i IR
of the Company’s share capital issued as ZATAT B A
consideration for the acquisition; and A A A1 i
TTIRAZ A2 #
B &
(ii) net balance from capital reduction, cancellation (i1) 3% = FE =41
of share premium and set-off against the deficit A+HHZBEAE
pursuant to the capital reorganisation on 15th FHAEAT A H R
April, 2003. oF 8 M O v AE K
B fls 413 B 2 TR A
73
Pursuant to a resolution of the directors of the Company WIEAAFAEHR -ZF
passed on 29th September, 2006, the amount of contribution NEJLAZFILHERZ
surplus was transferred to the accumulated losses. WREE > MARREFED
o R EtiEE o
SUBSIDIARIES 55. @AW

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March,

2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WS 24 7 4 1

Advance Tech Limited
FHER /AT

Asia Progress Investments
Limited

Champion Palace Development
Limited
BB AR

Castle Win International
L@mited
W A R A E

Place of
incorporation

or registration/
operations
LA ATA

Kk W/ B

Hong Kong
&l

British Virgin Islands
SRE LR

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
Eil

AR T B A R E =

A=+ —HZREmT -

Percentage of
Issued and issued share/
fully paid share/ registered capital
registered capital held by the Company
DEfTRAR YL ¢ Principal activities
WAk /Mg Ak Bk /HEME AL V4 FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hi LES
2008 2007 2008 2007
CERNE | CFTUE| CR8NE | CFTLE
% % % %
HKS1 - - 100 100 Securities investment
ordinary share BARE
R el
US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ordinary share R
FETEER
HK$2 - - - 100 Properties holding
ordinary shares in the PRC
Rk A HEERE
HK$2 - - 100 - Property development
ordinary shares VIEES
R LA
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55.  WBAWE A
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Fi3 ] WA DEAT AR AAT RO Principal activities
WA 2 gkt Bk /¥ A Bk /MY AZ T A FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hi#% [
2008 2007 2008 2007
SRENE | RELE) REAE | SRR
% % % %
Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - - 100 Trading of
(Motor Vehicle) Limited il ordinary shares motorcycles and
AT S (AL AR ] Y5 110,00070 S % spare parts
B LRRE
Donson Hong Kong HK$85,297,692 - - 100 100 Investment holding
it il ordinary shares RER
#:4185,297,6927¢
Dragon Rainbow Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - - - 100 Investment holding
REETHE ordinary share BEE
AV .1
Exalt Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - - 100 Investment holding
BHREHRAH il ordinary shares AR
10,0007 B
Handsworth Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited BEELEE ordinary share BEr
AV .
Hayton Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Property investment
B R il ordinary share WY
Kb
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55. WA A
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary fi3 ] WA CEAT AR AR B L Principal activities
WA # gkt /B Rk /B A WAk /MR AZ A TR
Directly Indirectly
M 3
2008 2007 2008 2007
CERNE | CTTUE| CRRNE | CFRLE
% % % %
ITC Properties Management Hong Kong HK$2,000 - - 100 100 Securities investment
Limited e ordinary shares and investment
MR A RA A 52,0007 % 4 M holding
(formerly known as fvizvaoitiaseidle
Macau Prime Management HK$500,000 - = - =
Limited) non-voting
(RN R ERARAT) deferred shares
(note 1)
#4£500,0007C
BEEHERE
(Hit1)
Jean-Marie Pharmacal Hong Kong HK$812,600 - - - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited B ordinary shares sale of
ERERARAT 812,607t pharmaceutical
Lk products
&
Jean-Marie Pharmacal Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Investment holding
Management Limited Fik ordinary shares BGHE
EFERERARAR Wl LA
Jumbo Ever Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - - - 100 Investment holding
SRERRAT il ordinary shares RER
Rk
Macau Prime (B.V.L.) Limited British Virgin [slands US$50,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
KB R A ordinary shares RE
450,007 H 8
Macau Prime Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Money lending
HMHERIH A R AT it ordinary shares B3k
Wl LA
Macau Prime Property (Macau) British Virgin Islands US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited FBELTE ordinary share g
P AV § L
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55.  WEAE )
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Fia 3 WA DEATRBR AR R L Principal activities
WA 2 gkt Bk /Mg Bk /EMH AL T A FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hik LES
2008 2007 2008 2007
CRRME | CFERLE| SN | Z2RLE
% % % %
Master Super Development Hong Kong HK$100 - - 100 100 Property holding and
Limited B ordinary shares sale
REBERARA Wl 1007C L VESSEN G
Million Orient Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
FEHRAH il ordinary share HEER
R
New Smarten Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
HYAHRA il ordinary share RER
R e
Pacific Essence Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - - - 100 Investment holding
HEEGHE ordinary share BE
F AR
Pacific Wins Development British Virgin [slands US$1,000 - - - 100 Investment holding
Ltd. BB RS ordinary shares Eid-eid e
F 41,0007 B
Smarteam Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 - Property investment
ERARAT i ordinary shares VER T
R L
Sound Advice Investments British Virgin Islands US$100 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited KRR LTHE ordinary shares BGHEm:
££1007T K
South Step Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Property investment
FEFERRA ) il ordinary share and development
W TR VESIE YT
Teamate Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
LR LR ordinary share R
P AV 3.1
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55. WA A
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary fi3 ] WA CHAT B AR L Principal activities
WA 2 gkl /B A WAk /¥ A WAk /MY A Z T 2 FERH
Directly Indirectly
H# A%
2008 2007 2008 2007
SRR | CFTUE|) CR80NE | CRTLE
% % % %
Top Century International British Virgin Islands US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ERETHE ordinary share BGHE
P AV 511
Total Pacifc Limited Hong Kong HK§$2 - - - 100 Investment holding
WHRARAH il ordinary shares HEHR
Wl T
Tung Fong Hung Investment British Virgin Islands US$10,000 - - - 100 Investment holding
Limited KRR AT ordinary shares BB
%410,0007 E @
Tung Fong Hung Nominees British Virgin Islands Us$2 - - - 100 Provision of nominee
Limited L eyeids ordinary shares services
FETLER HRALACIR A MH
Tung Fong Hung (China) Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Distribution of
Limited e ordinary shares Chinese medicine
FORAL () IR R Pt and health products
"L G R
Tung Fong Hung Foods Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Distribution of health
Limited Hils ordinary shares food
TR MARAR T (R R b
Tung Fong Hung Foods Canada CAD360 - - - 100 Retail of herbal
Company, B.C. Limited JIEIN common shares products and dried
IF3607E L seafood
R iR T
Tung Fong Hung Medicine British Virgin Islands HKS$0.2 - - - 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited L yeids ordinary share RER:
R0
Tung Fong Hung Medicine Hong Kong HK$1,001 - - - 100 Retailing of Chinese
Company Limited e ordinary shares medicine and
FOTHEEA R WL 00 TR foodstufs
PELRHTE
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55.  WEAE )
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary fi3 ] WA DEAT AR AR PR L Principal activities
WA 2 gkt Bk /¥ A Bk /HEMH AL T 2 FERH
Directly Indirectly
H# &
2008 2007 2008 2007
CERNE | CFTUE| CRR0NE | CFTLE
% % % %
Tung Fong Hung Medicine Macau MOP100,000 - - - 100 Retailing of Chinese
Company (Macau) Limited TR quota capital medicine and
FOTATEER (RF) AR H P8 100,000 foodstuffs
it PELERTE
TFH Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Provision of
FRALERARAH il ordinary shares management
T ER services
RETIRE
TFH Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Processing, packaging
Company Limited il ordinary shares and distribution of
FO AL SRR R LR Chinese medicine
and foodstuffs
PELERMT
L
TFH (China) Holdings Hong Kong HK$2 - - - 100 Investment holding
Limited Bk ordinary shares BErER
FOTAL () B A ] R TR
Universal Focus Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - - - 100 Investment holding
REETHE ordinary share BEE
AV
Well Cycle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Letting of motor
A RA it ordinary shares vehicles
Wtk K
Vintage Hotel Limited British Virgin Islands HK$23,595,000 - - 100 100 Development and
TR A R A ) KRG LR ordinary shares operation of hotel
Y5123,595,00078 and golf resort
L R R AETEIE R
R IR ekt
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5S. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiary

WS 24 7 4 1

BT TS
LA RARAH

VRN A B 5 AR

FOPAL (1l ) R B R
LA

R ERERFARAR

AR AR AR

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

[al) AA
Fik W/ R

PRC (note 2)
Bl (H7t2)

PRC (note 2)

T (ffzE2)

PRC (note 2)
B (H7t2)

PRC (note 3)
Bl (7t3)

PRC (note 3)
B (#7E3)

PRC (note 4)
B (H7te)

Issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

CHITRAR
Rk /¥ A

RMB35,000,000
ordinary shares

NE35,1000,0007C
L

HK$30,000,000
#:#30,000,0007C

RMB2,000,000
NE%2,000,0007C

US$1,000,000
%£4:1,000,0007C

HK$14,000,000
T#14.000,0007C

RMB1,100,000
NEE1,100,0007C
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Percentage of
issued share/
registered capital
held by the Company
AR P CBAT
WAk /MY A Z T 2
Directly Indirectly
H# %

2008 2007 2008 2007
SRR | CTTUE| CR8NE | CFTLE
% % % %
- - 80 80
- - 100 100
- - - 51
- - - 100
- - - 100
- - - 100

Principal activities

TR

Development and
operation of hotel
and golf resort

BRIR RASEIE B
A AR ekt

Development and
operation of hotel

B BB I

Distribution of
Chinese medicine
and health food

v TR R £ 8

Processing and
wholesaling of
health food

(et I Bt 3

Cultivation and sales
of potatoes

SR B R

Sales of potatoes
seeds

T
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55.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 55.  WBAWE A

Notes: Mtz -

(1) The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, (1) S FE ARG W5 2 M SR A
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to By o FUE B A A HEAR AT IR A
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies nor B B A AR R R & 2
to participate in any distribution on winding up. A B BOROR & sl & R

BRI BB BT MR -

2) The subsidiaries were established in the PRC as a sino-foreign equity 2) 25 B A TP B B 2 A
joint venture companies. BRG] o

3) The subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign enterprises. 3) R A B RN AR o

@ EEHEA R RR R -

4) The subsidiaries are wholly-owned domestic enterprises.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the TAES A B SUAAE AR P > 4% B
balance sheet date or at any time during the year. Ji 4 ) AR R AT 0] 1 A E R 2 AR AR
¥ o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the L REHEER L E AL EERE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of ERERYEZARNFMEAR - &
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion PRS- wESH A K A B 2 E R
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. SR IEER IR -
56.  SEGMENT INFORMATION 56. SR
Business segments EW5 43 EB
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into five WP > A% BB 5 T8
operating divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the Group IR o FZAEIM B AL R
reports its primary segment information. B ERE R 2 FEYE o
Principal activities are as follows: FEEHMR -
Property development —  development of property yeuEE — YRR
Property investment  —  trading of properties WERE — YHEEHE
Golf and leisure —  development and operation of B REKE — ERERERN &
golf resort and hotel TH A TR R Je e R
Securities investment —  trading of securities BHERE — WHHEHE
Finance — loan financing services il —  BRBE R
The Group was also involved in trading of motorcycles and WA EAREE IR EELHE T
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products in prior MBHERHREERH REREE - %
year. These operations were discontinued during the year as set out in SFEBOINERNE R - FFHHR M5
note 12. 12 °
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56. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 56.  AEER A
Business segments (Cont’d) EHHH (47)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: LG 2P IRE R RN
2008 2 9.% 2
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
THER AR E it e
Medicine
Property Golf and and health
develop-  Property  leisure Securities Segment Elimination/ Motor-  products

ment investment WACAR investment  Finance total adjustments  Total  cycles WK Total Consoldated
WRER BEEE ORWN O ERRE  BE WG HE/ER MG BEE BEER B B
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
BT WML BRI BRI RBWTL RN BMTL BN WML W%TL BRI RN

CONSOLIDATED INCOME SaREE

STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-Z2\E

31ST MARCH, 2008 SHE IR

Gross Proceeds UGEE 2500 79092 62,622 42641 31789 600,844 - 60084 17567 115741 133308 734,152
REVENUE e

External sales Hihz e 2500 79292 6262 5741 31789 181944 - 18194 17567 115741 133308 315252
Inter-segment sales* s A VA = = = - B8 B8 (584 = = = = =
Total st 2500 79292 6622 541 ST 207,786 (5842) 18194 17567 115741 133308 315252
SEGMENT RESULTS ARER 21360 27906 (16303) 941 T4 76077 -0 (135 147 B8 76465
Unallocated corporate income FAREENA 43860 - 43860 - 689 089 44549
Unallocated corporate expenses FARSEER (58,762) - (58762 = = - (58762
Share of results of associates il YN (30,47) 5,000 = = - (2500 - (250 = = - (2500

Impairment losses on prepaid lease Tl E tHAEFHAL
payments of leasehold land and WEBRRL
premium on prepaid lease payments AT E H AL

of leasehold land i s - (45000 - - (@000) - (@500 - - - (5000
Loss on disposal of an associate HEREN 2 ER - (39,480 - - - (39,480 - (39480) - - - (39,480
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT 2 ER - - (19073) - - (19073) - (19073) - - - (19073)
Unallocated finance costs TR A (54,787) - (54787 (613)  (55,400)
Loss before taxation and gain (loss) i F AT A 75

on disposal of discontinued RfisEREN (B8

operations (122218) - (12218) 464 (121754
Taxation BE (3473) - (341 (558)  40)
Gain (loss) on disposal of hEFREAE

discontinued operations Bl (ER) - - - 6 (18577 (18571)  (18571)
Loss for the year KEERE (125,693) (125,693) (18,663) (144,358)
& Inter-segment sales were charged at terms determined and agreed e GRS [ 2 B BTG 15 5E (B 23 ] 2 [

between group companies. JETE R Iy 7 M ANE
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56. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 56. A EER )
Business segments (Cont’d) EHHH ()
2008 “RR)N\4E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REBE T E it e

Medicine

Property Golf and and health

develop-  Property  leisure Securities Segment Elimination/ Motor-  products

ment investment W AR imvestment  Finance total adjustments Total  cycles  BER Total Consolidated
WERE WESE  ORMW EREE  BE ARG EM/RE b oR REER B KR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
YT WL BN BRI RMTx BMTx RN ENTL EWTC BNMTE BT RWTx

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET £ ¥ 7 fi i

AT 31ST MARCH, 2008 i & U SV ey el
ASSETS i3
Segment assets g i Al 30619 162513 1,399,868 2,479925 - 2419925 - - - 2479925
Tnterest in properties held for MEEREE i 14,145 14,745 14,745 14,745
development
Tnterests in associates IBEA T 135,503 - - - - 135503 - 13503 = = - 135503
Unallocated corporate assets FARLLEE 732820
Consolidated total assets e VS 3360993
LIABILITIES Aig
Segment lsilis Auak 885 SIS0 90 1269058 L3481 (12690 65259 - - L)
Unallocated corporate liabilties ARAEAR 1445557
Consolidated total liabilities mama 1,510,816
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
THER AR FHEEEEH
Medicine
Property Golf and and health
develop-  Property  leisure Securities Segment Motor-  products
ment investment FAAR investment  Finance total Unallocated  Total  cycles WK Total Consoldated
WERR WERE  ORNW RRRE  BE ABES AR MG BEE REER M BB
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
WL WML BRI RN RWTO RWTC BN MM BNTL BRI WL RN
OTHER INFORMATION Binyee
Depreciation of property, plantand  ¥13 ~ H R a7
equipment 0 - UM - S uM T8 1568 S L 156
Amortisation of prepaid lease BfffiE T
payments of leasehold land THE RS - -8 - -8 -8 - 10 10 229
Amortisation of premium on prepaid B E 2
lease payments of leaschold land T30 e - - 94 - -4 -9 - = - 94
Allowance for inventories TRt - - - - - - - - - 5106 5106 5106
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HiEH)3 » #i
and equipment Ritfiktg - - i S = 7 B 110 - 1 1 1
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts  FEEIER - - 18 = - 14 - 1M = 360 360 1801
Increase in fair value of financial assets $&/AT-(E7IME Rzt AR A 2
atfair value through profit orloss 2B EA TN = - 1038 = - 1038 - 10318 - - - 10318
Decrease in fair value of derivatives  F[#A (% & 2 ik TR
embedded in convertible bonds MRS = = = = = = 1,944 194 = = = 194
Capital additions AR 958 - 36727 - - 3685 918 38,603 - 710 0 39313
Equity-settled share-based payment  RHERE B (3 (T2 B
expenses - - - - - - 8,342 8,342 - - - 8,342
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56.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 56. SR ()
Business segments (Cont’d) EHHH ()
2007 —EBELAE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FRBRER IR

Medicine

Property Golf and and health

develop-  Property  leisure  Securities Segment Elimination/ Motor-  products

ment investment R @AM investment  Finance total - adjustments Tol  cycles  RER Total Consolidated
WEERE WERE  ORMR O BARE  BE MG EB/RE SR BHE BRER & 5%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BhTr BETx RETn BETn RETR BMTx BMTx RMTx TR EMTR TR BT

CONSOLIDATED INCOME SaREE

STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-FRLE

31ST MARCH, 2007 S E il XS
Gross Proceeds R 360 L6l 52367 39055 24903 41676 - 41676 13125 400638 413763 825439
REVENUE e
External sales Hih e 3,690 1561 52367 10868 24903 93389 - 93389 13,125 400638 413,763 507,152
Inter-segment sales* B e = = = -3 32 (3170 = = = = =
Total st 3,690 1561 52367 10868 62605 131,091  (37,702) 93389 13125 400,638 413763 507,152
SEGMENT RESULTS AR 1963 1,040 348 26837 4269 31537 - 353 4334 215 459 4,136
Unallocated corporate income REAERA 41,741 - M 698 42439
Unallocated corporate expenses FRAEER #3.015) - (#3015 B (@018
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries 1B /A 4738 - ] = 1] -4 = = -4
Compensation for cancellation of biria i1l

call options for acquisition of B AmBIMER

additional interest in an associate Rl it g e 23370 - 330 = = - B30
Share of results of associates il YN - 40916 = = - 40916 - 40916 = = - 40916
Unallocated finance costs RO RA (24.059) - (4059 (1.835)  (25,894)
Profit before taxation BBt Al 80,697 80,697 3459 84156
Taxation il (10.004) (10,004) (51)  (10,055)
Profit for the year REREH] 70,693 70,693 3408 74001
& Inter-segment sales were charged at terms determined and agreed & GPEBZ [ 5 BTG5 5 [ 4l 2

between group companies. BEER Iy 2 AT -

164



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B e B R

(for the year ended 31st March, 2008)

Annual Report 2007-2008%4=

56.

(BE_FF/)FE=ZHA=Z1—HIEFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Business segments (Cont’d)

2007

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET &A% fifi#

AT 31T MARCH, 2007

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments of leasehold land

Amortisation of premium on prepaid
lease payments of leasehold land

Amortisation of intangible assets

Increase in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Allowance for inventories

Write-off of intangible assets

Capital additions

Development cost incurred

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense

56.  ABERL (A
EW 5 ER ()
R
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
MERAER FAF LY
Medicine
Property Golf and and health
develop-  Property  leisure  Securities Segment Elimination/ Motor-  products
ment investment  F A investment  Finance total  adjustments Tol  cycles  RER Total Consolidated
WEERE WERE  OREN BRRE ME PG EE/RE 4 BE ERER 0 & &4
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BT W T T kR kT BT BT BT BN BT e
RERFLEENZ-H
(3
b 71,662 - 509381 194265 1518647 2294155 - 2294155 1859 164,145 166,004 2,460,159
REEA 2 93879 - - - - 93819 - 9381 - - - 9381
AR ELRE 795,651 795,651 SR R4 80K
GAMEE 3,183,685 3,183,685 198415 3382100
fiff
e 13,600 - 448 720 1318822 1374390 (1318822) 55568 50 o874 9494 150492
ARLEARE 1,559,788 1,559,788 - = - 1559788
fRlaf 2,934,178 1,615,336 94924 1,710,280
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HERREN FHERA RN
Medicine
Property Golf and and health
develop-  Property  leisure Securities Segment Motor-  products
ment investment FAAR investment  Finance total Unallocated  Total  cycles WK Total Consoldated
WRER BEEE  ORWW OERBE  BE AREE  RAR MR RGE BEER E BR
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
WL WML BRI WL RWTO RWTC BT MM BNTL BRI WL RN
JbeR
ESE UV el
- - 1039 - - 1039 69 11,019 - 9T’ 9718 20797
RN
TR - - 198 - - 198 -1 - 3l 3 198
ELhgil-w v
TSR - -0 - -5 - m - - -
VAR - - - - - - - - - 1S 05
BATEIRR
ARG SREE
A - - - 1775 - 1175 - 1775 - - - 1175
(o - - - - - - - - - 10870 10870 10870
T B - - - - - - - - -0 250 25%0
EARKE - - W3 - - M3 856 248229 - 5609 5609 253838
i A - - - - - - - - - 219 219 219
THEs s R
S 3ivd ) - - - - - - 3% 3% - - - 3%
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56.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 56. SR ()
Geographical segments Hu [ 43 5
The Group’s operations are principally located in Macau, Hong AL 2 W F AR - W -
Kong, the PRC and other countries including Canada, Taiwan and PR R EMER > BEMER A
Singapore. The Group’s administrative functions are carried out in 5 SR I3 o A4 B 2 47 Bk RE A IR
Macau, Hong Kong and the PRC. M~ Tk S P BIAELT -
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by T R A AR [ e T T 8 ) 2 8
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods: BT CRFR & AR IR b))

Sales revenue by
geographical market

50 I v 53 80 4y 2 4 W 2k
2008 2007
ZEEN\E “EFLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T wHTT
Hong Kong i 188,549 335,502
PRC 2l 89,657 136,306
Other countries HABR % 37,046 35,344
315,252 507,152
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DATR 7 4% 65 7 BT AE b [ 31 53 2 43 8
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible FE MR THT(E DA B B 3~ AW B A
assets, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are VAT T B 2 3T
located:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment
Carrying amount of and intangible assets
segment assets WEWE - BRK
43 8 e i WA DA B A
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EFNE | CETLE | CRFMNE | CFTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
wWTor | BT | wWT | BWTT
Segment assets Ginis -
Macau Al 1,375,889 1,242,017 = =
Hong Kong it 607,606 646,703 1,628 4,954
PRC g 374,277 565,284 37,685 248,904
Other countries HAtE R 122,153 6,155 - 199
2,479,925 2,460,159 39,313 254,057
Other assets HA 881,068 921,941 - -
3,360,993 3,382,100 39,313 254,057
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Year ended 31st March,
BREZA=1—HIEEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ZEENE ZERRFE ZEREANFE CEZLE | ZRRNE
HK$°000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$’000 |  HK$°000
T W%t %t W%t | BB
Revenue & 47,650 91,707 4,002 507,152 315,252
(Loss) profit before tax FRBEHT (1R A (37,791) 14,085 (70,435) 84,156 (140,325)
Income tax expenses I3 B XX = (1,823) (2,657) (10,055) (4,033)
(Loss) profit for the year AR (518 6 (37,791) 12,262 (73,092) 74,101 (144,358)
Attributable to: THIAERER, -
Equity holders of the Company RAFIRER RN (29,612) 12,262 (72,960) 79,091 (141,853)
Minority interests DY AR AR (8,179) - (132) (4,990) (2,505)
(37,791) 12,262 (73,092) 74,101 (144,358)
At 31st March,
R=A=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
CERRNE CERRRE CRRAE CERLE | CRRNE
HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$'000 HK$000 |  HK$’000
wToT W% Tor Wl Tt wWTom | BWTx
Total assets Mg RE 232,261 478,513 1,401,214 3,382,100 | 3,360,993
Total liabilities Y= (102,085)  (229,709)  (955,381)  (1,710,280) | (1,510,816)
130,176 248,804 445833 1,671,820 | 1,850,177
Equity attributable to equity AN A
holders of the Company JRE A A 130,176 248,804 445017 1,621,639 | 1,842,998
Minority interests DB = - 816 50,181 7,179
130,176 248,804 445833 1,671,820 | 1,850,177
Note:  The above financial summary prior to 2005 has not been adjusted to take into /7% - PA_E —F % A FT 2 BB HE 2 R A B 5% 49

account the effect on the adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretation issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2004.
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
YRR

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 H 2 45 H 5 R A 7]

Group’s
Approximate Stage of ownership
Location gross floor area Use completion AREHE
o IR0 5 i ik SRR Z P
(Sq. ft.)
SN

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE LY (B IES

1 office unit and 7 residential units at 8,965 Commercial Completed 100%
Talon Tower and Residential B
38 Connaught Road West [HE Jdids
Hong Kong
DL TR 4 P38 5%
A a2 — (e B B 78 (6 B

44 residential units at Edificio Comercial 57,432 Residential Completed 100%
Zhu Kuan Mansion, Avenida Xian Xing Hai i EE AL
nos. 81-121, Rua de Londres nos. 148-254,

Avenida do Governador Jaime Silvério Marques
nos. 80-120 and Rua de Madrid nos. 147-225,
Macau

LR R VR I B8 112155 »
gt 148-254%% »

5 PR AR KRG B 80- 12098 %
o 15147-225%%
BRYLR 2 441815 B 4

16 residential units and 16 car parking spaces at 39,936 Residential Completed 100%
Pearl on the Lough, Tlha da Taipa, FEE iR
junto a Estrada Nordeste da Taipa Aterro
da Baia de Pac On, Macau
PR L%
POS H B 1 W T I 16
Z16fEEE R
K168 E i

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT R e

Section B of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1263 and
the Remaining Portion of Inland Lot No, 1263,
being Nos. 703 and 705 Nathan Road, Mongkok, 29,000 (Gross site area: Commercial Demolition to 100%
Kowloon, Hong Kong approximately 2,432 sq.ft) and Residential commence
JURE R B 1263 5B 0 K (AR - 42,4327 HR) MR E BEff TR
JURERHLB 126355 8RB -
Bt L BERE £ P08 703 70557

Junto Aterro Da Concérdia Estrada De Seac Pai Van 8,000,000 (Gross site area: Residential, Commercial Planning 35.5%
Lote “A” to “0”, S. Francisco Xavier Coloane, Macao approximately 600,000 sq. ft.) and Hotel &

IR B ER 7 95454 [ A M B Ot Bt (HUBRTETRE - #1600,000°F %) fEE ~ B3 SIM IS
£ RS G BRI AR I R
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